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Key Abbreviations

AEMFC African Exploration Mining and Finance Corporation SOC Limited

BBBEE Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

BBL Barrel (equal 159 litres)

BEE Black Economic Empowerment

CCE Cape Cleaner Energy Solutions SOC Limited

CCS Carbon Capture and Storage

CDC Coega Development Corporation

CDM Clean Development Mechanism

CED Clean Energy Division

CEF CEF SOC Limited

CEF ACT Central Energy Fund (Act no 38 of 1977) as amended

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CER Carbon Emission Reduction

CFL Compact Fluorescent Lighting

CIGS Copper idium gallium (di)selenide

DEAT Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism

DMR Department of Mineral Resources

DST Department of Science and Technology

DWP Darling Wind Power

DoE Department of Energy

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment

EUETS European Emission Trading Scheme

Exco Executive Committee

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

GEF Global Environment Facility

GTL Gas to Liquids

IDZ Industrial Development Zone

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IEP Integrated Energy Plan

iGAS The South African Gas Development Company SOC Limited

IP Illuminating Paraffin

IPE International Petroleum Exchange

IPP Independent Power Producers

IRP Integrated Resource Plan

JST Johanna Solar Technology  

King III King III Report on Corporate Governance

LNG Liquid Natural Gas

LSF Low Smoke Fuels

LTFT Low Temperature Fischer Tropsch
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MOI Memorandum of Incorporation

MPRDA Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, 2002 (Act 28 0f 2002)

MW Mega Watt

NERSA National Energy Regulator of South Africa

NMBM Nelson Mandela Bay Metro

NPA National Ports Authority

Nymex New York Mercantile Exchange

OPC Oil Pollution Control South Africa NPC

PAMC Project Appraisal and Monitoring Committee

PAMDC Pan African Mineral Development Company Proprietary Limited

PASA South African Agency for Promotion of Petroleum Exploration and Exploitation SOC Limited

PAT Project Appraisal Team

PDD Project Design Document

PFMA Public Finance Management Act (Act No 1 of 1999) as amended

PPC Parliamentary Portfolio Committee

PPE Property, plant and equipment

PV Photovoltaic   

PetroSA The Petroleum Oil and Gas Corporation of South Africa SOC Limited

REEEP Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency Partnerships

RENAC Renewable Energy Academy

Rompco Republic of Mozambique Pipeline Company Proprietary Limited

SAMSA South African Maritime Safety Authority

SANEDI South African National Energy Development Institution

SAPIA South African Petroleum Industry Association

SARS South African Revenue Services

SASDA South African Supplier Development Agency NPC

SDA Swiss Development Agency

SFF Strategic Fuel Fund Association NPC

SLA Service Level Agreement

SWH Solar Water Heaters

Simex Singapore Water Heaters

SOS SOS Children Village

ToR Terms of Reference

TSFT Thin Film Solar Technology

TNPA Transnet National Ports Authority

TTT Technical Task Team

UNDP United Nations Development Programme

UOP Units of Production

UTT Upstream Training Trust

VAT Value Added Tax

VLCC Very Large Crude Carrier

Key Abbreviations (continued)
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Introduction
About this report

Reporting frameworks
 
In preparing the report we were guided by the following governance 
instruments:

• King Code of Governance for South Africa;
• Integrated Reporting Framework issued by the Integrated Reporting 

Committee in December 2013;
• The Companies Act No. 71 of 2008;
• The Public Finance and Management Act No.1 of 1999; and 
• South African Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (“GAAP”).

This is the CEF Group’s first Integrated Annual Report. It aims to provide 
stakeholders with a concise, material, and transparent assessment of 
our performance, strategy, governance structures and business 
prospects. It also addresses the opportunities and risks, as well as 
resources and relationships that materially impact our ability to create 
value over time.

The report primarily covers the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014. 
It also includes material events which occurred after this date, up to the 
Board approval on 28 July 2014.

10 SECOND BRIEF
The CEF Group consists of five 
operating subsidiaries:

• PetroSA;
• Petroleum Agency SA (PASA);
• Strategic Fuel Fund Association 

(SFF);
• African Exploration Mining and 

Finance Corporation (AEMFC); 
and

• iGas
CEF also includes the Clean Energy 
Division.
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Assurance
The Board is responsible for ensuring the integrity of this report. The 
Board believes that it addresses all material issues and presents the 
Group’s integrated performance and its impacts fairly. It approved the 
report on 28 July 2014.

The report is not audited but it contains annual financial statements as 
well as performance information (financial and non-financial) both of 
which have been audited by the Auditor General of South Africa as well as 
the Group’s Internal Audit Department. In future the Group will seek more 
assurance on information included in its Integrated Annual Report.

What is most material to us
This report also aims to provide a balanced and accurate assessment of 
our strategy, performance and prospects in relation to material financial, 
economic, social, environmental and governance issues. The material 
focus areas that are comprehensively dealt with were determined based on:

• Matters that are critical in relation to achieving our strategic 
objectives and the sustainability of our business model;

• Our shareholder compact;
• The Group corporate plan;
• Matters covered in reports submitted to the Executive Committee 

and Board for discussion or approval;
• Key risks identified in our risk management process;
• Parliamentary questions received;
• The content of engagements with Government and the Parliamentary 

Portfolio and Select Committees;
• Feedback obtained from our key stakeholders during the course of 

the year; and
• Media coverage during the year.
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Company Overview
What we do for business

CEF SOC Ltd is a national energy utility with a focus on oil, gas, coal and 
renewable energy options. The company derives its mandate primarily 
from the Central Energy Fund Act No. 38 of 1977.

COAL

GTL & OIL STRATEGIC OIL STOCKS AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE

PROMOTION AND 
LICENSING FOR OIL 
HYDROCARBONS INVESTMENT IN THE 

MOZAMBIQUE - 
SOUTH AFRICA GAS 

PIPELINE

COAL MINING 
CURRENTLY IN 
MPUMALANGA

LANDFILL GAS

CONCENTRATED 
SOLAR POWER

SOLAR WATER
HEATERS POTENTIAL MANUFACTURE OF 

PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS

FOSSIL FUELS

RENEWABLE
ENERGY

OIL AND GAS
GAS 

INFRASTRUCTURE

CLEAN ENERGY
DIVISION

Each of the subsidiaries within the Group operates within a specific arena 
and with a specific mandate. In addition to wholly owned subsidiaries the 
Group has minority interests in a small number of renewable energy 
ventures. The structure of the Group is depicted below.

Renewable energy activities of the holding company are managed through 
the Clean Energy Division (CED) and include the development of wholly-
owned projects (internally and through the ETA and CCE subsidiaries) and 
joint ventures with other parties (Biotherm, Darling Wind Power and 
Ener-G Joburg). Wholly owned subsidiaries operating in the fossil fuel 
space are: 

• PetroSA, which operates a gas-to-liquids refinery that uses 
indigenous gas as feedstock. It is also a partner in a producing oil 
field in Ghana and has an exploration interest in Equatorial Guinea. 

• SFF, which manages strategic crude oil infrastructure, strategic crude 
oil stocks, and provides oil pollution control services in Saldanha Bay.
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• iGas, which is a shareholder in the Mozambique-to-South Africa gas 
pipeline and is involved in the development of other gas delivery 
projects.

• African Exploration Mining and Finance Corporation, which is mining 
coal for supply to Eskom and is concluding feasibility studies on 
expanding its operations.

• The South African Agency for Promotion of Petroleum Exploration 
and Exploitation (PASA), which is the national petroleum and gas 
promotion and licensing agency.

CEF also administers the Equalisation Fund on behalf of the Department 
of Energy and the Mine Health and Safety Fund on behalf of the 
Department of Mineral Resources.
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Group Organisational Structure

Minister

CEF 
Including 

Clean Energy 
Division

Central 
Energy 
Fund

Associates Subsidiaries Funds 
managed

Darling
Wind 
Power
(49%)

Biotherm
(19%)

Ener-G 
Joburg
(29%)

TFST
(45%)

PetroSA

SFF (s21)

ETA
Energy

AEMFC

CEF Carbon
(Dormant) 

Equalisation
Fund

Mine Health 
& Safety 

Fund
PASA

CCE
(81.5%)

Sasda
(now closed)
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Vision, Mission and Values

The Vision of the CEF Group 

To be a leader in the financing, development and implementation of 
sustainable energy projects in Africa. 

The Mission of the CEF Group 
To grow the energy sector to be a catalyst for economic growth and 
poverty alleviation through security of supply, and access to acceptable 
and affordable energy in Africa.

The Values of the CEF Group 
In all the dealings with persons and entities and in its business 
relationships, the CEF Group is guided by the following values: 

Sustainability:  The CEF Group commits to conduct all its activities 
in an environmentally and financially responsible 
manner with zero harm to the environment and 
stakeholders. 

Integrity:   The CEF Group commits to conduct all its dealings 
in an ethical and honest manner against the highest 
corporate governance standards.

Professionalism: The CEF Group commits to uphold principles of 
efficiency, effectiveness and sound financial 
management.

Respect:   The CEF Group commits to treat all its stakeholders 
in a fair and transparent manner, while embracing the 
principles of “Ubuntu”.

Communication:  The CEF Group commits to communicate with all its 
stakeholders in an open, fair and timely manner. All 
conflicts will be resolved using the best conflict 
resolution methods within the relevant legal and 
statutory parameters.
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The Group Executive

The Group Executive structure at holding company level is set out in the 
organogram below

Group 
CEO

Group 
Finance

Group
Corporate
Planning

Group
Corporate
Services

Group
Risk & 

Compliance
Group IT

Clean 
Energy
Division

Group
Secretariat

Renewable
Energy

Energy
Efficiency

Other
Energy

Sources

Procurement Performance
Management

Human 
Resources

Logistics &
Facilities

Corporate
Affairs

Legal

Accounting

Treasury

Internal 
Audit

Stakeholder
Management
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Name Position Qualifications Areas of expertise

S Mncwango
Group Chief Executive 
Officer 

MBA; 
MSc Engineering

Corporate finance, 
corporate strategy, project 
financing, mergers and 
acquisitions

S Mthethwa
Group Chief Financial 
Officer

CA (SA); B.Compt 
(Hons); BCom; 
H Dip Acc/CTA

Executive finance 
management, project 
finance, treasury, credit risk 
management, taxation, 
planning and strategy

PC Masangane
GM: Clean Energy 
Division

PhD (Chemistry); 
MBA; BSc

Renewable energy project 
development, structuring 
and financing

CJ Cooper
Group Corporate 
Planner

D.Phil (Energy 
Studies); BSc (Hons) 
(Energy); BSc

Holistic energy sector 
assessment, energy 
efficiency

M de Pontes COO: iGas

Phd (Engineering); 
MEng (Chem); 
BSc (Hons) (Chem); 
BSc (Chemistry, 
Mathematics)

Company management, 
engineering and project 
management, engineering 
design, engineering 
research and development, 
Fischer-Tropsch 
technology, project 
financing and renewable 
energies

A Haffajee
Group Company 
Secretary

Admitted Attorney; 
ACIS; B Proc

Corporate governance, 
legal, contracts etc

T Khanyile
Acting Group Chief 
Audit Executive

CIA; BCom   
Internal audit, risk 
management, governance

H Masiza
Senior Manager: Legal 
Department

LLB; BA; HDip Tax
Commercial/corporate 
legal, governance, contract 
drafting and management

The Group Executive, aligned to the holding company organogram, 
comprises the following individuals:
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Key Stakeholders
Stakeholder How stakeholder relates to CEF

Method of engagement
with stakeholder

Stakeholders expectations
How CEF responds to 

stakeholders expectations
Stakeholders contribution 

to value creation

Employees Employment contracts with CEF

• Induction programme
• Regular internal meetings
• Internal workshops 
• Electronic communication
• Performance reviews

• A safe, stimulating and 
rewarding work environment

• Open communication with 
management

• Fair remuneration and benefits
• Opportunities for career and 

personal development
• Access to employee wellness 

programmes 

• Provide competitive 
remuneration and benefits 
packages

• Provide on-going training and 
education 

• Open communication between 
employees and management

• Employee wellness 
programmes 

Form the foundation of CEF Group 
business

Shareholder – 
Department of Energy

Only shareholder

• Regular meetings
• Electronic communication
• Teleconferences
• Support for DoE initiated 

programmes

• Return on investment through 
strategic growth 

• Sound risk management and 
exemplary governance 
practices

• Support for Government 
energy initiatives

• Provide strong leadership, 
which provides strategic 
direction

• Focus on good corporate 
governance and ethics

• Initiate or invest in energy 
projects, in support of 
Government objectives 

Give direction to CEF Group 
business

Companies in the Group

• Subsidiaries
• Associates 
• Joint ventures
• Administered funds

• Performance and governance 
meetings

• Performance audit reports

Mutually beneficial business 
opportunities in a responsive and 
respective manner

Offer support and governance to 
ensure the achievement of 
partnership goals

Leads to delivery and growth of 
the Group

Customers
Engage in economic transactions with 
the business

• Customer meetings
• Conferences
• Promotional and marketing 

campaigns
• Sales calls

Reliable supply of quality service 
that meets specifications

Produce high quality goods and 
services

Their business provides the basis 
for the Group’s continued growth

Suppliers
Supply goods and services to assist 
the company to achieve its goals

• Supplier performance contracts 
• Project meetings and site visits
• Surveys and feasibility studies
• Performance reports

• Opportunities to fairly present 
their credentials and be given 
an opportunity to compete for 
business

• Fair and reasonable contract 
terms and on time payment

• Provide an opportunity to 
compete for business on the 
basis of clear and transparent 
procedures and evaluation 
criteria

Provide valued expertise, support, 
products and services that 
strengthen CEF business and 
facilitate growth and expansion

Industry bodies
• Partnership
• Information sharing
• Guidance

• Membership of industry 
organisations

• Participation in meetings and 
initiatives

• Responsible and credible 
contribution to the collective 
business and industry voice

• Sharing experiences

Participate constructively in key 
business and industry initiatives

• Share expertise and 
experience

Media
Key vehicle for much of the company’s 
messages to the public

• Media releases
• Site visits
• Briefing sessions
• Corporate events
• Project launches

• Provide responsible and 
transparent information on 
business, societal and 
environmental issues

• Respond to queries timeously

• Develop robust relationship 
with the media

• Respond promptly and 
professionally to queries

• Share information to deepen 
understanding of Group 
business

Raise public awareness of CEF 
business strategy, products, 
services and contribution to 
society
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Key Stakeholders (continued)

Stakeholder How stakeholder relates to CEF
Method of engagement

with stakeholder
Stakeholders expectations

How CEF responds to 
stakeholders expectations

Stakeholders contribution  
to value creation

Communities 
Affected by or can affect CEF 
operations in their localities 

• Open communication through 
public meetings and engagement 
with representative structures

• Community outreach 
programmes

• Corporate Social Investment 
Initiatives

• Job creation
• Meaningful contribution to 

education and skills 
development

• Support and funding for  
worthy causes

• Solutions for affordable energy
• Full compliance with 

environmental regulations

• Undertake community 
development programmes in 
areas of need

• Partner with developmental 
role players to enhance the 
impact of CSI initiatives

• Build partnerships with 
representative structures

Support for development of CEF 
operations in their localities

Parliament Oversight over Group operations

• Oral presentations to responsible 
parliamentary committees 

• Regular meetings with 
parliamentary leadership

• Submit written reports 

• Demonstrate business growth
• Provide solutions to the 

country’s energy challenges

• Contribute to the country’s 
economy through job creation

• Manage existing energy 
entities and invest in new 
ventures in support of 
government priorities

Provide guidance and support 
necessary for business growth

Government and Regulatory 
Bodies

Formulate policy and regulations 
which govern the Group’s business 
operations

• Personal meetings
• Written communication
• Government engagement 

programmes
• Participation in government-

initiated platforms
• Participation in Government’s 

bilateral engagements with other 
countries

• Job creation
• Alleviation of poverty
• Contribute to the eradication of 

inequality
• Compliance with relevant 

legislation 
• Demonstrate commitment to 

transformation
• Innovative solutions in support 

of efforts to achieve security of 
energy supply

• Engage constructively on new 
policies and regulations 
affecting Group operations

• Comply with existing 
regulations

• Manage existing entities and 
invest in new ventures in a 
manner that contributes to the 
national objectives of job 
creation, poverty alleviation 
and reduction of inequality

Provide an enabling policy and 
regulatory framework

CEF Leaders Roundtable 2013
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Main purpose of engagements during the year focused on the following drivers: 

• To garner stakeholder support for all our major projects;
• To ensure that our activities are effectively communicated to the government and communities affected by 

our operations;
• To continuously develop and maintain positive and harmonious relationships; and
• To make inputs to government policies, in order to ensure a conducive legislative framework.
 
Central to the Group’s continued existence and success is the effective engagement on our corporate strategic 
direction as well as maintenance of positive and harmonious relationships with all stakeholders, through formal 
and informal interaction.
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Significant engagements during the 
year under review

We placed a particular focus on enhancing and refining our stakeholder 
engagement initiatives. Significant stakeholder engagements involved:
 
• Department of Energy (DoE)
• National Treasury (NT)
• Department of Mineral Resources (DMR)
• Parliamentary Portfolio and Select Committees
• KwaNonqaba Development Forum (KwaDF), Mossel Bay
• Shutdown contractors
• Revag Group

The DoE continues to play a pivotal role in guiding us towards the 
implementation of major projects, as well as in our approaches to 
resolving challenges. We engaged intensely with the DMR, with a view to 
substantially input into legislation that affects the hydrocarbons industry.
 
Engaging with the KwaDF has been necessitated by this community 
group’s heightened expectations for PetroSA to continuously provide 
employment and business opportunities to the local community. 
Alongside KwaDF, engagements with other neighbouring community 
groups, mostly artisans, were effectively dealt with and resolved 
successfully. 
 
In Mossel Bay, stakeholders are engaged through the Community 
Stakeholder Forum which meets quarterly. This Forum acts as the 
platform for our community engagements and assists us to address 
issues such as community development projects, employment, as well as 
business opportunities. 
 
We are involved in community development through Corporate Social 
Investment and Local Economic Development (LED) projects aligned with 
governments’ strategic objectives in the areas of education, health, 
environment, and socio-economic development. See page 74 for more 
information on our Corporate Social Investment initiatives.

Key Stakeholders (continued)

LEARN
We are involved  
in community 
development through 
Corporate Social 
Investment and Local 
Economic 
Development (LED) 
projects
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Monitoring the effectiveness of 
stakeholder engagement

The results of the annual multi-stakeholder survey conducted during the 
year under review show that our major operating subsidiary PetroSA has 
been successful in its relationship-building activities. The results indicate 
that there is a spontaneous 60% awareness level of PetroSA among a 
cross section of stakeholders throughout the country. 
 
Also worth noting is that 75.3% of respondents in the Eden District 
Municipality area had a positive perception of PetroSA, up from 69% a 
year ago. 

Media engagements
The media is an important stakeholder as well as an important tool to 
disseminate information. We, therefore, take great care to cultivate 
mutually beneficial relationships with journalists. In the year under review 
various Group operational, financial, environmental and social 
development issues were reported in various media platforms.
 
We have a long-standing partnership with Eden FM, a community radio 
station broadcasting in the Southern Cape. We sponsor Eden FM, which 
in turn allows us an opportunity to feature educational programmes and 
other community-related company activities on the radio station.

We have also forged important partnerships with local newspapers, 
particularly in the Mossel Bay area, where our major operations exist. In 
the period under review, PetroSA hosted a media briefing session wherein 
key media stakeholders were invited for a briefing on the company’s 
strategy and imperatives. Media tours to our GTL refinery and FA Platform 
are held annually.
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FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
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Failure to achieve 
targeted coal supply to 
Eskom

Failure to achieve 
targeted 25% liquid fuels 
market share by 2020

Failure to contribute to 
the development of South 
Africa’s onshore and 
offshore hydrocarbon 
resources

Inability to fulfil strategic 
stockpiling mandate with 
respect to finished 
products

Failure to undertake 
renewable energy projects

Ineffective Group HSE management systems

Strategic Risk Profile aligned 
to the CEF Group Strategy
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Insufficient availability of funding to execute key strategic projects

Failure to achieve targeted operating profit on a sustainable basis

Inability to sustain the Mossel Bay Refinery

Misalignment between the CEF Group and its internal and external stakeholders

Shortage and inadequate use of skill in critical areas 
required to execute the Group’s strategic objectives

Extreme

High

Moderate

Key: Level of Residual Risk
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Introduction
The purpose of the Enterprise Wide Risk Management (EWRM) Policy is 
to align CEF Group with risk management best practices and to ensure 
the consistent application of risk management throughout the Group. The 
EWRM policy is applicable to the entire CEF Group including subsidiary 
companies. The CEF Group Enterprise Risk Management Framework 
consists of six interrelated components viz.
 
• Establish the ERM context
• Objective setting
• Event identification
• Conduct risk assessment
• Develop risk response
• Track and monitor

A Group level workshop was held during the year, where, for the first time, 
a fully consolidated view of Group risk, aligned to Group strategy, was 
developed. Key risks facing the Group were identified and they relate to 
issues of financial sustainability and security of supply. While there are 
numerous initiatives at play to manage these issues there remains 
significant residual risk.

Strategic Risk Profile aligned to CEF Group Strategy

Risk name Control/treatment

Failure to achieve 
targeted operating profit 
on a sustainable basis

1. Active financial management
2. Cost optimisation programme
3. Re-focused scorecards (higher financial weighting)
4. Forward cover policies in place
5. Review hedging policy and strategy

Insufficient availability of 
funding to execute key 
strategic projects

1. Project prioritisation and financial evaluation by project (PAMC)
2. Engagement with Department of Energy and National Treasury on how to 

finance key projects
3. Enhance PAMC model to include standardisation of:

• Project hurdle rates and other measures
• Develop and refine capital allocation model
• Engage with Government to assist with the development of rehabilitation
     legislation
• Streamline and re-organisation of CEF Group

Inability to sustain the 
Mossel Bay refinery

1. Closer monitoring of Project Ikhwezi 
2. Complete pre-feasibility on Asset Development Project, on long term 

feedstock options
3. Complete LNG FEED study

Failure to contribute to 
the development of 
South Africa’s onshore 
and offshore 
hydrocarbon resources

1. Asset Management for West Coast and South Coast Blocks in SA
2. Make the case to DMR that state participation goes to CEF / PetroSA
3. Implement unconventional resources (including Shale Gas) stakeholder 

engagement plan
4. Successfully execute the outsourcing strategy for the Extended Continental 

Shelf Claim (ECSC)

Details of strategic risks
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Strategic Review
Group Chairperson’s Report

As is well-documented this has been a year of continuing global 
uncertainty, both in respect of the economy and geo-politics, as well as 
market volatility. This scenario has affected our businesses here at home, 
as much as it has impacted on businesses around the world. The fact that 
the Group has presented an acceptable set of results despite those 
conditions is testimony to the resilience of our operations. In the past year, 
the Group devoted much time and effort to restructuring, strategic focus 
and alignment of the company to consolidate accountability and 
management. Those interventions are now beginning to bear fruit as the 
Group is progressing towards becoming a much leaner and more focused 
business. This will allow us to focus even more than ever before on the 
core of our mandate – to assist the country in achieving security of energy 
supply and promoting developmental programmes.

This is a critical function as energy is one of the key drivers for the 
Government’s growth agenda, which seeks to create jobs and reduce 
poverty as we move towards 2030 and beyond. The Group CEO and the 
Group CFO discuss in more detail in the following chapters the strategic 
plans and the organisational systems that have been introduced to effect 
change in the Group as we continue to respond to our mandate, the 
changing economic environment and challenges brought about by 
structural misalignment.

It is my pleasure to present the Minister of Energy with the CEF Group’s 
Integrated Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele
Group Chairperson

GROUP
RESTRUCTURING

To learn more about the 

restructuring of the CEF 

Group, go to 
page 34
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The operational successes that are expected to flow from these new 
systems and structures are an indication that the Group is now better 
positioned to plan and utilise resources more effectively on new 
investments and projects. If the global turbulence of the past five years is 
an experience to draw from, then we can expect possible major economic 
challenges in the near future as well. 

Of particular concern to the Group are the constraints around sourcing 
feedstock for our operations and securing funding for new ventures. That 
notwithstanding, the Board is of the view that a solid organisational 
structure is in place and a strong foundation has been laid as we move 
forward to improve upon some of the weaknesses identified in our 
performance through internal committees and strategic sessions.

The Group will continue to grow and flourish, as evidenced by this year’s 
results, which were achieved under difficult trading conditions.

Finally, I would like to thank the Directors of the holding company, as well 
as the subsidiaries, for their commitment during the financial year. 

In addition, I would like to thank management and staff for their support 
and dedication in ensuring that we run an effective institution.
Our appreciation is also extended to the Minister, the Director-General, 
and the Department of Energy, including the Parliamentary Portfolio 
Committee on Energy, and the National Council of Provinces Select 
Committee on Economic and Business Development for their continued 
support which has played a vital role in helping us to achieve our 
objectives. 

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele
Group Chairperson

QUICK LINKS
Go to page 38 for the 
Group CEO’s Report.

Go to page 46 for the 
Group CFO’s report
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Board of Directors

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele
Group Chairperson

Mr. S Mncwango 
Group CEO

Mr. A Haffejee
Group Secretary

Ms. B Mabuza
Non-executive Director
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Ms. X Mtwa
Non-executive Director

Mr. L Mulaudzi
Non-executive Director

Mr. R Jawoodeen
Non-executive Director

Mr. R Boqo
Non-executive Director
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Group Strategic Objectives,  
KPIs and Challenges

• To contribute to national security of energy supply;
• To ensure SHEQ is a priority for the Group;
• To build financial sustainability;
• To build and maintain appropriate human capital; and
• To ensure effective Group oversight and coordinated planning.

Five strategic objectives were set for the Group in the year under review. 
Some are specific to individual subsidiaries, while others are generic to 
the Group. These are:

CEF Safety Inspectors
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Contribute to national security of 
energy supply

Deliver on the security of energy supply mandate through: 
• Increasing liquid fuels supply from the Group from the current 5% to 

at least 25% of national liquid fuels demand by 2020.
• Increasing the volume of coal supply through African Exploration to 

Eskom from the current 1.1 million tonnes in 2013/14 to 6.7 million 
tonnes by 2017/18, as the new Kusile Power station comes on line.

• To develop a strategic framework that will ensure that SFF is 
prepared to mitigate supply disruptions of crude oil and petroleum 
products.

• Investing in clean energy projects and active involvement in shale gas 
initiatives.

Financial sustainability
 
Be a financially sustainable Group, with a clear funding plan, for all 
projects and generate sufficient returns to sustain and grow the business 
over a 20-year horizon.

High performance organisation

The Group will become a High Performance Organisation (HPO) that 
ensures the attraction, development and retention of appropriate human 
capital. The Group will be an “Employer of Choice”.

Group alignment and coordinated 
planning

Achieve alignment across the Group on coordinated planning and 
reporting to maximise economic benefits from Group operations and be 
fully compliant with all reporting requirements. 

Health, safety and environmental 
compliance 
Ensure that SHEQ is a priority within the Group with zero fatalities, a low 
number of disabling injuries and minimal environmental incidents. 
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GROWGROW

Strategic priorities 
The strategic priorities for the Group fall into two broad categories:

The first is a set of projects and activities that will allow for management 
to stabilise the organisation. The second is a set of projects that will 
enhance the growth of the business.
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Refurbish Milnerton, 
Project Ikhwezi, 
short-term LNG, 

Solar Park Feasibility

Governance 
structures, systems 

and processes 
harmonised across 

the Group

Cost control, project 
assessments, 
NDP project 

coordination, skills 
alignment

BASELINE 
PROJECTS

GOVERNANCE 
AND SYSTEMS

Strategic Objectives, KPIs and Challenges (continued)
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Key strategic challenges
The Group’s mandate is to contribute to national security of energy supply 
through commercial operations, as well as developmental projects, which 
seek to alleviate energy poverty and support the development of new 
technologies.

Within the dual (commercial and developmental) mandate, the Group has 
to be competitive, grow towards financial sustainability and deliver 
superior shareholder value. This has to be done in the context of ongoing 
regulatory changes and adherence to new directives from the shareholder. 

The key immediate challenge for the Group is to identify and finalise a 
long-term feedstock supply solution for the Mossel Bay refinery.

The 2014/15 financial year will see CEF finalising the restructuring of the 
Group, particularly the hiving-off of African Exploration to the Department 
of Mineral Resources and integrating iGas into PetroSA.

This restructuring has to be done in a manner that maximises value to the 
Group, while ensuring the sustainability of the entities being restructured. 

The Group is also expected to support the Department of Energy, as it 
implements projects to respond to the precarious position of the 
electricity supply industry in the country. 

Financial sustainability 
There are three main challenges which impact upon the financial 
sustainability of the Group:
• The Group has historically been dependent on investment income 

and this was possible given its large cash balances, however this is 
not sustainable going forward. The cash balances will reduce over 
the planning period as investments in clean energy gain momentum 
and PetroSA invests in a number of projects to sustain its business. 
These projects will take time to generate positive cash flows for the 
Group.

• The hive-off of African Exploration, which is a growing business, will 
strip the Group of an asset which could have generated solid cash 
flows for many years.

• PetroSA’s profitability over the next five years will deteriorate as gas 
reserves continue to decline. 

In light of these challenges, the Group will have to prioritise projects that 
generate returns higher than benchmark IRR and with shorter payback 
periods.
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Feedstock for the Gas to Liquids 
(GTL) Refinery at Mossel Bay
The offshore Mossel Bay gas fields feeding the GTL refinery, which started 
production in 1992, reached a peak of gas production in 2010 and 
subsequently declined in volumes produced. The commercially 
sustainable operation of the refinery depends critically on the maximum 
designed gas feed stream volumes.

The acquisition of new natural gas feed stocks for the refinery remains a 
key challenge, without which it can only operate below a commercial 
optimum. While gas supply is expected from Project Ikhwezi from 
mid-2014, this is an interim feedstock supply solution which is expected 
to last until about 2020. Identifying a long-term sustainable and economic 
feedstock supply option for the refinery remains a key challenge for the 
Group in the near future.

Restructuring of the Group
The Minerals and Petroleum Resource Draft Development Bill of 2013 
provides for the responsibilities of the Petroleum Agency to be devolved 
to the Regional Offices of the Department of Mineral Resources and the 
Council for Geosciences. CEF will need to ensure that the transition is well 
managed and does not result in loss of critical skills and petroleum 
product data, which is critical for exploration licensing. 

CEF made significant investments in the development of African 
Exploration. The company has just started operations and following a 
ministerial directive, is now being hived-off from the Group to the 
Department of Mineral Resources.

The challenge is in ensuring that the hive-off is seamless, with African 
Exploration having a clear funding plan to secure future operations and for 
CEF to realise the commercial value that it created in the company. Issues 
emanating from a possible Competitions Commission concern are 
impacting on the finalisation of the process.

Implementing regulatory changes in 
a commercially sound manner
Changes to legislation, regulations and policies have had a significant 
impact on the business in the past. The most recent changes were the 
MPRDA Amendment Bill (alluded to above) and the Draft Strategic Stocks 
Policy issued by the Department of Energy for public comment. 

The Strategic Stocks policy is intended to ensure an uninterrupted supply 
of petroleum products within the country and makes reference to crude oil 
and refined products. It designates the Strategic Fuel Fund Association 
(SFF) as the agency mandated to procure and manage the Strategic 
Stocks for the country. The challenge facing the Group is how to implement 
the policy in a commercially sound manner. 
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Scarcity of talent and skills 
retention 

Scarcity of talent

The energy sector is characterised by a need for very specialised skills 
and experience. After a Skills Audit conducted in the 2013/14 financial 
year, the Group acknowledged that there is a challenge in respect of 
required specialised skills. There is an urgent need to recruit and develop 
appropriate skills in order to manage a sustainable and effective 
organisation.

Skills Retention
The retention of staff with scarce skills has been a challenge for the 
Group, as it is for many other organisations requiring highly trained and 
experienced individuals. The key objectives of the Group skills retention 
plan include: 
• Identifying, developing and retaining high potential and high 

performing employees;
• Developing and enriching human capital, taking into account both the 

employees’ and the Group’s needs on an on-going basis; and
• Creating a common language about the Group’s people’s capabilities 

and potential to ensure consistent and focused capacity building and 
career progression within the Group.

CEF Year End 2013
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Key Projects
The CEF Group is engaged in a number of new key projects. Some are at 
implementation stage, while others are still in feasibility or even pre-
feasibility stage. They are depicted in the following graphic:

• Project ikhwezi

• Project Irene

• Asset Development Plan

• Project Mthombo

• Milnerton upgrade

• Rompco loop line

• Vlakfontein extension

• Klippoortje

• T-project

• Ener-G Johannesburg

• Solar Park

• Extend Continental Shelf Claim Project
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Project Subsidiary Description Status
Link to  

Group strategy

Ikhwezi PetroSA Exploit FO gas field Being implemented Stabilise

Irene PetroSA Purchase downstream asset
Nearing financial 
close

Grow

Asset 
Development 
Plan

PetroSA Optimisation of GTL facility Pre-feasibility Stabilise

Mthombo PetroSA World-scale oil refinery Pre-feasibility Grow

Rompco loop 
line

iGas
Additional pipeline as part of the 
Rompco asset

Being implemented Grow

Vlakfontein 
extension

African Exploration Expansion of existing coal mine Feasibility Stabilise

Klippoortje African Exploration New coal mine Pre- feasibility Grow

T-Project African Exploration New coal and torbanite mine Pre-feasibility Grow

Milnerton 
upgrade

SFF Refurbish storage tanks Feasibility Stabilise

Ener-G 
Johannesburg

CEF SOC Landfill gas project Implement Grow

Solar Park CEF SOC
Development of a 5GW Solar 
Park

Feasibility 
completed

Grow

Extended 
Continental 
Shelf Claim

PASA
Extend South African marine 
reserve

Ready for final 
defense of the 
claim at the UN

Strategic for 
South Africa
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Performance Review
Group CEO’s Report

The purpose of this review is also to provide additional insight into the 
strategic trajectory of the Group in the context of the environment in 
which we operate. This report should be read in conjunction with the 
detailed Group Chief Financial Officer’s report from pages 46 to 57, as 
well as the annual financial statements presented on pages 109 to 211.
The primary mandate of the CEF Group is to develop energy solutions to 
meet the needs of South Africa, the Southern African Development 
Community and the sub-Saharan region – including oil, gas, electrical 
power, low-smoke fuels, biomass and renewable energy sources.

The Group also manages the operation and development of the oil and 
gas assets of the South African Government. We are committed to playing 
a major role in growing the energy sector to be a catalyst for economic 
growth and poverty alleviation through security of supply and access to 
affordable energy.

I am pleased to present this integrated report to our stakeholders, outlining 
a broad overview of what the CEF Group does, its performance against  
set targets, key achievements for the year, sustainable development, 
governance and the consolidated annual financial statements. 

Mr. S Mncwango
Group CEO
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Financial Performance

Amid the tough economic circumstances in which our Group operates, 
the Group maintained a positive total assets to total liabilities ratio. 

Feedstock constraints continue to haunt the Group, and a permanent 
solution in the form of Project Ikhwezi  has not yet come to fruition. This 
resulted in a negative assessment of the recoverability of the current value 
of the GTL facility in Mossel Bay. The asset therefore had to be revalued 
in line with the expected returns to be generated from for the remainder of 
its useful life to the CEF Group.

The reduced off-take from Eskom has, in the current financial year, 
reduced anticipated revenues to be collected from our coal producing 
assets by twenty two percent.

The backwardation of the crude oil market over the past couple of years, 
coupled with the weakening Rand, impacted negatively on the attraction 
of new business, as well as the retention of current contracts for our 
crude oil storage business. 

The business had to sustain itself on a much reduced revenue base 
during the current financial year, however our total bottom line has 
increased from the prior financial year due to a rise in inflation which 
affects general prices of goods and services procured by the Group. 

The Group generated higher revenues than in the previous financial year, 
with a growth in revenue of eleven percent coupled with growth in 
margins of up to fourteen percent. Our total costs for the financial year 
have risen significantly included in the total costs for the year is the 
impairment loss recognised for the GTL refinery in Mossel Bay.

The culmination of the above event saw a significant drop in the Group’s 
profit to a loss of R1.4 billion for the 2013/14 financial year.

The year will go down as having been a particularly challenging but 
rewarding year, in which bold strategic decisions were taken and are 
being implemented. These decisions will undoubtedly contribute to future 
positive financial results. 

Strategic and operational developments

As part of the broader objective to increase liquid fuels supply from the 
Group to about twenty five percent of the national demand, we have 
submitted a proposal regarding the purchase of a downstream business 
through PetroSA. 

We are continuing to hold negotiations in pursuit of this opportunity.
In our promises to continue to support the Department of Energy on the 
Renewable and Clean Energy agenda, I am pleased to report that the 
feasibility studies for the 5GW Solar Park to be housed in the Northern 
Cape Province have been completed and reviewed, and the next step is 
to submit the report for review and approval by Cabinet.   
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The Group re-affirmed its commitment to support the National 
Development Plan (NDP) and received support from the Ministry in terms 
of its efforts to assist the Group in achieving that optimal alignment. We 
continue to review the business case for Project Mthombo which is a key 
component of critical infrastructure projects in the Eastern Cape, as 
contained in the NDP. This refinery is set to become a major engine for 
economic development in the Province. Discussions between the partners 
for the development of the feasibility study for the project are underway.

Project Ikhwezi  is aimed at ensuring the sustainability of feedstock supply 
into the GTL refinery in Mossel Bay. The second development of well 
F-010 has reached a total depth of 5 718 metres and good quality gas 
bearing sandstone has been intersected.

We continue to expand on our current coal assets and we have reached a 
firm decision on the expansion of our Vlakfontein Mine which will double 
the current production capacity by 2017. We have further identified good 
coal quality in  Klippoortje, which is situated about 40 kilometres from the 
Vlakfontein Mine. This is an opportunity to increase our current production 
and sales.

The Group operates in a capital intensive environment, requiring large 
capital contributions. The exercise to develop a sound funding plan 
supported by a solid investment plan comprising projects that will increase 
our current footprint while providing sustainable returns continues to be 
high priority and is a standing matter arising at the Project Finance and 
Investment Committee.

Performance Review (continued)
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I was privileged to lead various engagements with stakeholders and 
customers to address different business issues. From these 
engagements, it was evident that the stakeholders have confidence in the 
CEF Group of Companies. We continue to put customer satisfaction at 
the top of our priority list and we will continue to address areas requiring 
improvement so as to enable the Group to continue to deliver a 
satisfactory service to our stakeholders.

Environmental friendliness

We consider ourselves an environmentally friendly business and continue 
to be very vigilant in respect of minimising the impact of our operations on 
our surroundings. In this regard, I remain confident and wish to take this 
opportunity to applaud the teams involved, as there were no oil spills in 
the year under review and fewer reportable environmental incidents than 
during previous periods. It is also particularly pleasing to report that there 
were no fatalities in our operations in the year under review.

The Group’s carbon footprint and the assessment of reduction options 
available have been completed as part of our broader efforts to be a 
business that is even more planet-friendly. As business managers, we 
make every endeavour to create a safe, secure and productive work 
environment for our people. In this respect, we are committed to zero 
harm in all our activities.

Governance and the Group structures

It is worth noting that the Minerals and Petroleum Resources 
Development Act (MPRDA) Amendment Bill has now been passed by 
both the National Assembly and the National Council of Provinces. In 
terms of its provisions, the Petroleum Agency of South Africa (PASA) 
which is part of the Group will be dissolved. Its responsibilities and 
functions will be split between the regional managers of the Department 
of Mineral Resources and the Council for Geoscience.

The South African Supplier Development Agency (SASDA), another Group 
subsidiary, closed its operations as of 28 February 2014, owing to the 
funding challenges that the entity had been experiencing since its 
establishment.

Although we are beginning to turn the business around following the 
implementation of our revised strategies, hard work still lies ahead and we 
expect our plans to bear even more fruit in the near term.

In the year under review we also embarked on a Group-wide exercise to 
review all our key governance structures, with the intention to align them. 
This, together with the reduced number of subsidiaries, will result in a 
higher and more efficient collaboration and synergy between the Group 
companies and the holding company.
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Into the future

The Group will continue to pursue market opportunities across its 
strategic markets with a defined level of focus on the entire African 
continent. 

We will continue delivering on our mandate to contribute to the national 
security of energy supply through commercial operations, as well as 
developmental projects which seek to alleviate energy poverty and 
support the development of new technologies.

Appreciation

I express my utmost gratitude to the Executive Management within the 
Group and to all employees for their overwhelming commitment to the 
implementation of our objectives during the challenging financial year 
under review. This is a testimony of the enthusiasm and willingness to 
embrace the values of the CEF Group. I am proud to lead and be 
associated with an institution whose employees have collectively shown 
notable resilience, selflessness and drive to make a difference despite the 
difficult operating environment within our diverse industries.

I am saddened by the loss of our Group Executive for Corporate Services, 
Mrs. Sindisiwe Zandile June Sithole, who passed away shortly before the 
close of the financial year. She will be truly missed, as she brought a 
wealth of strategic leadership, experience and humanity to her role.

I thank the CEF Group Board of Directors for their support in ensuring that 
we remain committed to delivering on our mandate as promised to our 
shareholder. My gratitude also goes to our Shareholder, represented by 
the Minister of Energy, for the guidance during these challenging times. I 
would like to recognise the Portfolio Committee on Energy and the Select 
Committee on Economic and Business Development for the continued 
interest in the role and activities of the Group.

Mr. S Mncwango
Group CEO
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Performance against 
Objectives

Indicator Target Status

Objective 1: Security of supply

Volume of liquid fuel 
supplied to the South 
African market

PetroSA will achieve target volumes 
by milestone dates as defined in their 
strategic plan

Below target and therefore not 
achieved. Production (and hence 
supply) for the year was below 
target due to delays in the plant 
recommissioning following the 
maintenance shut down, and in gas 
flows from Ikhwezi not materialising

Strategic stock and 
product held by SFF

SFF will maintain and build strategic 
stock as defined in the confidential 
strategic stock plan

Achieved. The current strategic 
stock level is 10.269 million barrels 
with losses less than the maximum 
allowed

Coal production
AEMFC will produce 1.5 million tons of 
coal during the year ended 31 March 
2014

Not achieved. Sales declined 
significantly below target from the 
third quarter onwards as Eskom cut 
back on purchases

Renewable projects

Progress to meet milestones as set 
out in the approved CED project 
operational plan, reported quarterly to 
PAMC

Partially achieved. The Solar Park 
project had some slippage 
compared to the original deadlines, 
but this was due to an externally 
required addition to the scope.
One of the other projects did not 
fully meet time-bound targets

Objective 2: SHEQ

Number of fatalities 
from operations in the 
Group

Zero Achieved - no fatalities

Disabling injuries
Less than 0.4 per 200 000 man-hours 
across the Group

Not achieved. Injury rate above 0.4 
per 200 000 man hours

Reportable 
Environmental 
incidents

No more than 12 incidents during the 
year by PetroSA. No tier 2 or 3 oil spill 
incidents under SFF operations

Achieved. PetroSA incidents for the 
year was 9 again a target of 12. No 
spills reported by SFF

Carbon emissions

Carbon emissions for the Group will 
be benchmarked by 31 March 2014, 
after which a plan to reduce emissions 
with annual targets will be developed 
for implementation in financial year
2015 onwards

Not achieved. The carbon footprint 
and assessment of reduction 
options have both been completed 
but no targets were explicitly set
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Indicator Target Status

Objective 3: Financial

Profit margins
Entities operating in the commercial 
space to achieve margins as set out in 
their individual corporate plans

Achieved. 
Profit margins for both PetroSA and 
AEMFC are above target for the year

Operating costs
Operating costs for CEF SOC to be 
controlled as per the individual 
corporate plan

Achieved. Operating costs are 
contained below budget for the year

Objective 4: Human capital and transformation

Comprehensive HR 
strategy and 
implementation plan

A comprehensive HR Strategy is to be 
completed for the holding company by 
30 June 2013 for tabling at the next 
HR subcommittee, with an 
implementation plan completed by 
30 September 2013 for tabling at the 
next HR subcommittee

Both targets have been achieved

Objective 5: Oversight and governance

Board approved 
mergers and closures 
completed save where 
contractual obligations 
remain

Current reorganisation plan for AEMFC 
and iGas is fully concluded by 
30 September 2013

Behind schedule but in progress, 
delayed due to complexity of the 
transactions. Not achieved

Structures for Group 
governance and 
oversight in place and 
operational

The CEO Forum is operational by end 
Quarter 1

This objective has been achieved

At year-end a total of five objectives were not met and one was partially achieved. Targets that were not or partially 
achieved are as follows:

 ✔ The hiving off of AEMFC and iGas were not completed as anticipated.
 ✔ Coal sales by AEMFC were below target due to Eskom’s offtake being severely curtailed from quarter 3 onwards.
 ✔ PetroSA was not able to meet production volume targets due to delays in recommissioning the Mossel Bay plant 

following the maintenance shutdown and the delay in flowing Ikhwezi gas.
 ✔ The Disabling Injury frequency Rate was higher than the target.
 ✔ While the carbon footprint was completed targets for reductions were not sufficiently explicit.
 ✔ The target that was partially achieved relates to a renewable energy project within a basket of activities where 

time-based targets were not achieved.
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Financial Review
Group CFO’s Report

Highlights for the 2013/14 financial year 

 ✔ Revenue up by 10.8% to R21.56 billion.
 ✔ Gross profit margin improved to 13%.
 ✔ Net profit after tax of R2 billion (excluding once-off impairment).
 ✔ PetroSA Ghana contributing R507 million to the Group’s profit. 
 ✔ Cash balances of R10.9 billion.

Introduction

The 2013/14 financial year has been challenging, especially in the light of
pressure on sourcing raw materials to sustain our business and the 
continued volatile macroeconomic environment. During the year, we 
refined our strategy, which was critical for delivery on our mandate to 
ensure a long-term sustainable business with world class people and 
processes.

This review is intended to provide our stakeholders with further insight
into the financial performance of the Group. (Please refer to our full 
financial statements.)

Mr. S Mthethwa
Group CFO
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Financial risks to the business

The world is still recovering from the global economic crisis of 2008. 
Although we have seen economic recovery in most of the major 
economies, the growth remains fragile and unbalanced. Economic 
prospects within South Africa remain challenging at best. The Group is 
faced with the following financial risks which are explained in detail below:

Crude oil prices and exchange rate

The Brent Crude Oil price has remained extremely volatile over the past 
five years; substantial increases were due to the strained macroeconomic 
situation globally as referred to earlier. The Brent Crude Oil price 
increased from an average of USD 80/barrel in 2009 to an average of 
USD 109/ barrel in the 2013/14 financial year; this represents a 36% 
increase over the past five years and has had a substantially positive 
impact on our selling price of fuel and related products.

Figure 1: Crude oil price vs. exchange rate

Over and above the volatility of Brent Crude Oil pricing, the second main 
factor determining our selling price is the ZAR/USD exchange rate. On 
average, the Rand continued to depreciate against its major trading 
currencies during the financial year with the ZAR/USD exchange rate 
weakening by 18% in comparison to the 17% seen in the previous 
financial year. The rand continued its downward spiral and averaged 
around R10.13/USD for the year. Whilst this had a major positive impact 
on Group’s revenue for the year, it also led to increased escalation of 
costs for capital projects and imported feedstock. 

The devaluation of the currency also improves results where foreign 
investments trading in a foreign currency are consolidated into the 
Group’s results. Looking at PetroSA Ghana as an example, using their 
current financial year’s net profit, the currency devaluation resulted in 
R106 million additional profit for the Group based on the difference in 
exchange rate between 2012/13 and 2013/14.
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Financial Review (continued)

Long term feedstock solution

The Group’s most critical challenge is the ability to source feedstock for 
our Gas to Liquids (GTL) facility at Mossel Bay. The offshore Mossel Bay 
gas fields feeding the GTL Refinery, which started production in 1992, 
reached the peak of gas production in 2010 and subsequently saw a 
decline in volumes produced. The commercial sustainability of the refinery 
depends critically on the maximum designed gas feed stream volumes. 

To date, R7.4 billion has been spent on the Ikhwezi  project in order to find 
alternative natural gas wells, and a further R4.5 billion is budgeted for the 
coming financial year. While gas is expected from the project by October 
2014, the project is not without risks, once complete it will provide gas 
until 2020. Identifying long-term sustainable feedstock for the refinery 
remains a key challenge for the Group in the 2014/15 financial year. 

Group funding

Our balance sheet remains strong, despite substantial capital investments 
made over the last few years to ensure sustainability of the Group. Cash 
flows generated within the business are positive, but are not adequate for 
our funding requirements going forward. These funding requirements 
include the investment in downstream assets, capacity increase in AEMFC 
and investments in new Clean Energy projects.

A concerted effort is being made by the Group to ensure that a funding 
plan is put in place. This includes improving our financial results and 
conversations with various stakeholders, including our shareholder and 
financial institutions regarding funding requirements and funding options 
for all projects. 

Delivering on capital projects and investments

The commodity business is generally a long-term business that is highly 
capital intensive with slow initial cash inflows. Furthermore, the 
exploration of new natural resources is a delicate process that could either 
be positive or negative with the initial investment tied up over a long 
period of time prior to production.

In order to ensure sustainability of the Group while adding value to 
stakeholders, it is of utmost importance that we ensure adequate 
emphasis on the selection of value-adding projects; the minimising of the 
timeline from acceptance to production and, most importantly, that the 
projects deliver adequate returns based on stakeholder expectations.
We have designed a rigorous vetting process of investments in order to 
ensure that we grow our business to be financially sustainable in the long 
term. 
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3. Financial performance

Figure 2: Turnover

Figure 3: Operating income
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Figure4: Operating profit/net profit margin
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Total comprehensive income/loss decreased from R1.07 billion profit in 
2013 to a loss of R1.43 billion in 2014. The loss is mainly attributable to 
once off impairment loss at the GTL facility in Mossel Bay of R3.4 billion. 
This was based on the hydrocarbon reserves outlook that was revised 
downwards, to account for delays and increased capital costs of the 
Ikhwezi  field development project. If this is excluded the Group reported 
a profit of R2 billion which was boosted by PetroSA Ghana, favourable 
ZAR/USD exchange rate and higher Brent Crude Oil prices. 

Gross Margins remained under pressure during the financial year under 
review, but improved slightly from 10.5% to 13.4%. The shortage of gas 
at our GTL facility and the subsequent import of condensate continues to 
put pressure on margins. Net profit and operating profit margins were 
negatively impacted by the impairment, discussed above.

The key indicators of our operational performance during the year are as 
follows:

The Group’s financial position remains healthy with no gearing on net 
basis, the liquidity ratio is 3,33 times which means short term liabilities are 
adequately covered by short term liquid assets. 

Capital expenditure over the last three years has been funded from 
internal resources hence the negative free cash flow and reduction in cash 
balances during this period. Most of this expenditure relate to the 
upstream gas exploration (Project Ikhwezi) which due to its nature can 
only be funded from either equity injection or cash from operations.

Financial Review (continued)

2014
R’000

% change
2013

R’000
% change

2012
R’000

Revenue 21 556 166 10.8% 19 453 098 29.8% 14 988 686

Gross profit 2 896 005 41.1% 2 051 807 -43.4% 3 623 788

Gross profit margin % 13.4% 27.4% 10.5% -56.4% 24.2%

Operating expenses 5 512 719 -160.9% 2 112 863 1.2% 2 138 818

Operating profit -1 414 991 -295.6% 723 508 -56.0% 1 646 097

Operating profit margin % -6.6% -276.5% 3.7% -42.8% 6.5%

Net profit after tax -1 432 145 -233.8% 1 070 205 -57.0% 2 487 640

Net profit margin % -6.6% -220.8% 5.5% -54.5% 12.1%

Net interest received/(paid) -102 231 -164.6% 158 289 -78.3% 727 864

Return on equity % -5.1% -238.4% 3.7% -46.0% 6.9%

Liquidity ratio 3.33 -10.4% 3.72 -55.7% 8.39

Cash received from operations 2 941 164 -48.2% 5 674 064 153.4% 2 239 079

Capital expenditure 5 298 925 40.6% 8 915 733 -1 228.9% 670 924

Free cash flow -1 709 879 78.9% -8 115 273 -524.5% 1 911 645

Cash balances 10 953 250 -16.2% 13 071 430 -31.7% 19 144 932
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Figure 5: Net cash generated from operations

Figure 6: Cash balances

Figure 7: Free cash flow generated
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Cash reserves were reduced by R2.1 billion to R10.9 billion, although 
R2.9 billion was generated from operations, R4.6 billion was spent on 
capital expenditure. During the period under review, free cash flow was a 
negative of R1.7 billion due to the capital expenditure already discussed. 
Although this was an improvement compared to a negative free cash flow 
of R8 billion in the previous financial year, it is still imperative that we 
manage free cash flow going forward.

Financial Review (continued)
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Segmental information on main entities within 
the Group 

PetroSA

2014
R’000

%
change

2013
R’000

Revenue 21 199 294 12.3% 18 880 815

Gross profit 2 674 699 36.4% 1 960 656

Gross profit margin % 12.6% 2.2% 10.4%

Operating expenses 5 056 222 -194.4% 1 717 602

Operating profit -1 223 775 -296.5% 622 818

Operating profit margin % -5.8% -9.1% 3.3%

Net profit after tax -1 648 711 -369.3% 612 149

Net profit margin % -7.8% -11.0% 3.2%

Net interest received/(paid) -364 807 -334.1% -84 039

Return on equity % -8.9% -391.3% 3.1%

Liquidity ratio 2.42 -15.1% 2.85

Cash received from operations 2 995 754 -20.0% 3 746 315

Capital expenditure 5 265 821 -51.1% 3 485 164

Free cash flow -1 769 650 -69.9% -5 888 076

Cash balances 5 132 248 -31.0% 7 442 483

Despite being under severe pressure to secure feedstock for the GTL 
facility, PetroSA delivered acceptable results. A net loss of R1.6 billion 
was recorded for the period under review, mainly due to an impairment of 
assets at the GTL facility of R3.4 billion. The improved performance of 
PetroSA Ghana, the ZAR/USD exchange rate and a favourable Brent 
Crude Oil price ameliorated the substantial impairment.

The balance sheet remains under pressure as a result of substantial cash 
utilised in sustaining the business. Although cash generated from 
operations was R3.0 billion, net capital expenditure (cash component) of 
R4.3 billion contributed to a R2.3 billion drop in cash balances. Although 
liquidity is healthy for the period under review, continuous capital 
expenditure to ensure sustainability and the possible purchase of 
downstream assets will put pressure on liquidity going forward.

First gas from Project Ikhwezi is expected in October 2014 which will 
sustain the business until 2020. We have already begun extensive work 
on developing a long-term solution for the GTL facility through an Asset 
Development programme; and this should be finalised during the 2014/15 
financial year.
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AEMFC’s results for the year under review were below expectations. A 
reduction in offtake from Eskom reduced the revenue for the period by 
22% compared to the previous year; this together with the 14% increase 
in operating expenses resulted in net profit after tax reducing to 
R33.6 million (R87 million in 2013).

Cash generated from operations also reduced by R68 million on the back 
of the lower profit realised. The business however, remains healthy, 
additional efforts will be undertaken during the next year in order to 
contain the fixed costs of the business and to improve cash generation. 

2014
R’000

%
change

2013
R’000

Revenue 230 073 -22.0% 295 043

Gross profit 87 525 -37.7% 140 439

Gross profit margin % 38.0% -9.6% 47.6%

Operating expenses 96 887 -13.8% 85 122

Operating profit 46 012 -58.6% 111 123

Operating profit margin % 20.0% -17.7% 37.7%

Net profit after tax 33 550 -61.3% 86 800

Net profit margin % 14.6% -14.8% 29.4%

Net interest received/(paid) 4 448 556.0% 678

Return on equity % 65.6% -430.2% 495.8%

Liquidity ratio 2.69 15.0% 2.34

Cash received from operations 68 086 -49.9% 135 917

Capital expenditure 9 337 2.1% 9 533

Free cash flow 12 267 -89.1% 112 147

Cash balances 92 054 14.1% 80 656

Financial Review (continued)

AEMFC
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iGas

2014
R’000

%
change

2013
R’000

Dividend Received 115 005 15.0% 100 000

Operating expenses 14 576 3.3% 15 069

Operating profit 100 429 18.2% 84 931

Operating profit margin % 87.3% 2.4% 84.9%

Net profit after tax 99 694 25.9% 79 212

Net profit margin % 86.7% 7.5% 79.2%

Net interest received/(paid) -735 87.1% -5 719

Return on equity % 5.7% 0.9% 4.8%

Liquidity ratio 3.16 25.0% 2.53

Cash received from operations 100 798 28.8% 78 244

Capital expenditure 20 0.0% -

Free cash flow 100 780 28.8% 78 244

Cash balances 197 156 26.8% 155 445

iGas’ main business is the 25% investment in Rompco pipeline, the other 
shareholders are Sasol and the government of Mozambique. iGas remains 
a well-managed, long-term sustainable asset with steady and reliable 
growth prospects. 

Dividends received from Rompco increased by 15% to R115 million for 
the period under review. Forecasts indicate that the dividend streams will 
be steady going forward and will increase annually. Although the return on 
equity is quite low, it should be noted that the equity includes the fact that 
our investment is at fair value and not at initial equity contribution. The 
return on equity, excluding the fair value reserve, is 28.3%. Liquidity 
remains healthy with strong cash flows generated. Free cash flow for the 
period was R100 million. Rompco has major expansion plans over the 
next few years and these will be financed entirely through project 
financing.
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SFF is a non-profit company which is expected to at least break even. The 
results for the year are therefore acceptable. The backwardation of the 
crude oil market over the past couple of years, coupled with the 
weakening Rand, impacted negatively on the attraction of new business, 
as well as the retention of current contracts for our crude oil storage 
business. The company remains in a healthy financial position with cash 
balances of R1.8 billion. The focus in the 2014/15 will be cost containment 
and actively marketing the surplus storage capacity for additional revenue.

2014
R’000

%
change

2013
R’000

Revenue 97 034 -57.3% 227 173

Gross profit 97 034 -57.3% 227 173

Gross profit margin % 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Operating expenses 165 411 -13.2% 146 184

Operating profit -62 008 -175.6% 82 023

Operating profit margin % -63.9% -100.0% 36.1%

Net profit after tax 19 012 -87.7% 154 086

Net profit margin % 19.6% -48.2% 67.8%

Net interest received/(paid) 81 020 12.4% 72 063

Return on equity % 0.4% -2.9% 3.3%

Liquidity ratio 14.71 10.5% 13.31

Cash received from operations 18 150 102.1% -846 929

Capital expenditure 716 97.9% 33 500

Free cash flow 17 462 102.0% -880 417

Cash balances 1 822 518 1.0% 1 805 056

Financial Review (continued)

SFF
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Financial priorities going forward

Whilst the year under review remained challenging at best, the Group rose 
to the challenge and produced acceptable results. We do however 
recognise the fact that the coming year is likely to be challenging. 
Managing cash and liquidity and finding the right balance between 
sustainability, maintenance and growth will be critical for success.

Our strategy for the year ahead focuses on achieving our mandate as a 
group. In order to improve our results and financial position, we will
have to focus on optimising some fundamental operating performance 
parameters. This will ensure that our business is financially self 
sustainable over the long-term, while delivering on our mandate from our 
shareholder, the Government.

What is clear is that we will have to build a long term world class business 
in order to provide sufficient capital to fund our mandate and growth over 
the long term. Critical areas that we will focus on in the next financial year 
are the following:

Cost optimisation: We have initiated a Business Optimisation and 
Efficiency Programme, with the aim of reducing our operating costs 
across the Group. This is critical in our effort to improve profitability and 
cash flow generation. 

Investments: Improved processes, systems and rigorous scanning of all 
investments, whether capital or business ventures, is of utmost 
importance in order to improve our return on capital and support our 
shareholder in implementation of projects which are of strategic 
importance to the country.

Conclusion

It is appropriate to acknowledge all the effort that our people have put in 
during the financial year under review. We do realise that the next financial 
year - with all the uncertainties, the unknowns and the amount of effort 
that is required to continuously improve our business - will take a lot of 
effort and energy.

We do however believe that our team will be able to achieve all the 
strategies and objectives set out to make this business successful.

I thank you.

Mr. S Mthethwa
Group CFO
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Subsidiary and  
Operations Review

Highlights

 ✔ No fatalities during the year.
 ✔ Environmental incidents minimised.
 ✔ All transformation targets met.
 ✔ PetroSA Ghana reported a profit of USD 50 million.
 ✔ Cash generated from operations of R2.9 billion.
 ✔ ISO 9001 certified.

Concerns

 ✔ Declining cash reserves due to investment in Project Ikhwezi.
 ✔ Long-term feedstock for the GTL Refinery in Mossel Bay.
 ✔ Funding for future projects.
 ✔ Declining profitability. 

Future

 ✔ First gas from Project Ikhwezi expected in October 2014.
 ✔ Acquisition of downstream assets.
 ✔ Further growth from PetroSA Ghana.
 ✔ Funding plan for projects.

Sustaining the business

The main focus of the company remains that of sustaining the business, 
as a result of the declining gas reserves at our GTL facility in Mossel Bay. 
First gas from Project Ikhwezi is expected by October 2014, it must 
however be noted this gas will sustain the refinery until 2020.

A dedicated team is sculpting the future looking at various avenues to 
ensure the financial sustainability of the facility once the gas from our 
fields has been depleted. In line with securing future financial sustainability  
we are also looking at internal operations in order minimise their 
cost base.

Ms. N Nokwe-Macamo
President and CEO – PetroSA

as a result of the declining gas reserves at our GTL facility in Mossel Bay. 
First gas from Project Ikhwezi is expected by October 2014, it must 
however be noted this gas will sustain the refinery until 2020.

A dedicated team is sculpting the future looking at various avenues to 
ensure the financial sustainability of the facility once the gas from our 
fields has been depleted. In line with securing future financial sustainability  
we are also looking at internal operations in order minimise their 
cost base.

Ms. N Nokwe-Macamo
President and CEO – PetroSA



Transformation and stakeholders

We are pleased with our performance with regards to transformation. 
Some 30% of the company’s workforce is made up of women whilst 
people with disabilities constitute 2%. With reference to preferential 
procurement, 75% of discretionary spend was bought from level 1 to 
level 3 entities during the period under review. Sales to BEE companies 
also were above target for the period. Customers and the local 
municipality rated our at 66.9% with regards to customer satisfaction.

Internal business processes

No fatalities were recorded during the period under review. 

A substantial improvement was also achieved with regards to 
environmental incidents by recording only nine for the period under 
review. ISO 9001 was also achieved and included two depots. Medicals 
were performed on 90.4% of the staff complement to ensure their 
optimal health.
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Subsidiary and Operations Review (continued)

Highlights

 ✔ No fatalities.
 ✔ No oil spills or containment.
 ✔ Strategic stocks losses at 0.32%.
 ✔ Saldanha facility received OHSA18001, ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 

certification.

Concerns

 ✔ Declining revenue whilst corporate overheads are increasing.
 ✔ Funding model for additional strategic stocks.

Future

 ✔ Efforts to utilise surplus capacity to generate additional revenue.
 ✔ Cost optimisation.
 ✔ Funding options for strategic stocks need to be finalised.

Sustaining the business

As a result of the backwardation of the market since 2011 revenues have 
been affected negatively during the period under review. Strategies have 
been put in place in order to establish additional revenue streams. 
A turnaround plan has been developed to manage expenses in line 
with revenue. 

With the publication of the draft Strategic Stocks policy SFF is now 
required to keep “white” product in addition to crude oil. This will require 
additional funding which is currently not available. Working with the 
shareholder we hope to resolve this issue during the 2014/15 
financial year.

Delivering on our mandate

A new crisis management framework was developed and approved by the 
Board. The main aim is to ensure SFF’s readiness in case of an energy 
crisis to ensure that the company delivers on its mandate. The 
implementation of various quality control systems has enhanced our crisis 
management framework.

Amb. B Gila 
CEO – SFF



Internal business processes

A comprehensive business risk framework was implemented to improve 
corporate governance. Management has also committed itself to conduct 
operations in such a manner that it will not harm the environment or any 
of our stakeholders. 

All operational targets were met.
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Subsidiary and Operations Review (continued)

Highlights

 ✔ No fatalities.
 ✔ Disabling injury rate better than target.
 ✔ Feasibility study on the expansion of the Vlakfontein mine completed 

and recommendations approved by the Board.
 ✔ Governance framework completed and implemented.

 

Concerns

 ✔ Heavy dependence on Eskom for coal sales.
 ✔ Funding for the capital expansion programme.
 ✔ Cost management.

Future

 ✔ Substantial growth expected with commissioning of the  
Kusile Power Station.

 ✔ Potential move to the Department of Mineral Resources.
 ✔ Opportunities presented by the discovery of additional coal reserves 

in the country.

Growing the business

Although revenue has decreased for the year compared to the previous 
financial year our focus has mainly been on the growth strategy going 
forward. The off-take agreement with Eskom at the Kusile Power Station 
is the main driver behind the expansion of the Vlakfontein mine.

In order to ensure adequate control of the larger business we have 
introduced a corporate governance guideline, increased our staff 
complement with additional technical expertise and presented a bankable 
business plan for the expansion programme. The main challenge is to 
ensure a funding plan is in place to support the expansions.

Mr. S Madondo
CEO – AEMFC



Transformation and stakeholders

We continued to perform well during the period under review. All targets 
set on the transformational side were met. The workforce is currently at 
360 employees, predominantly from local communities. 

A substantial number of staff are women and youth who continue to 
develop their technical skills through training in alignment with the 
National Development Plan.

Internal business processes

No fatalities were recorded during the period under review. We have also 
produced an outstanding injury frequency rate of 0.38 compared to a 
benchmark of 1.72.
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Subsidiary and Operations Review (continued)

Highlights

 ✔ 15% increase in revenue and 10% increase in profits.
 ✔ The second pipeline to be funded without equity injection from iGas 

or other shareholders.
 ✔ Long-term dividend plan developed and agreed.

Concerns

 ✔ Funding requirements for additional businesses.
 ✔ Role of the company as a result of the MPRDA.

Future

 ✔ Implementation of the second pipeline to support long-term  
financial sustainability.

 ✔ Possible integration into PetroSA.
 ✔ Further gas or oil infrastructure projects.

Our business

We have delivered strong results at the back of an agreed dividend plan 
with Rompco (Republic of Mozambique Pipeline Investments Company). 
Income is stable and growth expected in future is above market related 
increase. A second gas pipeline from Mozambique has been approved by 
the Board. It is not required from shareholders to invest additional capital 
as the project will be funded with a combination of Rompco’s own 
resources and external funding. 

During the period under review our relationships with stakeholders have 
been strong. Rompco management remains strong while the business is 
financially sustainable over the long term. The team is looking at additional 
strategic projects within the gas environment over the long term.

Dr. M De Pontes
COO – iGas
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Subsidiary and Operations Review (continued)

Highlights

 ✔ Estimated shale gas reserves of between 17 and 172 trillion cubic 
feet (tcf).

 ✔ Nearing completion of regulations for shale gas operations.
 ✔ Progress in resource evaluation of the large geological basins.
 ✔ Continuation of providing world class data centre for oil and  

gas exploration.

Concerns

 ✔ Uncertain future as a result of the MPRDA Amendment Bill.

Future

 ✔ Until the MPRDA Amendment bill is signed by the President, the 
future existence and structure of PASA in its current form is in doubt.

 ✔ The interest of operators in SA as an oil and gas destination has 
increased despite concerns regarding the current bill.

Our business

Under the uncertainty surrounding PASA we have managed to deliver on 
our mandate and continued to be one of the leading data centres for oil 
and gas in the world. During the period under review our relationships with 
stakeholders have been strong as ever. 

A total of 33 permits were finalised during the year while 55 permits are 
still pending. Although operators are concerned regarding the amendments 
to the MPRDA Bill they still perceive South Africa as an important oil and 
gas destination. Various projects were completed during the year 
including providing 24 deserving students with bursaries of whom 98% 
passed during their first year.

Ms. L Mekwe
Acting CEO – PASA



Financial performance

2014
R’000

%
change

2013
R’000

Revenue 34 632 -53.5% 74 420

Operating expenses 34 632 -53.5% 74 420

Operating profit 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Operating profit margin % 83 587 -10.7% 75 511

Net profit after tax -27 357 -239.2% 19 653

Net profit margin % -79.0% -105.4% 26.4%

Net interest received/(paid) 18 004 0.5% 17 906

Return on equity % -0.6% -1.0% 0.4%

Liquidity ratio 30.64 -9.4% 33.80

Cash received from operations 16 705 -87.4% 8 915

Capital expenditure 717 68.4% 2 272

Free cash flow 50 -163.2% 19

Cash balances 92 119.0% 42
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Subsidiary and Operations Review (continued)

Highlights 2014

 ✔ Successful completion of Solar Park feasibility study.
 ✔ Clean Energy Division project won a tender in the Renewable Energy 

Independent Power Producer Programme (REIPPP).

Concerns

 ✔ Financial sustainability of the unit.
 ✔ Future funding for projects.

Future

 ✔ Development of the Solar Park will provide an opportunity to CED.
 ✔ The CEF Board has approved a pipeline of Concentrated Solar  

Power projects.

The South African energy supply landscape is changing rapidly. Various 
regulatory and market developments are expected to have an impact on 
electricity generation in the future. In the State of the Nation Address on 
17 June 2014, President Jacob Zuma referring to the energy crisis in the 
country, stated: “This situation calls for a radical transformation of the 
energy sector, to develop a sustainable energy mix that comprises coal, 
solar, wind, hydro, gas and nuclear energy”. 

South Africa is committed to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by 
a target of 34% and 42% by 2020 and 2025 respectively. In this regard, 
the National Climate Change Response Policy (2011) has been adopted, 
which will enable the country to transition to a low-carbon economy 
without constraining economic growth and job creation.

The Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) 2010 for electricity generation 
(updated in 2013) is a blueprint for the country’s electricity generation mix 
that presents a set of scenarios for the deployment of coal, solar, wind, 
nuclear, hydro and gas. The three rounds of REIPPP have successfully 
procured more than 3900MW of renewable energy projects, thus positioning 
South Africa as a leading producer and procurer of renewable energy.

The Independent System and Market Operator (ISMO) Bill is expected to 
establish regulated access to the distribution grid by multiple generators 
of electricity. Thus, the policy environment is set for South Africa to have a 
sustainable energy mix in the coming years.

Dr. PC Masangane
GM – Clean Energy Division
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GM – Clean Energy Division

Clean Energy Division



Through the Clean Energy Division, CEF is aligning with the country’s 
goals of reducing GHG emissions and improving the impact of power 
generation on the environment. CEF’s efforts through CED are focussed 
on new generation and futuristic sources of the energy mix, which include, 
but are not limited to solar, wind, biomass and hydro. 

CED’s mandate is to:
• Initially catalyse the renewable energy sector;
• Develop and invest in renewable energy projects that will use primary 

energy sources such as solar, wind, biomass, biogas and hydro;
• Develop and invest in clean and alternative liquid fuels such as biofuels;
• Be actively involved in renewable energy technology development 

and related manufacturing; and
• Provide modern, safe and sustainable energy solutions to the less 

developed areas and low-income households in the country.

Being the first mover in an industry, at a time when the regulatory 
framework was not yet in place, has its challenges. The main challenge 
that CEF faced was that once the regulatory framework was in place, 
some of the half-developed projects were not fully aligned to the new 
regulatory framework, resulting in some of them failing to reach 
implementation. 

The following is a portfolio of projects that CED has been engaged with 
during the 2013/14 financial year:

1.     Optimisation of Investments 

• Cape Cleaner Energy Solutions (Pty) Ltd. (CCE) – This is an 8.8MW 
biomass to electricity project, which has the equipment on site but 
could not be implemented due to, in part, not being able to secure an 
electricity generation license. CEF has expended R82 million on the 
project and is an 81.5% shareholder. A turn-around strategy was 
adopted to revive it by participating in Stage 1 of the Small Scale IPP 
programme. In this regard, CED was successful, and is set to 
progress to Stage 2 of the programme;

• Philips Lighting Maseru (PLM) was a joint venture, where CEF 
invested $1million for a 33% shareholding along with Philips and 
Karebo Systems. The purpose of the project was to produce and 
supply compact fluorescent lamps (“CFLs”), to the Sub-Saharan 
market. Since it started operations in 2010, PLM has never reached 
its production targets and consequently has been loss-making. The 
plant was shut down in the first quarter of 2014 and CEF was fully 
refunded for its initial investment;
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• The Methcap waste-to-energy project uses waste gas from the 
PetroSA refinery to generate electricity. CEF invested R1.4 million to 
acquire a 19% shareholding in Methcap. The project is currently 
operating at 50% of its capacity due to low availability of the waste 
gas. In spite of this, Methcap has generated a profit of R3 million 
against a budget of R2.5 million for the 2013/14 financial year; and

• Darling Wind Power (Pty) Ltd is a 5.2MW wind power generation 
asset which has been in operation since 2008. CEF invested  
R17 million for a 49% shareholding and the other shareholders are 
Darlipp (26%) and DBSA (25%). DWP has not been performing at its 
optimum due to a very low electricity tariff, outdated technology and 
strained shareholder relationships. The DWP Board adopted a 
resolution to liquidate the company.

2.    Pipeline of new projects

• ENER-G Systems Joburg (Pty) Ltd is an 18MW landfill gas to 
electricity project at five landfill sites within the City of Johannesburg, 
and has received Preferred Bidder status for Round three of the 
REIPPP. The CEF Board approved an equity contribution of 

       R37.615 million to acquire a 29% shareholding in ENER-G   
       Systems Joburg;

• Thin Film Solar Technologies (Pty) Ltd. (TFST) is still in the bankable 
feasibility study phase for the investigation of a 70MW/year PV 
manufacturing plant. CEF committed to a 45% shareholding in the 
company and has to date contributed R34 million to the project in line 
with other shareholders’ contributions; Photovoltaic Intellectual 
Property (PTIP) with 49% and the National Empowerment Fund with 
6%. The project’s bankability status awaits results from the PTIP 
semi-commercial test-plant; and

• Ilangalethu 2 Concentrated Solar Power (CSP) project: The CEF 
Board has approved an investment of R450 million to acquire a 20% 
stake in the 100MW CSP project, which has bid into Round 3.5 of the 
REIPPP and is awaiting the announcement of the preferred bidders 
for the stage.

3.    Support to Department of Energy (DoE)

• Solar Park Feasibility Study: The DoE mandated CEF to investigate 
the feasibility of a 5GW Solar Corridor made up of 1GW Solar Parks 
in Upington and Prieska in the Northern Cape. The study was 
completed in March 2014 and the results were presented to the DoE 
for Cabinet approval;

Subsidiary and Operations Review (continued)
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• Biofuels Implementation Programme: CEF provides secretariat 
services to the DoE to facilitate the implementation of the   
Biofuels Strategy;

• The outlook for the clean energy sector in South Africa is very 
optimistic and there are many opportunities. In this regard, CEF is 
currently exploring a portfolio of CSP, wind and hydro opportunities 
for the next round of the REIPPP and is also earmarking cogeneration 
projects; and 

• CED will participate in at least one cross-border renewable energy 
project and catalyse the renewable energy manufacturing sector by 
making an investment in the next financial year.

Team Clean Energy
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Sustainability of the Business

SHEQ

CEF is committed to ensuring the safety and health of employees and is 
particularly vigilant about the impact of its operations on the environment. 
These items are embedded in both organisational objectives and 
operating practices. They form an important part of the organisation’s 
sustainability initiatives.

Key metrics for the Safety and Health parameters relate to the work 
environment and are measured by the number of fatalities and 
disabling injuries.

It is the company’s objective to ensure that none of its employees are 
killed during business operations. The operating environment is one that is 
potentially very hazardous and every precaution is taken to minimise and 
eliminate unsafe working conditions. CEF can report that no staff 
members or contract workers were involved in fatal accidents during the 
year under review.

PetroSA and SFF operate within the petrochemicals sector, while African 
Exploration is in the mining sector. These sectors, in general, have 
different disabling injury frequency rate parameters. Those for 
petrochemicals are lower than those for mining, and this lower rate is 
used as the target for the Group. This reinforces the seriousness with 
which employee safety is managed within the Group.

On the environmental side, the Group had a strong focus on two specific areas.

The first was the limit to reportable environmental incidents. By its very 
nature, the industry is susceptible to environmental incidents. Typically, 
these would be spills or releases of petroleum products or gas. The 
number of incidents during the year under review was less than the target, 
and these were all minor incidents.

The second environmental aspect is the carbon footprint of the Group’s 
operations. This is an impact that unfortunately cannot be easily mitigated 
due to the nature of the operations. The Group was responsible for 
emitting 2.196 Mt of CO2 in the 2012/13 financial year. 
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Scope 1 Scope 2 Scope 3 Total Percent

CEF 19 679 785 1 483 0.068

PetroSA 1 095 000 1 051 200 43 800 2 190 000 99.721

SFF 153 1 162 1 315 0.060

AEMFC 2 457 748 3 205 0.146

PASA 124 124 0.006

Total 1 097 629 1 053 913 44 585 2 196 128 100.000

Percent 49.98 47.99 2.03 100.00

More than 99% of carbon emissions are directly related to the GTL facility at 
Mossel Bay. 

PetroSA has already identified interventions that will reduce emissions and 
has targets for reductions. These will require process changes and capital 
expenditure. Reductions will therefore only be realised over a few years. 

Interventions in other subsidiaries are limited and will provide very small 
reductions in relation to those possible from PetroSA. Most reductions will be 
from rationalising air travel under Scope 3 emissions. 

Should mining operations increase at AEMFC, then an increase can be 
expected, particularly in Scope 1 emissions.

The renewable energy projects under the management of the holding 
company offer an opportunity to offset some of the emissions. A carbon 
footprint benchmark exercise was conducted for the 2013 financial year and 
reported on during the reporting year. The results are tabulated above.

In terms of certification, the SFF Saldanha facility has I OHSA18001, 
ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 certification, while Milnerton has ISO 14001 
certification. PetroSA has ISO 9001 certification.

Significant work has been done on environmental processes, and full 
ISO 14001 certification will be pursued once the PetroSA SHEQ management 
team is completely satisfied with the work they have done.
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Transformation

Broad-based Black Economic 
Empowerment
The CEF Group is committed to Broad-Based Black Economic 
Empowerment (BBBEE). In line with its mandate of spearheading industry 
transformation for the ultimate benefit of all the country’s citizens, the 
Group continues to support B-BBEE entities, in particular, through 
enterprise and supplier development programmes and successful 
preferential procurement initiatives.

The subsidiaries in the Group have the following B-BBEE contributor status:

Company B-BBEE level

CEF SOC Level 2

PetroSA Level 3

PASA Level 7

AEMFC Level 5

Significant progress has been made toward achieving B-BBEE targets for 
the year.
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Driving equity in the workplace
Ensuring gender equity and inclusiveness of people with disabilities remained 
a key driver of human capital development for the Group in 2013/14. The 
Group’s employment equity plan focuses on increasing the representation of 
designated Groups, mainly in the senior management and professionally 
qualified areas. Strategies have been developed to achieve internal 
employment equity targets, including the implementation of a comprehensive 
learning and development plan, in-service training, granting bursaries, job 
profiling and performance assessments.

The employment equity profile of the Group workforce at 31 March 2014 is 
contained in the following table:

Company Black Staff* White Staff Female Male Total

CEF SOC 72 17 51 38 89

PETROSA 1 287 394 517 1 164 1 681

PASA 63 7 32 38 70

AEMFC 89 3 33 59 92

SFF 105 27 21 111 132

TOTAL 1 616 448 654 1 410 2 064

Note: iGas staff included in the CEF SOC figures.
*Black Staff – African, Coloured and Indian

To support our transformation journey, we participated in three Leadership 
Development Programmes that were targeting women. The primary focus of 
these programmes is to develop a pipeline of female talent that supports our 
succession planning and industry transformation. In the year under review, 
36 PetroSA female employees participated in these leadership development 
initiatives as shown in the table below.

Initiative African Coloured Indian White

SAPIA leadership 
development programme

3 2 0 1

Advanced certificate in 
management for the oil 
and gas industry

0 2 0 0

PetroSA leadership 
development programme

11 7 2 8
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Transformation (continued)

Developing our future workforce

Techno Girl Project

This is a job shadowing initiative aimed at exposing girl children to the 
world of work and increasing their knowledge of the Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) careers. We annually host 16 girls 
selected from schools in previously disadvantaged communities. They join 
the programme as grade 10 learners until they are in grade 12. Beyond 
grade 12, they are supported by a talent strategy aimed at “walking a 
path” with them through university and providing bursaries for their tertiary 
education. On completion of their first degrees, they join us as Graduates 
In Training (GITs) and, later, take up employment, either with PetroSA or 
elsewhere within the Oil and Gas sector.

The PetroSA Bursary programme 

The National Diploma in Process Technology was developed through a 
partnership between PetroSA, the Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University 
and KBC Technology. In the 2013/14 financial year, the PetroSA Bursary 
programme saw a new intake of 61 bursary recipients selected from 
historically disadvantaged and vulnerable groups - studying towards 
qualifications in Engineering, Geosciences, Accounting and Economics. In 
order to promote a culture of inclusivity for people living with disabilities, 
we extended our partnership with the Cape Peninsula University of 
Technology (CPUT). Nine bursaries were awarded to people with 
disabilities. This year, five of the nine bursary recipients became our 
Graduates in Training (GITs).

CEF SOC Ltd - Integrated Annual Report 2013/201476

Techno Girl Project



Graduate in Training (GIT) programme

Following the completion of studies, most of our bursary recipients are 
appointed on two-year fixed term contracts within various divisions of the 
organisation. For this financial year we appointed a total of 26 GITs.

Centre of Excellence (COE)

Our flagship Centre of Excellence is located in Mossel Bay and accredited 
by the Department of Labour as a trade test centre for artisanal skills. It is 
also used as a benchmark by other State Owned Entities (SOEs). At the 
CoE, 237 learners are registered for courses ranging between NQF levels 
2 and 4 in Electrical, Instrumentation, Fitting, Welding, Rigging and 
Boilermaking trades for the chemical industry. During the reporting period, 
93 students underwent apprenticeships and 144 were involved in 
learnership training (NQF 2 – NQF 4). Of the 237 learners, 32 percent are 
female and three are learners with disabilities.

Figure 3: Learners registered at the Centre of Excellence. 
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Enterprise and Supplier 
Development (ESD)

The PetroSA ESD programme

Our ESD programme is aligned with current legislative and policy 
requirements of the revised Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment 
Codes. The objective of the programme is to provide support to suppliers 
and customers across the value chain. The ESD programme includes 20 
Small Medium Enterprises (SMEs), Qualifying Small Enterprises (QSEs) 
and Exempted Micro Enterprises (EMEs) that are 100% black owned and 
managed and provide various goods and services to PetroSA.

The programme has a broad national footprint, operating across four 
provinces, i.e. Gauteng, KZN, the Eastern Cape and Western Cape. Given 
our operating footprint, the majority of support is provided to businesses 
located in Cape Town and Mossel Bay. This support includes business 
development and funding in holistic packages that are tailored to the 
specific needs of the various beneficiaries. A total of R8 million was 
invested in the 2013/14 financial year. To ensure the success and 
sustainability of the programme, our employees also contribute their 
technical and non-technical skills to the identified businesses. 

Transformation (continued)
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Shifting Sands – A women-focused ESD 
initiative 

We prioritise the capacity development of our women suppliers. The 
Shifting Sands ESD initiative was launched in March 2014 and seeks to 
ensure that women suppliers benefit fully from our ESD opportunities and 
that this support helps to build their capacity and make their businesses 
sustainable and competitive.

Participation of local suppliers in 2013 
shutdown 

Seven local suppliers benefitted from the 2013 shutdown at the refinery 
during the year. These businesses provided services with a total 
estimated value of R57.8 million. 

Progress through strategic partnerships 

During the period under review, we signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Standard Bank of South Africa to facilitate access to 
funding by our ESD beneficiaries. An amount of R600 000 was committed 
for non-financial support initiatives whilst other financial support avenues 
are being pursued.

B-BBEE procurement

Transactions with B-BBEE suppliers for the procurement of feedstock and 
finished products for the 2013/14 financial year increased to 41% of total 
volumes purchased, against a target of 25%.

B-BBEE sales

B-BBEE sales accounted for 35% of the commercial business sales 
volume in the 2013/14 financial year; which represent about 13% of total 
PetroSA sales. 
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B-BBEE sales volume in m3 as a percentage 
of total Commercial Business

Sales to B-BBEE companies increased by 15% in the period under review, 
from 287 million litres to 329 million litres. B-BBEE sales volumes for 
2013/14 were 13% of total PetroSA sales.
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Figure 4: B-BBEE sales volumes for 2013/14

Transformation (continued)
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PetroSA is making a difference 
in Mossel Bay

As a key area of operations, PetroSA’s Mossel 
Bay GTL Refinery not only serves as a driver of 
economic development in the region, but also 
affords the organisation a unique opportunity to 
involve itself in the upliftment and education of 
surrounding communities and the conservation of 
the area’s natural heritage. To this end, PetroSA’s 
Mossel Bay social and environmental 
sustainability initiatives include the following:

Education in action

As part of its commitment to effective stakeholder 
engagement and community education, PetroSA 
occasionally hosts visitors to its Mossel Bay GTL 
Refinery and its surrounding Nature Reserve. 
Visitors typically comprise of school or university 
groups, representatives of municipal, local, 
provincial or national government, organised 
groups and, even, interested individuals. During 
the 2013/14 financial period, numerous school 
groups were treated to informative and 
educational tours of the facilities, among them, 
learners from Curro High and Primary School and 
Danielskuil High School (Northern Cape) Kairos 
Senior Secondary School (Heidelberg) and the 
Mossel Bay Siyanithanda Centre for the disabled. 
The Department of Energy Communicators Forum 
was also hosted at the refinery.

In collaboration with the Pinnacle Reserve, the 
company also facilitates and manages 
engagements with various environmental groups 
and is a key sponsor of local environmental 
awards.

Staying connected with 
communities

PetroSA has established a Community 
Stakeholder Forum in Mossel Bay as an effective 
means by which interested or concerned 

community organisations can engage with it on 
issues of mutual interest. The forum is hosted by 
PetroSA every quarter and issues typically 
discussed include employment and training 
opportunities, empowerment of local businesses, 
environmental sustainability and local economic 
development issues. 

On-the-Air Partnership

PetroSA has partnered with Eden FM, a 
community radio station that broadcasts across 
the Eden District Municipality area. Every 
Thursday, PetroSA hosts a show aimed at sharing 
information about the business with local 
communities and providing education on relevant 
topics or issues. The information shared ranges 
from safety and security insights and tips on 
caring for the environment, to advice on careers 
in the petroleum industry, bursary information, 
inputs into school projects and other human 
capital activities.

Contributing to water security

As part of its commitment to the people and 
economy of Mossel Bay and its surrounds, 
PetroSA constructed a desalination plant in the 
area. The plant offers PetroSA, and the people of 
the district, the confidence that in the event of 
severe southern Cape droughts – as have been 
experienced in the past – there is the option to 
harness the desalination process to help address 
any serious water challenges in the region. 

Helping to build the Mossel 
Bay brand

As part of PetroSA’s commitment to the economic 
growth and development of the region, it 
sponsors the increasingly popular Mossel Bay 
Marathon, which attracts runners from all over the 
country and internationally, thus raising the profile 
of the region and the PetroSA brand, amongst 
local and global sports enthusiasts.

Case study 
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Transforming our communities

We firmly believe that in order to be successful in business we need to 
equally contribute to the socio-economic development of communities 
throughout South Africa, more especially in the areas where we operate. 
In the 2013/14 financial year, we undertook a comprehensive evaluation of 
all our CSI initiatives. To date, we have invested R348 million in 
communities across the areas of health, education, community 
development, environment and sustainable development. These 
investments include the following:

Environment

Eco-Schools Programme - We partnered with the national Eco-Schools 
programme and supported the initiative to the tune of R1,5 million. This 
programme is aimed at improving environmental management and 
implementing environmental sustainability projects that are led by 
teachers, learners, parents and, in some cases community members. 
Projects include food gardens, the promotion of healthy living initiatives, 
saving electricity, water recycling conservation, community and heritage 
preservation. 

Sustainable SEAS Trust (SST) - We assisted the SST initiatives with an 
amount of R400 620. The SST Trust aims to provide the coastal 
communities with skills to become less dependent on depleted marine 
resources for food security. Communities are also encouraged to find 
alternative food sources such as food gardens and develop skills that are 
beneficial to the surrounding job market. 

Education

Reneilwe Primary School - We funded the construction of a multi-sports 
court and installation of a technology centre at Reneilwe Primary School 
(Northern Cape) at a cost of R1.7 million. The multi-sports court caters for 
tennis, netball, volleyball and basketal, while the technology centre boasts 
a computer laboratory including 28 all-in-one computers, a server-room 
and an interactive white board. 

Primary Schools Numeracy Programme - The project focuses on 
numeracy intervention in 10 primary schools in the Bushbuckridge, 
Thulamahashe Bohlabela District in the Mpumalanga province. It aims to 
aid in the improvement of numeracy levels in these schools. 

Transformation (continued)

Eco Schools Programme
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Investing in health 

Choice - We funded the Non-Governmental Organisation (NGO), Choice, 
with an amount of R692 000 which was used to provide training, support 
and information on health services to 10 deserving communities in the 
Greater Tzaneen area. 

Promoting and enabling employee volunteerism

Our Employee Volunteer Programme (EVP) affords staff an opportunity 
to participate in community development initiatives. Our employees 
dedicate their time towards worthy initiatives that assist in uplifting 
historically disadvantaged communities. In the year under review, the 
following initiatives were supported: 

Home from Home - This is an organisation that sets up foster homes and 
crèches in townships around the Cape Town area. In February 2014, our 
volunteers visited a crèche that forms part of the Home from Home 
network and cares for pre-school children between the ages of 3-5 years. 

Living through Learning - Our employees donated furniture valued at 
R30 000 to Living through Learning – an organisation that offers technical 
and numeracy programmes for disadvantaged youth and adults in Cape Town. 

PetroSA 
funding was used to 
provide training, 
support and 
information on health 
services, to 10 
vulnerable rural 
communities in the 
Greater Tzaneen area.
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Governance Review

Good corporate governance includes the structures, processes and 
practices that the Board uses to direct and manage the operations of CEF 
and its subsidiaries. This is to ensure proper accountability by the Board 
to the shareholder and all stakeholders. 

Continuous implementation of the governance 
regime

The Group has, during the period under review, continued its efforts in 
implementing the provisions of the King III Report and the Companies Act 
of 2008, together with the continued adherence to the provisions of the 
PFMA and Treasury regulations.

Key developments on governance for the year under review
• The establishment of the Joint Task Team on Investigations to 

consider the reports of Mvezwa, SizweNtsalubaGobodo First 
Investigation Report and the SizweNtsalubaGobodo Second 
Investigation Report; 

• The appointment of the Group Chief Financial Officer  
Mr. SK Mthethwa on 1 December 2013;

• Independent Evaluation of the Board by the IOD and development of 
an action plan in respect thereof;

• Quarterly Reports covering a wide array of governance including 
compliance, ethics, risk and fraud to the Board Audit and Risk 
Committee; and

• Board members attending training on governance and developments 
within the industry at the Company’s cost. Some members of the 
Board attended the following training:
o Fundamentals of Refining and Supply Economics; and 
o Fundamentals of Refinery Economics and Blending Course.

 

Board of Directors

In terms of section 49 of the PFMA, the Board is the accounting authority 
of the Group. The Group has a unitary Board structure made up of a 
majority of non-executive directors, appointed by the shareholder. The 
size of the Board is dictated by Section 1 (4) of the Central Energy Fund 

Summarised Corporate Governance Report

The CEF Board of Directors strives to promote the highest standard of 
corporate governance, by subscribing to the principles of good corporate 
governance as outlined in the King III Report on Corporate Governance, 
Public Finance Management Act of 1999 (PFMA), Companies Act of 2008 
and Protocol on Corporate Governance in the Public Sector. 
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Act, No. 38 of 1977 (‘CEF Act’), as amended, which permits a maximum 
of eight directors appointed by the Shareholder. In line with the 
recommendations of King III the positions of Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer are separately held to ensure a clear division of duties. 

The Board retains overall accountability for the running of the Group and 
reserves, for itself, decisions on matters that could have a material impact 
on the business. Executive Management is charged with the day to day 
running of the business, with the Board addressing a range of key issues 
to ensure that it retains the strategic direction of, and proper control over 
the Group.

The Board approves and concludes annually a Shareholder’s Compact 
with the shareholder which sets out the agreed performance indicators for 
the Company for the following financial year. The non-executive directors 
are appointed in terms of the CEF Act and reappointment is not 
automatic. The Board meets at least once every quarter. 

Board Committees

The Board has established several committees in order to assist it in the 
discharge of its duties. All committees operate under Board approved 
terms of reference, which may be updated from time to time to align with 
the latest developments in corporate governance. Each committee is 
chaired by a non-executive director or an independent member and plays 
an important role in enhancing standards of governance and effectiveness 
within the company and the Group.

Board Audit and Risk Committee (BARC)

The BARC comprises of three non-executive directors of which two are 
independent and one independent member appointed by the shareholder 
at each annual general meeting. The committee meets at least four times 
per annum. The committee is chaired by an independent non-executive 
director who is not the chairperson of the Board.

The committee consists of members with financial, internal and external 
audit, corporate law and other relevant experience. The committee’s 
terms of reference are reviewed annually by the Board.

The committee functions are shared across all the subsidiaries under the 
ownership and control of the CEF Group and are responsible for ensuring 
the integrity of financial reporting and monitoring the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the governance, risk management, and control processes 
of the Group.

The External Auditor and Acting Chief Audit Executive have unrestricted 
access to the committee and attend all meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are permanent 
invitees to these meetings. Other executive managers are invited to the 
committee meetings at the discretion of the committee. Mandela Day Event
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Social and Ethics Committee

The committee has been appointed in compliance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act of 2008. It is tasked with monitoring the activities of 
the company having regard to any relevant legislation, other legal 
requirements or prevailing codes of best practice with regards to matters 
relating to:
• Social and economic development;
• Good corporate citizenship;
• The environment, health and public safety, including the impact of the 

Companies activities;
• Consumer relations including advertising and public relations; and
• Labour and employment.

Board Human Resource Committee

This committee is chaired by a non-executive director and comprises non 
executive directors appointed by the Board. The CEO and the Human 
Resource Manager attend the committee meetings by invitation.
This committee reviews and recommends annual remuneration increases, 
terms and conditions of employment, the payment of incentives and 
bonuses, general fringe benefits, human capital related policies and the 
appointment of senior staff at an executive level.

Project Assessment and Monitoring Committee

The Committee is chaired by a non-executive Director and comprises of 
Directors appointed by the Board. The remaining Board members are 
standing invitees of the committee. The Committee focuses on Group 
Projects and monitoring the progress thereof.

Materiality and significance framework

A materiality and significance framework has been developed for 
reporting losses through criminal conduct and irregular, fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure, as well as for significant transactions envisaged per 
section 54(2) of the PFMA that requires ministerial approval. The 
framework is finalised after consultation with the external auditors and 
once formally approved by the board.

Internal Audit

The Group has an internal audit function that has the support and 
cooperation of both the Board and management. The internal audit 
function has written terms of reference setting out its purpose, authority 
and responsibilities. 

The internal audit department, headed by the Acting Chief Audit 
Executive, is accountable to the board audit committee and risk 
committee. The Acting Chief Audit Executive has full access to the 
chairpersons of the audit committee and the Board of directors. 

CEF Energy Leaders Roundtable
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The internal audit function adheres to the International Standards for 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and the companies 
Code of Ethics. 

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the company’s 
affairs as well as the Board proceedings are properly carried out in 
accordance with the relevant laws and standards. Each of the directors 
has unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company 
Secretarial team and company information, and are entitled to seek 
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense in pursuance 
of their duties as directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Board.

Management reporting

Comprehensive management reporting disciplines are in place, which 
include the preparation of an annual corporate plan and budget approved 
by the Board of directors. Monthly and quarterly results are reported 
against the approved budget to the executive committee and the board of 
directors respectively for review. Executive management meet on a 
regular basis to consider day to day issues pertaining to the business of 
the Group.
 

Code of Ethics

The Code of Ethics serves as a guide to assist the Board, Executive 
Management, Staff and Contractors of the Group in making ethical 
decisions and engaging in appropriate and lawful conduct. In addition 
Directors are required to annually declare their interests in contracts as 
well as Directorships in other companies in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act and the PFMA.

The Group is committed to the eradication of fraud, corruption, 
misconduct and any irregularities. To this end two forensic investigations 
were commissioned during the financial year one by the CEF Board and 
one by the PetroSA Board to probe various procurement irregularities at 
PetroSA. The investigations were completed and the respective Boards 
have acted on the recommendations of the Joint Task Team on 
Investigations installed by the CEF and PetroSA Boards to ensure that 
corrective action is taken in the best interests of the company and the 
Group. 

The company also has a Fraud Prevention Policy which addresses fraud 
risk management from both proactive and reactive perspectives. The 
Group has contracted the services of an independent hotline service 
providing for the confidential reporting of fraud and other inappropriate 
behaviour.
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Summarised Remuneration 
Report

CEF’s remuneration policy has been designed to:
• Motivate an employee to improve performance;
• Encourage higher levels of skills development in an employee; and
• Contribute towards the organisation achieving its targeted mission 

and objectives as well as retention of scarce resources.

To achieve the above the companies policy is based on the following 
principles:
• The remuneration is market related; and
• The remuneration is non-discriminatory.

All cash remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis as 
follows:

Market related

Updated market information is obtained from external surveys conducted 
on an annual basis reflecting the typical cash remuneration payable in the 
RSA market for various positions. These figures are based on typical job 
descriptions and job gradings for specific functions. The current job 
grading system is the Peromnes system.

The measure used in the determination of market related salary is the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for April of each and every year. Staff filling 
scarce skills positions may be awarded an additional increase above CPI.

Salary bands

A band of 20% below and 20% above the market midpoint is applied and 
management exercise discretion within such parameters.

Senior and specialist posts, which do not have easily identified equivalent 
positions in the external survey, are independently reviewed by external 
consultants on an annual basis, also using the Peromnes system.

“Remuneration” at CEF is defined as the total package of financial benefits 
paid to every employee on a monthly or annual basis. This comprises a 
“Total Cost of Employment” package and excludes other varying financial 
benefits such as overtime, cell phone, shift and standby allowances and a 
performance bonus, which is paid in terms of the conditions stipulated in 
the Company’s Performance Management system.
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In order to ensure that all positions within the Company can be properly 
compared to equivalent positions in the Remuneration Survey, all 
positions within the Company are evaluated in terms of the Job Evaluation 
Policy, M-26, when:

• Positions are established; or
• When significant changes are made to the content or responsibilities 

of a position; or
• If none of the previous conditions occur, at least every three years.

Performance assessments

Performance of all employees is assessed in alignment with the 
Company’s Performance Management Policy M-05 and the results of 
such review used on an annual basis to determine a performance bonus 
payment in line with the performance management system.

Board decisions

The Board considers on an annual basis the following with regards to 
the Remuneration Policy:
• The quantum of increase to be given to employees; and
• Approval of the payment or non-payment of annual incentives.

Pertinent facts relating to the 2013/14 remuneration 
at CEF

The company implemented a salary adjustment which was linked to 
inflation and capped at 6%. An average of 5% was awarded to Senior 
Managers on Peromnes Grades P5 and above. Performance bonuses 
were paid out based on the Performance management policy.

Remuneration to non-executive directors

The remuneration of non-executive directors is determined by the Minister 
of Energy with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance as per the 
Central Energy Fund Act No. 38 of 1977. The remuneration of the 
Directors and the Group Executives for the year under review is disclosed 
in note 41 of the annual financial statements.

CEF Long Service Awards
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These Annual Financial Statements were prepared under the 
supervision of Mr. S Mthethwa CA (SA), Group Chief Financial Officer



Directors’ Responsibilities 
and Approval 
For the year ended 31 March 2014
The directors are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity of 
the Annual Financial Statements and related information. The external auditors are responsible for the audit on the fair 
presentation of the Annual Financial Statements. 

The Annual Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the Companies Act of South Africa of 2008. These Annual Financial Statements 
are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates. 

The directors are also responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls. These controls are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to the reliability of the Group’s Annual Financial Statements and to 
adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets and to prevent and detect misstatements and 
losses. 

The directors have reviewed the budgets and cash flow forecasts for the year ending 31 March 2015. On the basis of 
this review, and in view of the current financial position and existing borrowing facilities, the directors have every 
reason to believe that the company will be a going concern in the year ahead and have continued to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the Annual Financial Statements. 

To enable the directors to meet the above responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards and implements 
systems of internal control and risk management that are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance 
against material misstatements and losses. The Group maintains internal financial controls to provide assurance 
regarding: 

• The safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition. 

• The maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information used within the business 
and for publication. 

The controls contain self-monitoring mechanisms, and actions are taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified. 
Even an effective system of internal control, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including the 
possibility of circumvention or the overriding of controls. An effective system of internal control therefore aims to 
provide reasonable assurance with respect to the reliability of financial information and, in particular, Annual Financial 
Statement presentation. Furthermore, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal financial controls 
may vary over time. 

Unless otherwise stated elsewhere in the Annual Financial Statements nothing has come to the attention of the 
directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has 
occurred during the year under review. 

The Annual Financial Statements have been audited by the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA) who was given 
unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the shareholders, the 
board of directors, committees of the board, and management. The directors believe that all representations made to 
the independent auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate. The AGSA’s audit report is attached. 

The consolidated annual financial statements set out on pages 109 to 211, for the year ended 31 March 2014, were 
approved by the board of directors in terms of Section 51(1) (f) of the Public Finance Management Act on 28 July 
2014 and was signed on its behalf by: 

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele   Mr. S Mncwango
Chairperson   Executive Director
Johannesburg  
28 July 2014  
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Report of the Auditor-General 
to Parliament on CEF SOC 
Limited
Report on the consolidated and separate financial statements 

Introduction
1.  I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of CEF SOC Limited (CEF SOC Ltd) 

and its subsidiaries set out on pages 109 to 211, which comprise the consolidated and separate 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated and separate statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements
2.  The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and 

fair presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with South 
African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and the 
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) 
and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act) and for such internal 
control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based 

on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 
25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

4.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated and separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and 
separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated and separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.
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Opinion
6.  In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of the CEF SOC Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Statements of GAAP and the 
requirements of the PFMA and the Companies Act.

Emphasis of matters
7.  I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures
8.  As disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, the corresponding figures 

for 31 March 2013 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2014 in the financial 
statements of CEF SOC Limited at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2014.

Material impairments
9.  As disclosed in note 07 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, material losses to the 

amount of R16 363 000 and R82 452 000 were incurred as a result of an impairment and write-off of loans 
to subsidiaries respectively.

Additional matters
10.  I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
11.  As part of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2014, I have read the Directors’ Report, the Board Audit Committee’s Report and the Company 
Secretary’s Certificate for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between 
these reports and the audited financial statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective 
preparers. Based on reading these reports I have not identified material inconsistencies between the 
reports and the audited financial statements. I have not audited the reports and accordingly do not 
express an opinion on them.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
12.  In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings 

on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives 
presented in the annual performance report, non- compliance with legislation as well as internal control. 
The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not 
to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or 
conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives 
(For number 13 - 25, refer to the CEF Annual Financial Statements - Volume 1)
13.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report 
of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2014:

 • Objective 1: CEF will implement projects that contribute to security of energy supply on page 44.
 •  Objective 2: CEF activities will meet Safety, Health, Environmental, Quality targets appropriate to the 

operating environment on page 44.
 •  Objective 5: CEF will address areas that can be considered as holistic and cross cutting activities and 

objectives to ensure that the Group is effectively governed on page 45.

14. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.
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15.  I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented 
in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported 
performance was consistent with the planned. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators 
and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by 
the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

16.  I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, 
accurate and complete.

17. The material findings in respect of the selected objectives are as follows:

 •  Objective 1: CEF will implement projects that contribute to security of energy supply usefulness of 
reported performance information.

18. The FMPPI issued by National Treasury requires:

• Performance indicators and targets must be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level 
of performance. A total of 50% of the targets or were not specific.

• Performance indicators and targets must be measurable. We could not measure the required 
performance for 50% of the targets in relation to the above stated objective.

This was due to a lack of proper systems and processes for performance planning and management to 
provide for the development of performance indicators and targets included in the annual performance 
plan and technical indicator descriptions.

Reliability of reported performance information
19.  I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance information for this 

objective.
 
 •  Objective 2: CEF activities will meet Safety, Health, Environmental, Quality targets appropriate to 

the operating environment.

Usefulness of reported performance information
20.  I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance information for this 

objective.

Reliability of reported performance information
21.  The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 

information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned 
objectives, indicators and targets. Significantly important targets were not reliable when compared to the 
source information or evidence provided. This was due to a lack of frequent review of the validity of 
reported achievements against source documentation.

 •  Objective 3: CEF will address areas that can be considered as holistic and cross cutting activities 
and objectives to ensure that the Group is effectively governed.

22.  I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for objective 3.

Additional matter
23.  We draw attention to the following matters. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of these matters:

Achievement of planned targets
24.  Refer to the annual performance report on pages 34 to 35 for information on the achievement of planned 

targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the selected objectives reported in 
paragraphs 18 and 21 of this report.
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Adjustment of material misstatements
25.  I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the 

reported performance information for objective 1: CEF will implement projects that contribute to security 
of energy supply. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not raise any material 
findings on the reliability of the reported performance information.

Compliance with legislation
26.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable legislation 

regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material 
non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of 
the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statements
27.  The financial statements submitted for auditing were not consolidated and separate financial statements 

submitted for auditing were not fully compliant with SA Statements of GAAP as required by section 55(1)
(a) and (b) of the PFMA and section 29(1)(a) of the Companies Act. Material misstatements on, investment 
in subsidiaries and associates, revenue, investment income and loans to and from Group companies 
identified were corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Audit committees
28.  Members of the audit committee have not been appointed as directors of the entity by the shareholder as 

required by section 94(4) of the Companies Act.

Procurement and contract management
29.  Goods or service were not procured through a procurement process which is fair, equitable, transparent 

and competitive as required by section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

30.  The procurement processes did not comply with the requirements of a fair SCM system as per section 
51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA, in that bid documentation did not specify the evaluation and adjudication criteria 
to be applied.

Expenditure management
31.  The accounting authority did not take reasonable steps to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.

Asset Management
32.  Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by sections 

50(1)(a) and 51(1)(c) of the Public Finance Management Act.

Internal control
33.  I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report 

and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control 
deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on non-
compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership
34.  Management did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility regarding financial and performance 

reporting and compliance as well as related internal controls.
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Financial and performance management
35.  Non-compliances with laws and regulations reported above could have been avoided had the accounting 

authority implemented proper controls over monitoring of compliance with laws and regulations.

36.  As indicated in paragraph 25, this report, the financial statements contained numerous misstatements 
that were corrected. This was mainly due to staff members not fully understanding the requirements and 
the application of the financial reporting framework.

Other reports 
Investigations
37.  An independent consulting firm performed an investigation at the request of the Honourable Minister of  
 Energy and the Board during the 2013 reporting period. The investigation was initiated based on an   
 allegation of possible misappropriation of the public entity’s assets. The investigation was concluded  
 during the 2014 reporting period and resulted in criminal proceedings being instituted against internal and  
 external parties.
 

Pretoria
31 July 2014
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Report of the Board Audit 
and Risk Committee
For the year ended 31 March 2014

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

1. Charter

  The roles and responsibilities for the audit committee and risk committee were split during the financial 
year to improve and focus attention on risk management activities separately. The members of the two 
committees are the same members and the committee meetings takes place on the same dates.

  The audit committee is guided by a detailed charter that is reviewed and approved by the board on an 
annual basis. The audit committee has regulated their affairs in compliance with this charter and have 
discharged all their responsibilities as contained therein.

2. Purpose

  The Committee’s purpose and responsibilities arise from the Companies Act 71 of 2008 Section 97(7), 
The Public Audit Act 25 of 2004, Public Finance Management Act of 1999; Section 76 (4)(d) and Treasury 
Regulations 27.1. In performing its responsibilities the committee has reviewed the following:

 •  the effectiveness of the internal control systems; 
 •  the effectiveness of the internal audit function;
 •  the risk areas of operations to be covered in the scope of the internal and external audits;
 •  the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided to management and other users of 

such information; the accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of the internal or external audits;
 •  compliance with applicable legal and regulatory provisions;
 •  the activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work programme, coordination with the 

external auditors, the reports of significant investigations and the responses of management to 
specific recommendations; and

 •  the independence and objectivity of the external auditors.

3. Membership

  The audit committee and risk committee members were appointed by the board of directors and 
comprise of at least three non-executive members. The committees consist of the members listed 
hereunder and should meet on a minimum of two occasions per annum as per the approved Charter. 
During the financial year 7 meetings were held.

Name of members Number of meetings attended

Mr. R Boqo (Chairperson) 5

Mr. D Hlatshwayo 7

Ms. B Mabuza 5

Mr. L Mulaudzi 3

4. External audit

  The audit committee, in consultation with executive management, agreed to the engagement letter, terms, 
nature and scope of the external audit plan as presented by the Auditor-General of South Africa. We have 
reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa Strategic Board Audit Plan for the 2014 financial year and 
the board audit committee have approved their fees. The audit committee has satisfied itself that the 
Auditor General of South Africa exercised their duties in an independent and objective manner.
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5. Internal Audit

  The Committee considered and recommended the internal audit charter for approval to the board and 
approved the annual work plan for the internal audit function. The internal audit function is responsible for 
reviewing and providing assurance on the adequacy of the internal control environment across 
operations. The Acting Chief Audit Executive is responsible for reporting the findings of the internal audit 
work against the agreed audit plan to the Committee on a quarterly basis.

  The Acting Chief Audit Executive has direct access to the committee, primarily through its Chairperson. 
The Committee is also responsible for the assessment of the performance of the internal audit function. In 
the 2013 financial year, an external effectiveness review was performed by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors (IIA), reporting positive results and rating the internal audit function as “general conformance” 
with the IIA Standards. The next external assessment will be done in 2018 financial year.

  The internal audit function is independent and has the necessary resources, budget, standing and 
authority within the organisation to enable it to discharge its functions. The Acting Chief Audit Executive 
reports functionally to the chairperson and the chairperson must concur with the appointment and 
dismissal of the Acting Chief Audit Executive.

  We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks 
pertinent to the company in its audits. We believe Internal Audit has contributed to the improvement of 
internal controls within the company.

6. Corporate governance

  We are of the opinion that the Group continues to strive towards complying with sound principles of 
corporate governance. As per our discussions with management,management confirms that the content 
and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Chief Executive Officer during 
the year under review were properly formulated and have complied with the PFMA in this regard. The 
committee is in the process of reviewing its corporate governance practices with a view to the adoption 
of the requirements of the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008 and King III recommendations.

7. Risk management

  The Board assigned the oversight of the risk management function to the risk committee. The Group 
implemented a risk management strategy which includes the fraud prevention plan and combined 
assurance plan. The risk committee monitored the significant risks faced by the company through 
reviewing risk reporting and participation in the risk assessment workshop. We are satisfied that 
significant risks were managed to an acceptable level.

8. Appreciation

  The committee expresses its sincere appreciation to the Chief Executive Officer, Management, Internal 
Audit and the Auditor-General of South Africa.

 
Mr. R Boqo 
Chairperson
23 July 2014
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Statement from the Company 
Secretary
For the year ended 31 March 2014

In my capacity as Company Secretary, I hereby confirm, except where otherwise mentioned in the Annual 
Financial Statements, for the year ended 31 March 2014, that the company has lodged with the Companies and 
Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as are required of a company in terms of the Companies Act of 
South Africa of 2008 and that all such returns are to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and up to date.

 

Mr. A Haffejee 
28 July 2014
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 March 2014

The directors present their annual report that forms part of the audited Annual Financial Statements for the 
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

CEF is governed by the CEF Act and is listed as a public entity in terms of schedule 2 of the PFMA. The Board is 
the accounting authority in terms of the PFMA.

1. Directors

 The directors of the holding company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Appointed Resigned/Term 
ended

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele Non-executive, Chairperson 01 March 2011

Mr. R Boqo Non-executive 01 December 2012

Mr. R Jawoodeen Non-executive 01 March 2011

Mr. S Mncwango Executive 01 January 2013

Ms. X Mtwa Non-executive 01 December 2012

Mr. T Sethosa Non-executive (alternate) 01 September 2013

Mr. S Gamede Non-executive 01 September 2012

Mr. L Mulaudzi Non-executive 01 September 2012

Ms. B Mabuza Non-executive 31 January 2012

Ms. T Ramuedzisi Non-executive (alternate) 01 July 2009 31 August 2013

 This members of the Project Assessment Monitoring committee consists of the above Board members 
 as well. 
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Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele Y Y Y N Y Y Y N N N Y Y Y N
Mr. R Boqo Y Y N Y Y Y Y Y Y Y N N Y N
Mr. S Gamede Y Y N Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Mr. R Jawoodeen Y Y Y N Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Ms. B Mabuza Y N Y Y Y N Y Y Y Y Y N Y Y
Mr. S Mncwango Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Ms. X Mtwa Y N Y N N N Y N N N N N N N
Mr. T Sethosa N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Y A Y A A A N A A

B = Board
SP = Special meeting
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1. Directors (continued)

 Ms. X Mtwa is on sabbatical as of January 2013 and has been represented by her alternate Mr. Sethosa.

  The main reason for the number of Special Board meetings was due to the requirement for the Board to 
convene and deliberate on developments related to the proposed acquisition of a downstream asset by 
PetroSA.

  Social and Ethics committee
 The committees consist of the following members:

Name Appointed

Ms. B Mabuza Non-executive 31 January 2012

Ms. X Mtwa Non-executive 01 December 2012

Mr. S Mncwango Executive 01 January 2013

Attendance at meetings

10/07/2013

Ms. B Mabuza Y

Ms. X Mtwa Y

Mr. S Mncwango Y

 Board Audit and Risk committee
 The committees consist of the following members:

Name Appointed

Mr. L Mulaudzi Non-executive 01 September 2012

Ms. B Mabuza Non-executive 31 January 2012

Mr. D Hlatshwayo Non-executive 01 March 2011

Mr. R Boqo Non-executive Chairperson 01 June 2012
 

Attendance at meetings

23
/0

4/
20

13

28
/0

5/
20

13

23
/0

7/
20

13

23
/1

0/
20

13

26
/1

1/
20

13

23
/0

1/
20

14

20
/0

2/
20

14

Mr. R Boqo Y Y Y Y Y N N

Mr. D Hlatshwayo Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Ms. B Mabuza Y N Y Y N Y Y

Mr. L Mulaudzi N Y N N Y N Y

  The Board audit and risk committee meets at least twice per annum. The Acting Chief Audit Executive of 
the Internal Audit Function, the external auditors and such members of management as are deemed 
necessary also attend these meetings. The Board audit and risk committee is responsible for the internal 
controls and risk management of the company delegated by the board of directors. In order to meet their 
requirements they review the findings of both internal and external auditors. In addition they review 
important accounting issues, materials pending litigation if applicable, company insurance, risk management 
and disclosure requirements in the Annual Financial Statements. 

 The responsibilities of the sub-committee of the Board of directors are set out in the report of the Board  
 audit and risk committee which forms part of the Annual Financial Statements.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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1. Directors (continued)

  Management of the company delegated by the board of directors. In order to meet their requirements 
they review the findings of both internal and external auditors. In addition they review important 
accounting issues, materials pending litigation if applicable, company insurance, risk management and 
disclosure requirements in the Annual Financial Statements.

  The responsibilities of the sub-committee of the Board of directors are set out in the report of the Board 
audit and risk committee which forms part of the Annual Financial Statements.

 

 Board Human Resource committee
 The Board human resource committee consists of the following members:

Name Appointed

Mr. R Jawoodeen Non-executive 28 July 2011

Ms. B Mabuza Non-executive 28 July 2011

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele Non-executive 28 July 2011
 

Attendance at meetings

14
/0

5/
20

13

05
/0

6/
20

13

10
/0

7/
20

13

23
/1

0/
20

13

21
/0

2/
20

14

Mr. R Jawoodeen Y Y Y Y Y

Ms. B Mabuza Y N Y N Y

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele Y Y N Y Y

  The Board of directors has delegated its function of ensuring that employees are fairly rewarded in 
accordance with their contributions to the company’s performance to this Board human resources 
committee.

 Governance and Nominations committee
 This committee consists of the following members:

Name Appointed

Ms. B Mabuza Non-executive 01 February 2012

Ms. X Mtwa Non-executive 01 December 2012

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele Non-executive Chairperson 01 February 2012
 

Attendance at meetings

15
/0

5/
20

13

28
/0

2/
20

14

26
/0

2/
20

14

Ms. B Mabuza Y Y Y

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele Y Y Y

Ms. X Mtwa Y N Y
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1. Directors (continued)

 Attendance at meetings:
 Y = Attended meeting
 N = Did not attend meeting
 N/A = Not a member at date of meeting 
 A = Alternate

 2. Secretary

 The secretary of the company is Mr. A Haffejee:

 Business address Block C, Upper Grayston Office Park
   152 Ann Crescent
   Strathavon
   Sandton
   2199

 Postal address PO Box 786141
   Sandton 
   2146

3. Corporate strategy

  CEF has continued with the development of its strategy in terms of its mandate. All entities in the Group 
review their corporate strategy on an annual basis and enter into shareholders compacts with the holding 
company. Performance against these compacts is monitored throughout the year.

4. Nature of business

 The principal activities of CEF are:
 •  the acquisition of coal, the exploitation of coal deposits, the manufacture of liquid fuel, oil and other 

products from coal, the marketing of the said products and any matter connected with the said 
acquisition, exploitation, manufacture and marketing;

 •  the acquisition, generation, manufacture, marketing or distribution of any other forms of energy and 
research connected therewith;

 •  any other object for which the Central Energy Fund may be applied, and which has been designated 
or approved by the Minister of Energy with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance; and

 •  to deliver sustainable development of the economy and communities through the targeting of skills 
development, the implementation of competitive supplier development programmes and the 
investment in social upliftment programmes of targeted groups through Corporate Social Investment 
programmes.

5. Review of financial position

  The Group realised a net loss of R1.4 billion (2013: R1.1 billion profit) for the year under review. The 
revenue increase to R21.6 billion (2013: R 19.5 billion) predominantly due to the high Brent crude prices 
and weaker Rand. PetroSA Ghana also started with production and contributed the substantial amount of 
revenue R1.2 billion to the Group revenue.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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5. Review of financial position (continued)

  The Group recorded a pre-tax loss of R1.4 billion, which reflects a decrease on the prior year profit of 
 R2.5 billion. The decrease in profit is mainly driven by an impairment of R3.4 billion at our GTL facility in 
 Mossel Bay.

  The Group statement of financial position remains strong with total assets of R44.1 billion (2013: R45.3 billion). A 
cash balance of R11.3 billion (2013: R13.1 billion) reflects the Group’s strong net cash position. The reduction in 
cash is testimony to the capital expansion programme which includes the Ikhwezi offshore development project. 
Various options are also being explored in conjunction with the funding community to optimise our currently 
low-geared statement of financial position as the organisation embarks on significant capital programs to ensure 
sustainability of the Group and on investments prioritised as delivering on our mandate. For a full financial 
analysis on the results please refer to the Chief Financial Officer’s report.

6. Authorised and issued share capital

 There were neither changes in the authorised nor issued share capital of the Group during the year under review.

7. Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

  The directors are not aware of any irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure which has been incurred during 
the year under review other than that disclosed in note 45 of the Annual Financial Statements.

8. Going concern

 The directors believe that the Group will continue as a going concern in the year ahead.

9. Operating results

  The results of the Group and the state of its affairs are set out in the attached Group Annual Financial 
Statements and do not, in our opinion, require further comment.

Revenue Group Company

Figures in Rand 
thousand

% 2014 2013 2012 % 2014 2013 2012

Change Restated Restated Change Restated Restated
Sale of goods 10 % 20 224 321 18 440 084 13 904 248 - % – – –
Tank rentals (67)% 70 971 214 418 376 583 - % – – –
Interest received 
(trading)

(5)% 21 22 105 (5)% 21 22 105

Property rental 
income

(4)% 5 078 5 267 5 398 - % – – –

Dividends - % – – – - % – – –
Verification income 120% 9 774 4 442 421 - % – – –
Rendering of services 58% 1 246 001 788 865 701 931 (3)% 18 225 18 865 26 086

Gross Revenue 35% 21 556 166 19 453 098 14 988 686 (3)% 18 246 18 887 26 191

 
   Revenue increased from R19.5 billion to R21.6 billion due to higher crude oil price, and a weaker rand an 

increase in crude and finished products trading.
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9. Operating results (continued)

Profit before taxation Group

Figures in Rand 
thousand

%
Change 2014

2013
Restated

2012
Restated

%
Change 2014

2013
Restated

2012
Restated

Profit before taxation (236)% (1 338 506) 1 040 998 2 477 755 (47)% 36 275 68 505 146 451

Taxation (421)% (93 639) 29 207 9 885  94%   (16 600) (19 162) (25 771)

(241)% (1 432 145) 1 070 205 2 487 640 (60)% 19 675 49 343 120 680

 The Group reported a loss after taxation from continuing operations of R1.4 billion (2013: R1.1 billion profit).

  The company reported a net profit of R19.7 million (2013: R49 million) impairment of loans to subsidiaries 
which amounted to R16.3 million (2013: R16.5 million). The loans are impaired until the subsidiaries are 
able to become profitable and self-sustainable.

 Research and development cost increased from R4 million to R12.7 million.

10. Review of operations

 Highlights of the financial year include:
 

 ✔   The Governance structure roll-out and implementation is now with the executive management team.  
A number of Group management forums have been constituted.

 ✔ Drilling of the second well under the Project Ikhwezi  drill programme has commenced with the target 
formations intersected by the vertical well. Horizontal drilling is well under way with good quality gas 
sections intersected. Completion with tie-in to the FA platform is expected in October 2014.

 ✔ PetroSA has submitted a proposal for the purchase of a downstream business under Project Irene. 
This has been in principle accepted and the team is working to meet the conditions precedent.

 ✔ The 5GW Solar Park Feasibility study was completed by the consultants and the CEF team has 
reviewed the outputs.

 ✔ The CEF Board has approved the Illanga 1 investment subject to a number of conditions and to the 
Illanga 2 investment subject to successful bidding.

 ✔ The corporate plan for 2014/15 was submitted as per the PFMA requirements.

 Identified challenges facing the Group are:

 ✔ Constrained feedstock at PetroSA remains a challenge and impacts negatively on operations in the 
short term. Historically it has been widely known that feedstock constraints would be evident from 
about 2007. Operations beyond this date were only possible through restricted throughput. This will 
continue as an operating challenge for the remaining life of the GTL refinery.

 ✔ The question of providing feedstock to the Mossel Bay complex after about 2019, when Ikhwezi gas 
will be depleted is a concern for the CEF executive. PetroSA has initiated a review of options for the 
complex. The team is focused on delivering workable options within the next few months.

 ✔ The final closure of the purchase of the Project Irene assets is being hampered by funding challenges.

 ✔ The weakening of the local currency in December 2013 will impact on the Rand costs associated with 
a number of projects and activities paid for in other currencies. The strengthening seen in the last few 

days of the year will provide some relief if it is maintained.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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10.  Review of operations (continued) 

 ✔ Refurbishment of the Milnerton tank farm will require a solid business case to unlock value from the 
asset.

 ✔ The MPRDA Amendment Bill has now been passed by both the National Assembly and the NCOP. 
The implication is that PASA will be dissolved on enactment. Its functions are to be split between 
Regional Managers and the Council for Geoscience.

 ✔ The funding of the African Exploration aspirations included in their corporate plan going forward will 
be a challenge.

11. Materiality and significance framework

  A materiality and significance framework has been developed for reporting losses through criminal 
conduct and irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as well as for significant transactions envisaged 
per section 54(2) of the PFMA that requires ministerial approval. The framework was finalised after 
consultation with the external auditors and has been formally approved by the Board.

12. Subsequent events

  On 3 July 2014, PetroSA Equatorial Guinea received a letter (dated 10 June 2014) to terminate the Block 
Q Licence from the Ministry of Mines, Industry and Energy of Equatorial Guinea. This will impact the 
potential liability (estimated at $60 million) that would have arisen as a penalty had PetroSA Equatorial 
Guinea retained the licence up to December 2014. Enquiries are currently being made from the country 
manager in Equatorial Guinea as well as from our own parent Ministry to seek further clarification in 

 the matter.

  In terms of the CEF Group reorganisation CEF will examine the equitable manner in which iGas and 
PetroSA, as CEF subsidiaries, can be merged. This will need to include the appropriate approvals from 
third parties.

  CEF share in Phillips Lighting Maseru was sold to Kroninklijke Phillips N.V on 6 June 2014 for amount of   
USD 994 434.

  The directors are not aware of any other matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial 
year, not otherwise dealt with in the financial statements which significantly affect the financial position of 
the Group or the results of the operations.

13. Other activities administered by CEF 

 Equalisation Fund
  The statutory fund is regulated by Ministerial Directives issued by the Minister of Energy in concurrence 

with the Minister of Finance as laid down by the Central Energy Fund Act. The company provides 
treasury, administrative and accounting services to the Fund.

 Mine Health and Safety Council
 CEF manages some of the cash resources of the Council.

14. Shareholder
  The company is controlled by the Department of Energy. All shares are held by the State and are not 

transferable. This shareholding is in terms of the Central Energy Fund Act.
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15. Accounting policies

  With the promulgation of the new Companies Act of 2008, the South African Statements of GAAP were 
withdrawn with effect from 1 December 2012. The Group is in the process of requesting permission from 
National Treasury to prepare the annual financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards for the financial years commencing on or after 1 April 2014. The Group will retain the 
status quo during the intervening period.

16. Investigation at PetroSA

  In the last financial reporting period the Board reported that there were certain investigations that had 
been mandated by the Minister as well as the PetroSA Board. These investigations related to 
procurement processes by the Company covering a certain period. The reports are in the process of 
being finalised and appropriate action is being taken to recover any losses and address areas where 
weaknesses in our system have been identified. The company has initiated legal proceedings against the 
former acting CEO in order to recover fruitless and irregular expenditure that the company incurred as a 
result of decisions made by him during his term as acting CEO.

17. Litigations

 PetroSA
  Gross misconduct by employees from PetroSA and a supplier resulted in fraudulent activities amounting 

to R0.338 million. The request to cancel a company contract was not actioned timeously resulting in 
additional costs to the company of R0.1 million. PetroSA accepts stock losses of 0.25% on throughput 
volumes from depots. Lack of due care exercised at the depots, resulted in stock losses of R3.052 
million, which is above the tolerable level. PetroSA Equatorial Guinea received notification from the 
Ministry of Mines, Industry and Energy in Equatorial Guinea that a fine of $224 000 (R2.295 million) was 
imposed for non-compliance to the PSC due to the late submission of the 2014 work plan.

 SFF
 Morgan Stanley
  Morgan Stanley instituted a High Court Action against SFF Association NPC for a damages claim 

resulting from SFF’s failure to deliver 50 596 barrels of crude oil. The claim for the damages is USD  5 865 
240.10 plus interest. SFF is defending the claim and has filed a counter claim against Morgan Stanley (as 
assignee to Masefield SA by virtue of the fact that Morgan Stanley has taken cession and assignment of 
the rights and obligations of Masefield under the Storage Agreements concluded between SFF and 
Masefield) for the recovery of the amount of R45 967 791,69, being cargo dues, due and payable to SFF 
in respect of the handling and storage of crude oil under the Storage Agreements for Tanks at the 
Saldanha and Milnerton Storage Terminals. This matter is at the request for further particulars stage and 
will be heard in court in February 2015.

 Visigro
  NERSA is defending an action brought by Visigro as result of NERSA having awarded SFF Association NPC 

a licence to operate Milnerton Tank Farm having undertaken improvements to the tanks at an SABS 
standard. The impact of this action by Visigro on SFF would be for SFF to adhere to a different standard of 
refurbishment.

 Coppercast
  Coppercast concluded an agreement with SFF for the storage of a guaranteed maximum volume of 
 7 500,000 barrels of dispatch crude oil against payment to SFF. It is common cause that Coppercast  
 acted in breach of the agreement in that it never effected payment of the amount due in terms of the  
 agreement. SFF legal representatives have advised that they obtained an order of court to proceed   
 against Coppercast.
 

 Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele  Mr. S Mncwango
 Chairperson Executive Director
 Johannesburg 
 28 July 2014
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Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and 
equipment

2 18 211 254 15 724 591 7 524 353 73 691 79 117 85 290

Intangible assets 3 1 614 754 3 178 185 979 386 971 1 374 2 787
Deferred tax 4 205 773 5 257 17 5 324 5 257 17
Investments in subsidiaries 5 – – – 2 759 942 2 760 332 2 760 332
Investments in associates 6 883 422 812 190 744 043 44 235 44 235 44 235
Loans to Group companies 7 8 771 9 877 12 791 621 148 677 981 769 702
Other financial assets 8 301 699 231 206 208 712 – – 7 062
Strategic inventory 11 3 125 150 3 126 074 3 101 842 – – –
Finance lease receivables

9 1 858 2 770 3 906 – – –

Payments paid in advance 12 1 141 – – – – –
Tax receivable 31 – 17 294 22 452 – – –

24 353 822 23 107 444 12 597 502 3 505 311 3 568 296 3 669 425

Current Assets
Inventories 13 2 984 535 2 808 405 2 318 582 – – –
Loans to Group companies 7 – – – 58 500 58 500 58 500
Other financial assets 8 1 753 673 2 594 000 – – – –
Current tax receivable 31 12 637 5 230 4 334 12 565 – –
Finance lease receivables 9 794 815 848 – – –
Trade and other receivables 14 3 700 139 3 745 510 2 809 573 30 936 33 362 37 323
Payment paid in advance 12 104 – – – – –

Cash and cash equivalents 15 11 310 905 13 071 430 19 144 932 3 906 166 3 743 175 3 610 552

19 762 787 22 225 390 24 278 269 4 008 167 3 835 037 3 706 375

Non-current assets held for 
sale

16
10 669 10 669 1 598 – – –

Total Assets 44 127 278 45 343 503 36 877 369 7 513 478 7 403 333 7 375 800

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Equity Attributable to 
Equity Holders of Parent

Share capital 17 – – – – – –

Reserves 278 238 129 991 39 679 – – –

Retained income 27 241 878 28 681 601 27 610 117 6 347 476 6 327 801 6 278 458
27 520 116 28 811 592 27 649 796 6 347 476 6 327 801 6 278 458

Non-controlling interest 13 543 12 653 12 963 – – –

27 533 659 28 824 245 27 662 759 6 347 476 6 327 801 6 278 458
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Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from Group companies 7 – – – 489 021 489 021 490 512
Retirement benefit obligation 21 75 813 90 035 99 061 – – –
Deferred income 24 2 093 10 014 11 823 2 006 9 977 11 805
Deferred tax 4 2 015 686 1 745 720 460 – 460 460
Provisions 20 8 487 594 8 601 662 6 095 718 – – –

10 581 186 10 447 431 6 207 062 491 027 499 458 502 777

Current Liabilities
Loans from Group companies 7 36 406 597 655 590 248 498 653 485 411
Other financial liabilities 18 1 591 050 2 037 200 – – – –
Current tax payable 31 21 523 28 855 13 663 – 14 805 9 135
Unearned finance income 19 572 855 1 069 – – –
Operating lease liability 10 149 920 1 164 – – –
Trade and other payables 23 3 640 062 3 589 183 2 463 232 71 598 49 666 84 634
Deferred income 24 118 291 1 444 118 178 269
Provisions 20 283 116 320 536 431 300 13 011 12 772 15 116
Retention 22 – 890 890 – – –
Bank overdraft 15 357 655 – – – – –

5 930 651 5 979 327 2 913 417 674 975 576 074 594 565

Liabilities of disposal groups 16 81 782 92 500 94 131 – – –

Total Liabilities 16 593 619 16 519 258 9 214 610 1 166 002 1 075 532 1 097 342

Total Equity and Liabilities 44 127 278 45 343 503 36 877 369 7 513 478 7 403 333 7 375 800

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
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Statement of Comprehensive 
Income
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Continuing operations
Revenue 25 21 556 166 19 453 098  14 988 686 18 246 18 887 26 191
Cost of sales 26 (18 660 161) (17 401 291) (11 364 898) – – –

Gross profit 2 896 005 2 051 807 3 623 788 18 246 18 887 26 191
Other income 27 1 201 723 784 564 161 127 3 667 6 658 2 819
Operating expenses 28 (5 512 719) (2 112 863) (2 138 818) (145 076) (115 965) (49 874)

Operating (loss) profit (1 414 991) 723 508 1 646 097 (123 163) (90 420) (20 864)
Investment income 29 724 987 1 009 278 1 231 879 214 879 213 134 233 557
Income from equity accounted 
investments

6 178 716 159 201 103 794 – – –

Finance costs 30 (827 218) (850 989) (504 015) (55 441) (54 209) (66 242)

Profit/(Loss) before taxation (1 338 506) 1 040 998 2 477 755 36 275 68 505 146 451
Taxation 31 (93 639) 29 207 9 885 (16 600) (19 162) (25 771)

Profit/(Loss) from continuing 
operations

(1 432 145) 1 070 205 2 487 640 19 675 49 343 120 680

Discontinued operations
Profit/Loss for the year from 
discontinued operations

16 (6 688) 969 (2 223) – – –

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1 438 833) 1 071 174 2 485 417 19 675 49 343 120 680

Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on translating 
foreign operations

142 547 90 534 91 675 – – –

Actuarial gains/(losses) 5 700 (222) – – – –

Other comprehensive income for 
the year net of taxation

148 247 90 312 91 675 – – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (1 290 586) 1 161 486 2 577 092 19 675 49 343 120 680

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the parent:
Profit/Loss for the year from 
continuing operations

(1 433 035) 1 070 515 2 488 445 19 675 49 343 120 680

Profit for the year from discontinued 
operations

16 (6 688) 969 (2 223) – – –

Profit/(Loss) for the year 
attributable to owners of the parent

(1 439 723) 1 071 484 2 486 222 19 675 49 343 120 680

Non-controlling interest:
Profit/(Loss) for the year from 
continuing operations

890 (310) (805) – – –

Total comprehensive Income/
(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent (1 439 723) 1 071 484 2 486 222 19 675 49 343 120 680
Non-controlling interest 890 (310) (805) – – –

(1 438 833) 1 071 174 2 485 417 19 675 49 343 120 680
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Figures in Rand 
thousand

Foreign 
currency

 translation 
reserve

Fair value 
adjustment 

assets-
available- 
for-sale 
reserve

Other 
NDR

Total 
reserves

 Retained 
income 

Total 
attri-

butable 
to equity 

holders of 
the Group/
company

Non-
controlling 

interest

Total 
equity

Group
Opening balance as 
previously reported

44 757 (5 078) 16 428 56 107 26 347 164 26 403 271 12 963 26 416 234

Adjustments
Prior year adjustments – – (16 428) (16 428) 1 262 953 1 246 525 – 1 246 525

Balance at 01 April 2012 
as restated

44 757 (5 078) – 39 679 27 610 117 27 649 796 12 963 27 662 759

Changes in equity
Total comprehensive 
income for year

90 534 (222) – 90 312 1 031 845 1 122 157 (310) 1 121 847

Prior year adjustments – – – – 39 639 39 639 – 39 639

Total changes 90 534 (222) – 90 312 1 071 484 1 161 796 (310) 1 161 486

Balance at 01 April 2013 
restated

135 291 (5 300) 129 991 28 681 601 28 811 592 12 653 28 824 245

Changes in equity
Total comprehensive loss 
for the year

142 547 5 700 – 148 247 (1 439 723) (1 291 476) 890 (1 290 586)

Total changes 142 547 5 700 – 148 247 (1 439 723) (1 291 476) 890 (1 290 586)

Balance at 31 March 2014 277 838 400 – 278 238 27 241 878 27 520 116 13 543 27 533 659

Note(s)
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Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Figures in Rand 
thousand

Share 
capital

Foreign
currency

translation 
reserve

Other 
NDR

Total 
reserves

 Retained 
income 

Total 
attributable 

to equity
holders of 

the Group/ 
company

Minority
 interest

Total 
equity

Company
Opening balance as 
previously reported

– – – – 6 277 809 6 277 809 – 6 277 809

Prior period adjustments – – – – 649 649 – 649

Balance at 01 April 2012 
restated

– – – – 6 278 458 6 278 458 – 6 278 458

Changes in equity
Total comprehensive 
income for the year

– – – – 48 496 48 496 – 48 496

Prior period adjustments – – – – 847 847 – 847

Total changes – – – – 49 343 49 343 – 49 343

Balance at 01 April 2013 
restated

– – – – 6 327 801 6 327 801 – 6 327 801

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

– – – – 19 675 19 675 – 19 675

Total changes – – – – 19 675 19 675 – 19 675

Balance at 31 March 2014 – – – – 6 347 476 6 347 476 – 6 347 476

Note(s)
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Statement of Cash Flows

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
Cash flows from operating 
activities 
Cash generated/(utilised) by 
operations

33 3 134 480 5 467 114 1 125 906 (46 912) (105 984) (21 461)

Interest income 724 987 1 009 278 1 231 879 214 879 213 134 233 557
Finance costs (827 218) (850 989) (504 015) (55 441) (54 209) (66 242)
Tax (paid)/received 34 (91 085) 48 661 385 309 (43 970) (13 492) (11 416)

Net cash from operating activities 2 941 164 5 674 064 2 239 079 68 556 39 449 134 438

Cash flows from investing 
activities
Purchase of property, plant and 
equipment

2 (5 298 925) (8 915 733) (670 924) (1 259) (772) (1 067)

Sale of property, plant and 
equipment

2 1 252 170 1 162 23 10 146

Purchase of other intangible 
assets

3 (179 809) (2 198 866) (351 627) (622) (115) (860)

Sale of other intangible assets 3 145 243 – 2 – – –
Purchase of assets pending 
determination

– – 43 915 – – –

Investments in associates 6 (71 232) (68 147) (3 817) – – –
Sale/(purchase) of financial assets 769 834 (2 616 494) 204 787 – 7 062 –
Net cash flows of discontinued 
operations

16 (17 406) 9 733 449 068 – – –

Net cash from investing activities (4 651 043) (13 789 337) (327 434) (1 858) 6 185 (1 781)

Cash flows from financing 
activities
Repayment of other financial 
liabilities

(446 150) 2 037 200 (261 128) – – (263 886)

Movement in retention – – 890 – – –
Movement in third party funds – – (34 725) – – –
Finance lease payments – (214) 1 001 – – –
Finance lease receipts 933 (1 169) (4 483) – – –
Net movements in loans with 
Group companies

36 916 5 954 – 96 293 86 989 264 596

Net cash from financing activities (408 301) 2 041 771 (298 445) 96 293 86 989 710

Cash and cash equivalents 
movement for the year

(2 118 180) (6 073 502) 1 613 200 162 991 132 623 133 367

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the year

13 071 430 19 144 932 17 531 732 3 743 175 3 610 552 3 477 185

Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of the year

15 10 953 250 13 071 430 19 144 932 3 906 166 3 743 175 3 610 552

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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1. Presentation of annual financial statements

  The following are the principal accounting policies of the Group which are, in all material respects, 
consistent with those of the previous year, except as otherwise indicated:

1.1 Basis of preparation

  The consolidated Annual Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost basis, except for 
derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale investments that have been measured at fair value.

  The consolidated Annual Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with South African 
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the Companies Act of 2008. 
Although SA GAAP was withdrawn in December 2012, the Group is presenting its financial statements 
for 2014 on SA GAAP in accordance with Accounting Standards Board Directive 5, which allows 
schedule 2 entities to continue to apply SA GAAP.

  These Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand, being the functional currency of 
the Group. Rounding is to the nearest Rand in thousands. The consolidated financial statements are 
prepared on the going concern basis.

 The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of previous period.

1.2 Basis of consolidation

  The consolidated Annual Financial Statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the entity 
and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014.

  Control is achieved where the entity has power to govern the financial and operating policies of an 
investee enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

  Where necessary, adjustments are made to the Annual Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring the 
accounting policies used in line with the Group accounting policies.

  The most recent audited Annual Financial Statements of associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries are 
used where available, which are all within three months of the year-end of the Group. Adjustments are 
made to the financial results for material transactions and events in the intervening period. Losses in 
excess of the Group’s interest are not recognised unless there is a binding obligation to contribute to the 
losses.

 Company financial statements
  Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in the financial statements presented by the 

company are recognised at cost, and adjusted for impairment losses.

 Consolidated financial statements 
 Business combinations
  Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the holding company. The consolidated financial statements 

incorporate the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of the company and all entities 
controlled by the company as if they are a single economic entity.

Accounting Policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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1.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

  Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date i.e. 
when control is transferred to the Group. The cost of acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the 
consideration transferred at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in 
the acquiree.

 The Group measures goodwill at cost on acquisition date as:
 • The fair values of the consideration transferred; plus
 • The recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire; plus
 •  If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of pre-existing equity interest in the 

acquire; less
 •  The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
 •  When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

  The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

  Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group 
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

  If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in 
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the 
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or 
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and 
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts 
recognised as of that date.

  The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains 
complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date – and is 
subject to a maximum of one year.

  Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent 
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity.

  Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument is measured at fair 
value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

 Non-controlling interest
  For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the 
 acquiree either:
 • at fair value; or
 • at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value.

  Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based 
on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and 
no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

 Subsidiaries
  Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in 

the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

 Loss of control
  On the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-

controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit 
arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the 
previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.

  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to 
profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate. Subsequently that retained interest is accounted for as 
an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for- sale financial asset depending on the level of 
influence retained.

 Transactions eliminated on consolidation
  Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group 

transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains 
arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as 
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

 Interest in associates
  Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, 

over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds 
between 20 percent and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity.

  The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income of equity- accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies 
with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant 
influence ceases.

  When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying 
amount of the investment, including any long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, 
and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an 
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

  Investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method and are recognised initially at cost. 
The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

  The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the financial statements by using 
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case 
it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 (AC 142): Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations.
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1.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

  Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is 
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is 
assessed for impairment as part of that investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value 
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after 
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

  After application of the equity method, the Group assesses if it is necessary to recognise an impairment 
loss on its investment. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence 
that the investment in the associate is impaired. If such evidence exists, the Group calculates the amount 
of the impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the investment and its carrying 
value, then recognises the loss as ’Income from equity accounted investments’ in profit or loss.

  If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a 
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are 
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

 Interest in joint ventures
  A joint venture is a contractual agreement between two or more parties to undertake an economic 

activity, which is under joint control. This is when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions 
relating to the activities of the joint venture require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

 Joint controlled assets
  Where a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture arrangements directly, structured for 

jointly controlled assets without establishing a separate entity the Group’s share of jointly controlled 
assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in the financial statements of 
the relevant entity and classified line-by-line according to their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred 
directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual basis. Income 
from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of jointly controlled assets, and its share of joint 
venture expenses including expenses incurred in respect of its share, are recognised when it is probable 
that the economic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to/from the Group and their amount 
can be measured reliably.

 Joint controlled entities
  Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has 

an interest are referred to as jointly controlled entities. The Group reports its interests in jointly controlled 
entities using proportionate consolidation, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in 
which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 (AC 142): Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations. The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of jointly 
controlled entities are combined with the equivalent items in the consolidated financial statements on a 
line-by-line basis.

  Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity is accounted 
for in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary.

 Transactions eliminated on consolidation
  Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group 

transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising 
from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised 
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.3 Translation of foreign currencies 

 Transactions
  Foreign currency transactions are recognised, initially in Rand by applying the foreign currency amount to 

the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction, and is 
restated at each reporting date by using the ruling exchange rate at that date.

 Statement of Financial Position
 At each reporting date:
 •  foreign currency monetary items are measured using the closing rate;
 •  non-monetary items, which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, 

are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, and
 •  non-monetary items which are carried at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are reported 

using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

 Exchange differences
  Exchange differences arising from remeasurement of monetary items on settlement or on reporting the 

Group’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recognised during the 
period, or reported in previous Annual Financial Statements, are recognised in profit or loss in the period 
in which they arise. Exchange differences are capitalised where they relate to the purchase or 
construction of property, plant and equipment.

 Foreign entities
  In translating the financial statements of a foreign entity for incorporation in the Group financial 

statements, the following is applied: 
 •  the assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the foreign entity are translated at the  

closing exchange rate at the financial year end date;
 •  income and expense items of the foreign entity are translated at the weighted average rates of 

exchange for the year, and
 •  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal the  

component of other comprehensive income relating to this operation will be recognised in profit or loss.

  Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and fair value adjustments to the carrying 
amounts of the assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the 
foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

1.4 Comparative figures

 Comparative figures are restated in the event of a change in accounting policy or prior period error.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment represent tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply 
of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used 
during more than one period.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

 Carrying amounts
  All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses.

 Cost
  Cost includes all costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their 

intended use the initial estimate of restoration costs and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs. 
Improvements are capitalised. Maintenance, repairs and renewals which neither materially add to the 
value of assets nor appreciably prolong their useful lives are charged against income.

  Finance costs directly associated with the construction or acquisition of major assets are capitalised at 
interest rates relating to loans specifically raised for that purpose, or at the average borrowing rate where 
the general pool of borrowings is utilised.

 Major maintenance, inspection and repairs
  Expenditure on major maintenance refits, inspections or repairs comprises the cost of replacement 

assets or parts of assets, inspection costs and overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an asset, that 
was separately depreciated and is now written off, is replaced and it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group, the expenditure is capitalised.

  Where part of the asset replaced was not separately considered as a component and therefore not 
depreciated separately, the replacement value is used to estimate the carrying amount of the replaced 
asset(s) which is immediately written off. Inspection costs associated with major maintenance 
programmes are capitalised and amortised over the period to the next inspection.

 Derecognition
  The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use.

  Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their 
carrying amount.

  The gain or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in 
profit or loss. Gains on disposal will not be classified as revenue.

  Depreciation is charged so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets, other than land, over 
their estimated useful lives to estimated residual values, using the straight line method to write off the 
cost of each asset that reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to 
be consumed by the entity.

  Where significant parts of an item have different useful lives to the item itself, these parts are depreciated 
over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives of the assets are reviewed annually.

  The following methods and rates are used during the year to depreciate property, plant and equipment to 
estimated residual values:

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Item Average useful life

Land Not depreciated

Buildings and tank farms 5 – 65 years

Mine infrastructure 5 – 20 years (limited to life of mine)

Plant and equipment 3 – 35 years

Furniture, fittings and communication equipment 3 – 15 years

Motor vehicles 4 – 15 years

Office equipment 6 – 10 years

Computer equipment 2 – 10 years

Shutdown costs 3 – 5 years

Drilling rig 13 years

Fire fighting, security and operating equipment 5 – 25 years

Operating assets 3 – 8 years

  An exception is made for production assets and restoration costs, where the units of production method 
is used to calculate depreciation. Reference to the supplementary reserves disclosure can be made for 
more information on the reserves used.

 Improvements to leased premises are capitalised and written off over the period of the lease.

  The methods of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and adjusted 
prospectively if necessary.

 Production assets (oil and gas fields)
  Oil and gas production assets are the aggregated exploration and evaluation tangible assets, and 

capitalised development expenditure associated with the production of proved reserves.

  Subsequent expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of oil and gas production assets 
beyond their original specifications is recognised as capital expenditure and added to the original cost of 
the asset.

  Production assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives. This applies from the date production 
commences, on a unit of production basis, which is the ratio of oil and gas production in the period to 
the estimated quantities of proved and probable reserves at the end of the period plus the production in 
the period, on a field-by-field basis. Units of production rates are based on the proved and probable 
developed reserves, which are oil, gas and other mineral reserves estimated to be recoverable from 
existing facilities using current operating methods.

  Where there has been a change in economic conditions that indicates a possible impairment in a 
discovery field, the recoverability of the net book value relating to that field is assessed by comparison 
with the estimated discounted future cash flows based on management’s expectations of future oil and 
gas prices and future costs. Where there is evidence of economic interdependency between fields, such 
as common infrastructure, the fields are Grouped as a single cash generating unit for impairment 
purposes.  Impairment loss identified is recognised in profit or loss.

CEF SOC Ltd - Integrated Annual Report 2013/2014 121



1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

  Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is 
also reversed as a credit in profit or loss, net of any depreciation that would have been charged since the 
impairment.

  Any impairment identified is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as additional 
depreciation. Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the 
impairment charge is also reversed as a credit to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, net of any 
depreciation that would have been charged since the impairment.

 Mineral exploration, evaluation and development expenditure
 Exploration expenditure relating to desktop study and concept study is charged to the income   
 statement.

  Exploration and evaluation costs subsequent to the approval of the concept study are capitalised as 
exploration and evaluation assets. The costs are presented as intangible assets.

  Development commences once the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the mineral 
resource has been determined. The cumulative exploration and evaluation assets and development costs 
are presented as assets under construction. The cost capitalised includes finance cost incurred until the 
production facility is completed and ready to start the production phase.

  When production commences the evaluation and development costs in asset under construction are 
transferred to mine infrastructure.

  Expenditure on producing mines or development properties is capitalised when excavation or drilling is 
incurred to extend reserves or further delineate existing proved and probable coal reserves. All 
development expenditure incurred after the commencement of production is capitalised to the extent 
that it gives rise to probable future economic benefits.

 Derecognition
  The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use.

  Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between 
net disposal proceeds and their carrying amount.

  The gain or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in 
profit or loss.

 Restoration costs
  Cost of property, plant and equipment also includes the estimated costs of dismantling and removing the 

assets and site rehabilitation costs.

  Estimated decommissioning and restoration costs are based on current requirements, technology and 
price levels. Provision is made for all net estimated abandonment costs as soon as an obligation to 
rehabilitate the area exists, based on the present value of the future estimated costs. These costs are 
deferred and are depreciated over the useful life of the assets to which they relate using the unit of 
production method based on the same reserve quantities as are used for the calculation of depletion of 
oil and gas production assets.

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

  The amount recognised is the estimated cost of restoration, discounted to its net present value, and is 
reassessed each year in accordance with local conditions and requirements. Changes in the estimated 
timing of decommissioning or decommissioning cost estimates are dealt with prospectively by recording 
an adjustment to the provision, and a corresponding adjustment to property, plant and equipment. The 
unwinding of the discount on the restoration provision is included as a finance cost.

1.6 Assets pending determination

  The “successful efforts” method is used to account for natural oil and gas exploration, evaluation and 
development activities.

 Pre-licensing cost
  These are costs incurred prior to the acquisition of a legal right to explore for oil and gas and mineral resources.

 Exploration and evaluation costs
  Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search for hydrocarbons and mineral resources, the 

determination of technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of an identified resource.

  All costs relating to the acquisition of licenses, exploration and evaluation of a well, field or exploration 
area are initially capitalised as intangible assets. Directly attributable operating costs and finance costs 
payable are capitalised insofar as they relate to specific development activities.

  These costs are then written off as exploration costs in the profit or loss unless commercial reserves 
have been established probable or the determination process has not been completed and there are no 
indications of impairment.

 Assets pending determination
  Exploratory wells and fields that discover potentially commercial reserves are capitalised pending a 

decision to further develop or a firm plan to develop has been approved. These wells and fields may 
remain capitalised for three years. If no such plan or development exists or information is obtained that 
raises doubt about the economic or operating viability then these costs will be recognised in the profit or 
loss of that year. If a plan or intention to further develop these wells or fields exists, the costs are 
transferred to development costs.

 Development costs
  Costs of development wells, platforms, well equipment, attendant production facilities and mines are 

capitalised to property, plant and equipment. The cost of production facilities capitalised includes finance 
costs incurred until the production facility is completed and ready for the start of the production phase. 
All development wells and mines are not depreciated until production starts and then they are 
depreciated on the Units of Production method calculated using the estimated proved and probable 
reserves. Other than licence costs, no amortisation is charged during exploration and development.
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1.6 Assets pending determination (continued)

 Dry wells
  Geological and geophysical costs, as well as all other costs relating to dry exploratory well costs are 

recognised in the profit or loss in the year they are incurred.

1.7 Intangible assets

 An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

  Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost if acquired separately or internally generated or at fair 
value if acquired as part of a business combination. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. If assessed as having 
an indefinite useful life, the intangible asset is not amortised but tested for impairment annually and 
impaired if necessary. If assessed as having a finite useful life, it is amortised over its useful life using a 
straight line basis and tested for impairment if there is an indication that it may be impaired. Changes in 
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 
the intangible assets are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and 
are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

  Research expenditure relating to new technical knowledge and understanding is recognised in profit or 
loss when incurred.

  Development costs are capitalised only if they result in an asset that can be identified, it is probable that 
the asset will generate future economic benefits and the development cost can be reliably measured. 
Otherwise it is recognised in profit or loss.

  Purchased software and the direct costs associated with the customisation and installation thereof are capitalised.

  Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.

 Computer software  2 – 10 years

1.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

 Impairment of non-financial assets
  The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than investment property, inventories 

and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill 
and indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested annually for impairment. An impairment loss is recognised if 
the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.

  The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 
of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation 
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for 
publicly traded companies, or other available fair value indicators.

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.8 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

  For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
CGUs. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment 
testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes.

  Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit 
from the synergies of the combination.

  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and 
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

  An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised.

  Exploration assets are tested for impairment prior to transferring to the development phase of the 
property or whenever facts and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for 
the amount by which the exploration assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable amount.

1.9 Leases

  Where the Group enters into a service agreement as a supplier or a customer that depends on the use of 
a specific asset, and conveys the right to control the use of the specific asset, the determination of 
whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
date of inception. The arrangement is assessed to determine whether fulfilment is dependent on the use 
of a specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if 
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

 Finance leases – lessor
  Operating lease revenue is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Assets 

held under a finance lease are recognised as a finance lease receivable at an amount equal to the net 
investment in the lease. The recognition of finance income is based on a pattern reflecting a constant 
periodic rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease.

 Contingent rentals are recognised in profit or loss as they accrue.

 Leases
  Finance leases, which transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 

lease item to the Group, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value 
of the assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the date of the acquisition and 
depreciated over the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. The capital element of future 
obligations under the leases is included as a liability in the statement of financial position. Finance costs 
represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired. 
Finance costs are charged to the profit and loss over the term of the lease at the interest rates applicable 
to the lease on the remaining balance of the obligations.
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1.9 Leases (continued)

  Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease where significant or another basis if more representative of the time pattern of the 

 user’s benefit.

  When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, the unavoidable costs under 
a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling 
it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.

1.10 Inventories

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

 Strategic inventory
  Strategic crude oil is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a 

weighted average basis and includes purchase cost, transport, handling costs as well as allocated 
operating overheads. In arriving at the net realisable value account is taken of unpumpable crude oil and 
the crude oil sludge formed at the bottom of the tanks which cannot be removed if the tanks are used for 
storage and not trading.

  The carrying amount of the strategic crude oil is expected to be realised past 12 months after the 
reporting date, thus it is included in non-current assets and the net realisable value is calculated on a 
discounted cash flow basis.

 Trading inventory
  Finished and intermediate inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value according 

to the weighted average method. Cost includes production expenditure, depreciation and a proportion of 
triennial turnaround expenses and replacement of catalysts, as well as transport and handling costs. No 
account is taken of the value of raw materials and work in progress prior to it reaching intermediate 
storage tanks. Provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories.

  The net realisable value of crude oil and refined products is based on the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 
to make the sale.

 Provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories.

 Coal inventory
  Coal stockpiles are physically measured or estimated and valued at the lower of cost or net realisable 

value. Cost is determined by using the weighted-average method and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring, manufacturing and transporting the inventory to its present location. Manufacturing costs 
include an allocated portion of production overheads which are directly attributable to the cost of 
manufacturing such inventory.

  Net realisable value is the estimated future sales price of the product the entity expects to realise when 
the product is sold, less estimated costs to bring the product to sale.

 Spares, catalysts and chemical
  These inventories are measured at the lower of cost on a weighted average cost basis and net realisable 

value less appropriate provision for obsolescence determined by reference to specific items of inventory.
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1.11 Financial instruments 

 Recognition
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group Statement of Financial Position when 

the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

  Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial Position include cash and cash 
equivalents, trade receivables, investments, trade payables, borrowings, and derivatives instruments.

 Initial measurement and recognition
  Financial assets are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs. However transaction costs of 

financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss are expensed.

  Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets area recognised on trade date, i.e. when the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

 Subsequent measurement
  Subsequent measurement will depend on the classification of the financial asset as detailed below. The 

Group has the following categories of the financial assets as detailed below.

 The Group has the following categories of the financial assets as detailed below:

 (a) Loans and receivables;

 (b) Held-to-maturity investments;

 (c) Available-for-sale investment; and

 (d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

 Loans and receivables
  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 
months after the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method, less an allowance of uncollectable amounts.

  An estimate for impairment is made when objective evidence is available that indicates the collection of 
any amount outstanding is no longer probable. The amount of the impairment loss is charged to profit or 
loss. Bad debts are written off when identified.

 Held-to-maturity
  The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 

maturity dates as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the 
instrument to maturity. These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is 
computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative 
amortisation using the effective interest rate method. This calculation includes all fees paid or received 
between parties to the contract. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the investments are sold or impaired as well as through the 

 amortisation process.
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1.11 Financial instruments (continued)

 Available-for-sale
  An investment that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot 

be measured reliably using an appropriate valuation model.

  After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value 
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale 
reserve until the investment is derecognised or the investment is determined to be impaired, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, when the cumulative loss is 
reclassified from the available-for sale reserve to profit or loss.

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial 

assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are 
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the 

 near term.

  Derivatives are classified as held for trade. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are 
actively traded in financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices at the close of 
business on the reporting date. Where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation 
techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimises the use of unobservable inputs.

  The net changes in fair value are recognised as finance costs (negative changes in fair value) or 
investment income (positive net changes in fair value).

  The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting 
period during which the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer has occurred.

 Derecognition
  A financial instrument or a portion of a financial instrument is derecognised and a gain or loss recognised 

when the Group’s contractual rights expire, financial assets are transferred or financial liabilities are 
extinguished. On derecognition of a financial asset or liability, the difference between the consideration 
and the carrying amount on the settlement date is included in finance charges and fair value movements 
for the year.

 Impairment of financial assets 

 Non-derivative financial assets
  A financial asset not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, including an interest in an equity-

accounted investee, is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence 
that it is impaired.

  A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that loss event(s) had an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
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1.11 Financial instruments (continued)

  Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, 
restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise, 
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of 
borrowers or issuers, economic conditions that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of an active 
market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged 
decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment. Significant financial difficulties 
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or 
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable 
is impaired.

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost
  The Group considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and 

receivables) at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant assets are assessed 
for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for 
any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant 
are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.

  In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the 
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to 
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or 
lesser than suggested by historical trends.

  An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss in an 
allowance account against loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment securities. Interest on 
the impaired asset continues to be recognised in investment income. When an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

 Available-for-sale financial assets
  The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment is 

impaired. Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the 
losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss on a debt 
instrument that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, 
net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
recognised previously in profit or loss. Changes in cumulative impairment losses attributable to 
application of the effective interest method are reflected as a component of interest income. If, in a 
subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security increases and the 
increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, then 
the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss. However, 
any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised in 
other comprehensive income.
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1.11 Financial instruments (continued)

 Financial liabilities
  The Group’s principal financial liabilities are interest bearing borrowings, accounts payable and 
 bank overdraft.

 Initial measurement and recognition
 Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the transaction date at fair value net of transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement
 Subsequent measurement will depend on the classification of the financial liability as detailed below.

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
  Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the 

near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not 
designated as hedging instruments.

 Gains or losses on net changes on fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

 Loans and borrowings
  Subsequently, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost, using the effective 

interest rate method, comprising original debt less principal payments and amortisation.

  Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through 
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

 Financial guarantee contracts
  Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be 

made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment 
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are 
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate 
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

 Trade and other payables
  All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments 

and amortisation.

 Bank overdraft and borrowings
  Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the 
borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

 Offsetting
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement for 

financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends to 
either settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1.11 Financial instruments (continued)

 Fair value considerations
  The fair values at which financial instruments are carried at the reporting date have been determined 

using available market prices. Where market prices are not available, fair values have been calculated by 
discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates. The fair values have been estimated 
using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies, but are not necessarily 
indicative of the amounts that the Group could realise in the normal course of business. The carrying 
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to 
approximate their fair values due to the short term trading cycle of these items.

 Derivative financial instruments
  Derivative financial instruments, principally interest rate swap contracts and forward foreign exchange 

contracts, are used by the Group in its management of financial risks.

  Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are re-
measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

  Payments and receipts under interest rate swap contracts are recognised in the profit or loss on a basis 
consistent with the corresponding fluctuations in the interest payment on floating rate financial liabilities.

  The carrying amounts of interest rate swaps, which comprise net interest receivables and payables 
accrued are included in assets and liabilities respectively.

  Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative.

  All gains and losses arising from a change in fair value of or on disposal of held for trading financial 
assets are recognised in profit or loss.

 Cash and cash equivalents
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term investments and 

deposits which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value. They have a maturity period of three months or less. For the purpose of the 
consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits.

 Share capital
  Ordinary shares are classified as equity. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 

interest in the asset of an entity after deducting all its liabilities.

1.12 Post-employment benefit costs 

 Defined contribution costs
  The Group operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are held in a separate trustee 

administered fund. The plan is funded by payments from the Group, and takes into account of the 
recommendations of independent qualified actuaries.
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1.12 Post-employment benefit costs (continued)

  Contributions to a defined contribution plan in respect of service in a particular period are recognised as 
an expense in that period.

 Defined benefit costs
 Current service costs in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised as an expense in the current period.

  The Group provides defined benefit plans for pension and post-retirement medical aid benefits to 
qualifying employees. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefits is calculated separately 
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefits earned in return for services rendered. The cost 
of providing retirement benefits under a defined benefit plan is determined using a projected unit credit 
valuation method.

  Past service costs, resulting from either a plan amendment or a curtailment, are recognised immediately 
when the Group becomes committed to a change.

  Net interest expense relating to pension and medical aid benefits represents the net change in present 
value of the plan obligations and the net value of plan assets resulting from the passage of time, and 
determined by applying the discount rate to the present value of the benefit obligation at the start of the 
year, and to the fair value of plan assess at the start of the year, taking into account expected changes in 
the obligation or plan assets during the year. Net interest expense relating to these benefit plans is 
recognised in profit or loss.

  The effects of plan amendments in respect of retired employees in a benefit plan are measured as the 
present value of the effect of the amended benefits, and are recognised as an expense or as income in 
the period in which the plan amendment is made.

  Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding net 
interest and the return on plan assets, are recognised immediately in the statement of financial position 
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the 
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

 Other post-employment obligations
  Post-employment health care benefits are provided to certain retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement 

health care benefits is based on the employees remaining in service up to retirement age. The expected 
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment, using an accounting methodology 
similar to that for defined benefit pension plans. Valuations of these obligations are carried out annually 
by independent qualified actuaries.

1.13 Provisions

 Provisions represent liabilities of uncertain timing or amounts.

  Provisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obligation exists, as a result of past 
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation.

  Provisions are measured at the expenditure required to settle the present obligation. Where the effect of 
discounting is material, provisions are measured at their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks for which future cash 
flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to 
the passage of time is recognised as finance costs.
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1.13 Provisions (continued)

  Provision for the cost of environmental and other remedial work such as reclamation costs, close down 
and restoration costs is made when such expenditure is probable and the cost can be estimated with a 
reasonable range of possible outcomes.

 Restoration costs
  Cost of property, plant and equipment also includes the estimated costs of dismantling and removing the 

assets and site rehabilitation costs.

  Estimated decommissioning and restoration costs are based on current requirements, technology and 
price levels. Provision is initially recognised all net estimated decommissioning costs as soon as an 
obligation to rehabilitate the area exists, based on the present value of the future estimated costs. These 
costs are capitalised by increasing the carrying amount of the related production asset and depreciated 
over the useful life of the assets to which they relate using the unit of production method based on the 
same reserve quantities as are used for the calculation of depletion of oil and gas production assets.

  The amount recognised is the estimated cost of restoration, discounted to its net present value, and is 
reassessed each year in accordance with local conditions and requirements. Changes in the estimated 
timing of restoration or restoration cost estimates are dealt with prospectively by recording an 
adjustment to the provision, and a corresponding adjustment to property, plant and equipment. Any 
reduction in the restoration liability and, therefore, any deduction from the asset to which it relates, may 
not exceed the carrying amount of that asset. If it does, any excess over the carrying value is taken 
immediately to profit or loss. The unwinding of the discount on the restoration provision is included as a 
finance cost.

  Liabilities for environmental costs are recognised when a clean-up is probable and the associated costs 
can be reliably estimated. Generally, the timing of recognition of these provisions coincides with the 
commitment to a formal plan of action or, if earlier, on divestment or on closure of inactive sites.

 Environmental expenditures and liabilities
  Environmental expenditures that relate to current revenues are expensed and/or future revenues are 

capitalised as appropriate. Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations 
and do not contribute to current or future earnings are expensed.

  The amount recognised is the best estimate of the expenditure required. Where the liability will not be 
settled for a number of years, the amount recognised is the present value of the estimated future expenditure.

1.14 Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and 
these benefits can be measured reliably. The measurement is at the fair value received or receivable net 
of VAT, cash discounts, rebates and settlement discounts.

  Revenue from the rendering of services is measured using the stage of completion method based on the 
services performed to date as a percentage of the total services to be performed. Revenue from the 
rendering of services is recognised when the amount of the revenue, the related costs and the stage of 
completion can be measured reliably and when it is probable that the debtor will pay for the services.
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1.14 Revenue recognition (continued)

  Revenue from the sale of oil, petrol and mining products recognised when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred, when delivery has been made and title has passed, 
when the amount of the revenue and the related costs can be reliably measured and when it is probable 
that the debtor will pay for the goods.

  Revenue from royalties is recognised on the accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the 
relevant agreements. Revenue from licence fees is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with 
the substance of the relevant agreement.

1.15 Cost of sales

  When inventories are sold, the carrying amount is recognised as part of cost of sales. Any write-down of 
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories or reversals of previous write-downs or 
losses are recognised in cost of sales in the period the write-down, loss or reversal occurs.

1.16 Income from investments

  Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest 
rate applicable. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive 
payment has been established.

1.17 Taxation

 Current tax assets and liabilities
 The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

 Current income tax
  Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to 

be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date, in the countries where 
the Group operates and generates taxable income. The charge for current tax is based on the results for 
the year as adjusted for income that is exempt and expenses that are not deductible using tax rates that 
are applicable to the taxable income.

  Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss. Management periodically 
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations where applicable tax regulations 
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

 Deferred tax
  Deferred tax is recognised for all temporary differences, unless specifically exempt, at the tax rates that 

have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax relating to items 
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Such deferred tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly 

 in equity.
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1.17 Taxation

 Deferred tax assets
  A deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 

available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised, unless specifically exempt. It is 
measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at reporting date.

 Deferred tax liability
  A deferred tax liability is recognised for taxable temporary differences, unless specifically exempt, at the 

tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

  Deferred tax arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is recognised except 
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

 Royalties’ taxes
  In addition to corporate income taxes, the Group recognises taxes on royalty income. Royalties and 

resource rent taxes are treated as taxation arrangements when they have the characteristics of a tax. 
This is considered to be the case when they are imposed under government authority and the amount 
payable is calculated by reference to revenue derived (net of any allowable deductions) after adjustment 
for temporary differences.

  For such arrangements, current and deferred tax is provided on the same basis as described above for 
other forms of taxation. Obligations arising from royalty arrangements that do not satisfy these criteria 
are recognised as current provisions and included in expenses.

1.18 Finance costs

  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets 
are added to the cost of those assets, until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or 
sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended 
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the cost of those assets.

 Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

  Even though exploration and evaluation assets can be qualifying assets, they generally do not meet the 
“probable economic benefits” test and also are rarely debt funded. Any related borrowing costs incurred 
during this phase are therefore generally recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred.

1.19 Government grants

  Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense, it is deducted in 
reporting the related expense on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is 
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in 
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.
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1.19 Government grants (continued)

  When they are for expenses or losses already incurred, they are recognised in profit or loss immediately. 
The unrecognised portion at the reporting date is presented as deferred income (as a deduction from the 
asset to which it relates). No value is recognised for government assistance.

1.20 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

  The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts 
will be recovered principally through a sale or distribution rather than through continuing use.

  The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the distribution is highly probable 
and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate disposal in its present condition.

  Actions required to complete the distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to 
the sale are made or withdrawn. Management must be committed to the disposal expected within one 
year from the date of the classification.

  Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as 
held for sale.

  A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of 
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

 •  represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;

 •  is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical 
area of operations; or

 • is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

  Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to 
be classified as held-for-sale, if earlier.

  When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of 
comprehensive income is represented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the 
comparative year.

  The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income and the assets associated with these operations are included with non-current assets held for 
sale in the statement of financial position.

  They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal if their carrying 
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

1.21 Events after reporting date

  Recognised amounts in the Annual Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events arising after the 
reporting date that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date. Events after the 
reporting date that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date are dealt with by way of 
a note.
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1.22 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

 Irregular Expenditure
  Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a 

requirement of any applicable legislation, including:

 •  the PFMA, or

 •  any provisional legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government

  Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not 
condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority is recorded appropriately in the irregular 
expenditure register.

  If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account is created if such a 
person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person 
concerned.

  If recovery is not possible, the accounting authority may write off the amount as a bad debt and disclose 
such in the relevant note to the financial statements.

  If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related 
thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note 
to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. All irregular 
expenditure is charged against profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred and disclosed as a note 
to the Annual Financial Statements of the company and Group.

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been 

avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

  All fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against profit and loss in the period in which it is 
incurred and disclosed as a note to the Annual Financial Statements of the company and Group.

1.23  Key assumptions made by management in applying accounting 
policies

  Critical accounting judgements
  In preparing the annual financial statements in terms of South African Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice, the Group’s management is required to make certain estimates and assumptions that may 
materially affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the annual financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period and the related 
disclosures. As these estimates and assumptions concern future events, due to the inherent uncertainty 
involved in this process, the actual results often vary from the estimates. These estimates and 
judgements are based on historical experience, current and expected future economic conditions and 
other factors, including expectations of the future events that are believed to be reasonable under 

 the circumstances.
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1.23  Key assumptions made by management in applying accounting 
policies (continued)

 Mineral, Oil and gas reserve and resource estimates
  The coal, oil and gas reserves are estimates of the amount oil and gas and minerals that can be 

economically extracted from the Group’s petroleum and coal properties. The Group estimates this 
reserve and resources based on information compiled by appropriately qualified persons relating to the 
geological and technical data on the size, depth, shape and grade of the minerals and recovery rates. 
The recoverable reserves are also determined based on foreign exchange rates, future capital 
development and productions costs.

 Environmental, decommissioning and mine rehabilitation provision
  Provision is made for environmental, decommissioning and rehabilitation costs where either a legal or 

constructive obligation is recognised as a result of past events. These costs will be incurred by the 
Group at the end of the operating life of some of the facilities and properties. The ultimate costs are 
uncertain and cost estimates made in determining the present obligation can vary in response to many 
factors, including changes to relevant legislation requirements, new technological changes costs 
increases and changes to the discount rate used and the expected timing. Therefore, significant 
estimates and assumptions are made in determining the probable obligation. As a result, there could be 
significant adjustments to the provisions established which would affect future financial results. 
Estimates are based upon costs that are regularly reviewed, by internal and external experts, and 
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

 Other provisions
  For other provisions, estimates are made of legal or constructive obligations resulting in the raising of 

provisions, and the expected date of probable outflow of economic benefits to assess whether the 
provision should be discounted.

 Impairments and impairment reversals
  Impairment tests are performed when there is an indication of impairment of assets or a reversal of previous 

impairments of assets. Management therefore has implemented certain impairment indicators and these 
include movements in exchange rates, commodity prices and the economic environment its businesses 
operate in.

  Estimates are made in determining the recoverable amount of assets which include the estimation of cash 
flows and discount rates used. In estimating the cash flows, management base cash flow projections on 
reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent managements’ best estimate of the range of 
economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the assets, based on publicly available 
information. The discount rates used are pre-tax rates that reflect the current market assessment of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the future cash flow estimates have not 
been adjusted. Some of the assumptions are subject to risk and uncertainty. Therefore, there is a possibility 
that changes in circumstances will impact these projections, which may impact the recoverable amount of 
assets and/or CGUs.

 Units of production depreciation/amortisation of mineral oil and gas assets
  Mineral and petroleum rights, project development costs, certain plant and equipment and certain 

intangible assets are depreciated/amortised using the UOP basis. The calculation of the UOP rate of 
depreciation/amortisation, and therefore the annual charge to operations, can fluctuate from initial 
estimates. This could generally result when there are significant changes in any of the factors or 
assumptions used in estimating mineral or oil and gas reserves and resources, notably changes in the 
geology of the reserves and resources and assumptions used in determining the economic feasibility of 
the reserves. Estimates of proven and probable reserves and resources are prepared by experts in 
extraction, geology and reserve determination. Assessments of UOP rates against the estimated reserve 
and resource base and the operating and development plan are performed regularly.

 

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.23  Key assumptions made by management in applying accounting 
policies (continued)

 Defined benefit plans (pension benefits)
  The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the 

present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension 
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

 Contingent liabilities
  Management considers the existence of possible obligations which may arise from legal action as well as 

the possible non- compliance of the requirements of completion guarantees and other guarantees 
provided. The estimation of the amount disclosed is based on the expected possible outflow of 
economic benefits should there be a present obligation.

 Evaluation of the useful life of assets
  On an annual basis, management evaluate the useful life of all assets. In carrying out this exercise, 

experience of asset’s historical performance and the medium-term business plan are taken 
 into consideration.

 Critical accounting judgements

 Exploration and evaluation expenditure
  The application of the Group’s accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure requires 

judgement to determine whether it is likely that future economic benefits are likely, from either future 
exploitation or sale, or whether activities have not reached a stage that permits a reasonable assessment 
of the existence of reserves.

 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
  When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial 

position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 
using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in 
establishing fair values.

  Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

  Contingent consideration, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair value at the acquisition 
date as part of the business combination. When the contingent consideration meets the definition of a 
financial liability, it is subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date. The determination of 
the fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the 
probability of meeting each performance target and the discount factor.
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1.23  Key assumptions made by management in applying accounting 
policies (continued)

 Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock
  An allowance for stock to write down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have 

made estimates of the selling price and direct cost on certain inventory items. The write down is included 
in the operation profit note.

1.24 Related parties

  The services received or rendered from or to related parties arise mainly from service transactions, 
including management fees for services performed on behalf of the company.

  The receivables from related parties arise mainly from services transactions and are due on month after 
the date of the services.

  The receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no interest. There are no provisions held against 
receivables from related parties.

  The payables to related parties arise mainly from service transactions, including management fees and 
are due one month after the date of purchase. The payables bear no interest.

  The loans to or from related parties arise from loan agreements entered into for the year under review. 
These loans may be subordinated by CEF SOC Limited.

1.25 Adoption of South African Accounting Standards

 The Group has adopted the following amended AC’s as of 1 January 2013:
  The Group has applied, for the first time, standards and certain amendments that require restatement of 

previous financial statements. These are IAS 19 (AC 116) Employee Benefits (Revised 2011) and 
amendments to IAS 1(AC 101).

  Although SA GAAP was withdrawn in December 2012, the Group obtained an extension for presenting 
its financial statements for 2014 on SA GAAP rather than International Financial Reporting Standards 
‘IFRS’, thus IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement, IFRS 12 
Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements and IFRIC 20 Stripping costs, 
were not adopted by the Group as these standards were not applicable under SA GAAP.

 The Group has adopted the following amended AC’s as of 1 January 2013:
 IAS 1 (AC 101) Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income –   
 Amendments to IAS 1
  The amendments to IAS 1 introduce a grouping of items presented in OCI. Items that will be reclassified 

(‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (e.g., fair value changes on Available-For-Sale 
financial assets) have to be presented separately from items that will not be reclassified (e.g., revaluation 
of land and buildings). The amendments affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group’s 
financial position or performance.

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.25 Adoption of South African Accounting Standards (continued)

  IAS 1 (AC 101) Clarification of the requirement for comparative information 
(Amendment)

  These amendments clarify the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the 
minimum required comparative information. An entity must include comparative information in the related 
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the 
minimum required comparative period.

  The amendments clarify that the opening statement of financial position (as at 1 April 2012 in the case of 
the Group), presented as a result of retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in financial 
statements does not have to be accompanied by comparative information in the related notes. As a 
result, the Group has not included comparative information in respect of the opening statement of 
financial position as at 1 April 2012.The amendments affect presentation only and have no impact on the 
Group’s financial position or performance.

 IAS 19 (AC 116) Employee Benefits (Revised 2011)
  The Group applied IAS 19 (Revised 2011) retrospectively in the current period in accordance with the 

transitional provisions set out in the revised standard. The opening statement of financial position of the 
earliest comparative period presented (1 April 2012) and the comparative figures have been accordingly 
restated.

  IAS 19 (Revised 2011) changes, amongst other things, the accounting for defined benefit plans. Some of 
the key changes that impacted the Group include the following:

 ✔  All past service costs are recognised at the earlier of when the amendment/curtailment occurs or 
when the related restructuring or termination costs are recognised. As a result, unvested past service 
costs can no longer be deferred and recognised over the future vesting period. The interest cost and 
expected return on plan assets used in the previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a net-
interest amount under IAS 19 (Revised 2011), which is calculated by applying the discount rate to 
the net defined benefit liability or asset at the start of each annual reporting period. In view of this 
change, it was charged to the Group’s profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2013 with a 
consequential OCI gain.

  IAS 19 (Revised 2011),) also requires more extensive disclosures. These have been provided in Note 22. 
IAS 19 (Revised 2011), has been applied retrospectively, with following permitted exceptions:

 ✔  The carrying amounts of other assets have not been adjusted for changes in employee benefit costs 
that were included before 1 April 2012, 

 ✔  Sensitivity disclosures for the defined benefit obligation for comparative period (year ended 31 
March 2013) have not been provided.
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1.25 Adoption of South African Accounting Standards (continued)

  Standards that are not yet effective and the Group has not adopted them 
earlier 

 IFRS 9 (AC 146) Financial Instruments
  IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to 

classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The 
standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments 
to IFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures, issued in December 2011, 
moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB is addressing 
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets and the 1 January 2015 effective date of IFRS 9 
was removed. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and 
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the 
other phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.

 Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
  These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 provide an 

exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity 
under IFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at 
fair value through profit or loss. The Group will assess the impact.

 IAS 19 (AC 116) Employee Benefits (Amendment)
  With Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits) the 

IASB has amended the requirements in IAS 19 for contributions from employees or third parties that are 
linked to service:

 ✔  If the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, contributions 
may be recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related service is 
rendered (note: this is an allowed but not required method).

 ✔   If the amount of the contributions depends on the number of years of service, those contributions 
must be attributed to periods of service using the same attribution method as used for the gross 
benefit in accordance with paragraph 70 of IAS 19.

  The amendments are intended to provide relief in that entities are allowed to deduct contributions from 
service cost in the period in which the service is rendered. This was common practice prior to the 2011 
amendments to IAS 19. In those cases the impact of retrospective application would be minimal.

  The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. This amendment is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

  IAS 32 (AC 125) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – 
Amendments to IAS 32

  These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and the 
criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting. These 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The Group will assess the impact 
of this amendment.

Accounting Policies (continued)
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1.25 Adoption of South African Accounting Standards (continued)

 IAS 36 (AC 128) Impairment of Asset – Amendment to IAS 36
  The amendments relate to the disclosure in respect of fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments 

are intended to clarify the IASB’s original intentions when amendments were made to IAS 36 as a result 
of the issuance of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The amendments also require additional information 
about the fair value measurement of impaired assets when the recoverable amount is based on fair value 
less costs of disposal and the discount rates that have been used when the recoverable amount. The 
Group will assess the impact of this amendment.

 IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)
  IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as 

identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum 
threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum 
threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The 
Group will assess the impact of this IFRIC.

  Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012 cycle) and (2011-2013 cycle) are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
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Notes to the Annual Financial 
Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Narratives value in Rand

2. Property, plant and equipment

2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
 value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Land 57 065 – 57 065 59 364 – 59 364 58 999 – 58 999
Buildings 101 281 (26 595) 74 686 99 706 (19 641) 80 065 113 514 (27 672) 85 842
Production 
assets

28 780 517 (19 636 220) 9 144 297 26 289 314 (18 130 701) 8 158 613 20 335 518 (16 729 985) 3 605 533

Furniture and 
fixtures

635 799 (521 211) 114 588 599 622 (477 256) 122 366 632 537 (483 698) 148 839

Motor 
vehicles

68 880 (52 316) 16 564 65 413 (49 499) 15 914 67 844 (50 423) 17 421

Mine 
Infrastructure

63 043 (12 933) 50 110 55 093 (5 180) 49 913 45 124 – 45 124

Shutdown 
costs

635 928 (219 430) 416 498 – – – – – –

Assets under 
development

9 146 094 (2 145 868) 7 000 226 5 453 841 (360 397) 5 093 444 2 532 094 – 2 532 094

Restoration 
expenditure

2 629 754 (1 292 534) 1 337 220 2 981 033 (836 121) 2 144 912 1 753 864 (723 363) 1 030 501

Total 42 118 361 (23 907 107) 18 211 254 35 603 386 (19 878 795) 15 724 591 25 539 494 (18 015 141) 7 524 353

Company

Buildings 94 181 (23 722) 70 459 94 148 (18 857) 75 291 93 592 (13 574) 80 018
Furniture and 
fixtures

7 907 (5 906) 2 001 7 312 (4 924) 2 388 7 315 (4 456) 2 859

Motor 
vehicles

1 355 (1 049) 306 1 355 (853) 502 1 355 (579) 776

Computer 
equipment

5 640 (4 715) 925 5 044 (4 108) 936 4 835 (3 198) 1 637

Total 109 083 (35 392) 73 691 107 859 (28 742) 79 117 107 097 (21 807) 85 290

CEF SOC Ltd - Integrated Annual Report 2013/2014144



Notes to the Annual Financial 
Statements

2. Property, plant and equipment

2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
 value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Land 57 065 – 57 065 59 364 – 59 364 58 999 – 58 999
Buildings 101 281 (26 595) 74 686 99 706 (19 641) 80 065 113 514 (27 672) 85 842
Production 
assets

28 780 517 (19 636 220) 9 144 297 26 289 314 (18 130 701) 8 158 613 20 335 518 (16 729 985) 3 605 533

Furniture and 
fixtures

635 799 (521 211) 114 588 599 622 (477 256) 122 366 632 537 (483 698) 148 839

Motor 
vehicles

68 880 (52 316) 16 564 65 413 (49 499) 15 914 67 844 (50 423) 17 421

Mine 
Infrastructure

63 043 (12 933) 50 110 55 093 (5 180) 49 913 45 124 – 45 124

Shutdown 
costs

635 928 (219 430) 416 498 – – – – – –

Assets under 
development

9 146 094 (2 145 868) 7 000 226 5 453 841 (360 397) 5 093 444 2 532 094 – 2 532 094

Restoration 
expenditure

2 629 754 (1 292 534) 1 337 220 2 981 033 (836 121) 2 144 912 1 753 864 (723 363) 1 030 501

Total 42 118 361 (23 907 107) 18 211 254 35 603 386 (19 878 795) 15 724 591 25 539 494 (18 015 141) 7 524 353

Company

Buildings 94 181 (23 722) 70 459 94 148 (18 857) 75 291 93 592 (13 574) 80 018
Furniture and 
fixtures

7 907 (5 906) 2 001 7 312 (4 924) 2 388 7 315 (4 456) 2 859

Motor 
vehicles

1 355 (1 049) 306 1 355 (853) 502 1 355 (579) 776

Computer 
equipment

5 640 (4 715) 925 5 044 (4 108) 936 4 835 (3 198) 1 637

Total 109 083 (35 392) 73 691 107 859 (28 742) 79 117 107 097 (21 807) 85 290

2. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Group – 2014

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Opening 
Balance

Additions Disposals Transfers/
Reclassi-
fication

Foreign
exchange

movements

Change in 
estimate

Depreciation Impairment/
(reversal)

Other 
movements

Total

Land 59 364 – (630) (1 669) – – – – – 57 065
Buildings 80 065 581 – – – – (5 960) – – 74 686
Production 
assets

8 158 613 407 341 (12) 1 884 557 163 113 294 (740 653) (728 956) – 9 144 297

Furniture and 
fixtures

122 366 23 072 (216) 15 586 7 96 (46 220) (103) – 114 588

Motor 
vehicles

15 914 4 711 – – – – (3 622) (439) – 16 564

Mine 
infrastructure

49 913 8 040 – (70) – (3 102) (4 521) (150) – 50 110

Shutdown 
costs

– – – 635 928 – – (88 323) (131 107) – 416 498

Assets under 
development

5 093 444 4 839 566 (394) (786 522) – – – (2 145 868) – 7 000 226

Restoration 
expenditure

2 144 912 15 614 – 57 278 17 066 (363 114) (130 325) (389 296) (14 915) 1 337 220

15 724 591 5 298 925 (1 252) 1 805 088 180 186 (365 826) (1 019 624) (3 395 919) (14 915) 18 211 254

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Group – 2013 (Restated)

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Additions 
through
business 
combi-
nations

Disposals Transfers/ 
Reclassi-
fication

Other 
movements 

and 
changes

Foreign 
exchange 

movements

Change 
in 

estimate

De-
preciation

Impairment
loss

Closing 
carrying 

value

Land 58 999 365 – – – – – – – – 59 364
Buildings 85 842 2 763 293 (65) (2 929) – – – (5 839) – 80 065
Production 
assets

3 605 533 570 235 4 664 369 (8) 68 096 – 118 493 – (868 105) – 8 158 613

Furniture 
and fixtures

148 839 21 394 479 (92) (120) – 6 – (48 062) (78) 122 366

Motor 
vehicles

17 421 2 351 – – – (290) – – (3 568) – 15 914

Mine 
infra-
structure

45 124 8 028 – – (180) – – – (2 984) (75) 49 913

Assets 
under 
deve-
lopment

2 532 094 2 932 379 – (5) (10 628) – – – – (360 396) 5 093 444

Restoration 
expendi-
ture

1 030 501 618 619 94 458 – – – 11 227 634 514 (244 407) – 2 144 912

7 524 353 4 156 134 4 759 599 (170) 54 239 (290) 129 726 634 514 (1 172 965) (360 549) 15 724 591

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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2. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Group – 2012 (Restated)

Figures in Rand 
thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Disposals Classified 
as

held for sale

Transfers Foreign 
exchange

movements

Change 
in estimate

Depreciation Closing 
carrying 

value

Land 26 645 31 424 – – 930 – – – 58 999
Buildings 88 873 1 741 – – – – – (4 772) 85 842
Production assets 3 541 515 49 176 (303) – 495 243 6 127 – (486 225) 3 605 533
Furniture and 
fixtures

158 784 34 006 (792) – 1 953 1 – (45 113) 148 839

Motor vehicles 9 112 10 541 (67) – – – – (2 165) 17 421
Mine infrastructure – – – – 45 124 – – – 45 124
Shutdown costs 153 901 – – – – – – (153 901) –
Assets under 
development

2 049 504 544 036 – – (61 446) – – – 2 532 094

Restoration 
expenditure

1 307 231 – – 7 804 – – (104 196) (180 338) 1 030 501

7 335 565 670 924 (1 162) 7 804 481 804 6 128 (104 196) (872 514) 7 524 353

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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2. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

 Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Company – 2014

Figures in Rand thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing
carrying 

value

Buildings 75 291 225 – (5 057) 70 459
Furniture and fixtures 2 388 403 – (790) 2 001
Motor vehicles 502 – – (196) 306
Computer equipment 936 631 (23) (619) 925

79 117 1 259 (23) (6 662) 73 691

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Company – 2013 (Restated)

Buildings 80 018 293 – (5 020) 75 291
Furniture and fixtures 2 859 255 – (726) 2 388
Motor vehicles 776 – – (274) 502
Computer equipment 1 637 224 (10) (915) 936

85 290 772 (10) (6 935) 79 117

 Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Company – 2012

Buildings 84 766 177 – (4 925) 80 018
Furniture and fixtures 3 291 – (79) (353) 2 859
Motor vehicles 487 532 (67) (176) 776
Computer equipment 948 358 – 331 1 637

89 492 1 067 (146) (5 123) 85 290

 
  A register containing the information required by paragraph 22(3) of Schedule 4 of the Companies Act of 

South Africa of 2008 is available for inspection at the registered office of the Group. The directors of the 
companies evaluated the estimated useful life of the fixed assets as at 31 March 2014 to ensure that the fixed 
assets were fairly stated at year end.

  Registers of land and buildings are available at the registered offices of those subsidiaries that own land and 
buildings. The register for SFF is unable to be completed in full as required by the Companies Act of South 
Africa No. 71 of 2008. The cost price of the individual properties cannot be ascertained due to a lack of 
historical information. In addition all the land paid for by SFF, and reflected in these accounts is registered in 

the name of the State. SFF merely manages these properties on behalf of the State.

 PetroSA
  Restoration expenditure relates to the provision for restoration costs and is amortised on a units-of-

production basis over the expected useful life of the reserves.

  The units-of-production method is used in calculating depreciation on production assets. Due to the nature of 
the business the gas and oil reserves at the end of each financial year differs from the previous year. This 
necessitates a change in the estimated remaining useful lives of these producing assets at the end of each 
financial year. The effect on the current year is an increase in profit of R91 000 000 and the effect in future years 
is 2015: decrease of R93 000 000, 2016: R108 000 000, 2017: R90 000 000, 2018 to 2020: R340 000 000.
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3. Intangible assets

Group 2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying
 value

Cost Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Company 
Patents

57 701 (52 687) 5 014 57 424 (52 133) 5 291 57 424 (51 855) 5 569

Exploration 
and Appraisal

1 567 756 (934) 1 566 822 3 055 489 (1 045) 3 052 455 963 393 – 963 393

Software 57 910 (35 643) 22 267 46 598 (24 908) 21 690 30 629 (20 205) 10 424
Development 
cost

362 (362) - 362 (362) - 362 (362) -

Exploration 
licensing fee

– - – - – - 79 162 (79 162) -

Restoration 
cost

20 651 - 20 651 98 749 - 98 749 – - -

Total 1 704 380 (89 626) 1 614 754 3 258 622 (78 448) 3 178 185 1 130 970 (151 584) 979 386

Patents 50 490 (50 490) – 50 490 (50 490) – 50 490 (50 490) –

Software 7 730 (6 759) 971 7 108 (5 734) 1 374 6 993 (4 206) 2 787

Total 58 220 (57 249) 971 57 598 (56 224) 1 374 57 483 (54 696) 2 787

Reconciliation of intangible assets – Group – 2014

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Disposals Written 
back

Transfers Foreign
exchange 

movements

Change in 
estimates

Amortisation Impairment 
loss 

Closing 
carrying

value

Patents 5 291 – – – – – – (277) – 5 014
Software 21 690 11 602 – – (38) – – (10 932) (55) 22 267
Exploration 
licensing fee

3 052 455 161 249 (145 243) 136 (1 571 392) 70 551 – – (934) 1 566 822

Restoration 
cost

98 749 6 958 – (36 170) (57 278) 14 364 (5 972) – – 20 651

3 178 185 179 809 (145 243) (36 034) (1 628 708) 84 915 (5 972) (11 209) (989) 1 614 754

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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3. Intangible assets

Group 2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying
 value

Cost Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Company 
Patents

57 701 (52 687) 5 014 57 424 (52 133) 5 291 57 424 (51 855) 5 569

Exploration 
and Appraisal

1 567 756 (934) 1 566 822 3 055 489 (1 045) 3 052 455 963 393 – 963 393

Software 57 910 (35 643) 22 267 46 598 (24 908) 21 690 30 629 (20 205) 10 424
Development 
cost

362 (362) - 362 (362) - 362 (362) -

Exploration 
licensing fee

– - – - – - 79 162 (79 162) -

Restoration 
cost

20 651 - 20 651 98 749 - 98 749 – - -

Total 1 704 380 (89 626) 1 614 754 3 258 622 (78 448) 3 178 185 1 130 970 (151 584) 979 386

Patents 50 490 (50 490) – 50 490 (50 490) – 50 490 (50 490) –

Software 7 730 (6 759) 971 7 108 (5 734) 1 374 6 993 (4 206) 2 787

Total 58 220 (57 249) 971 57 598 (56 224) 1 374 57 483 (54 696) 2 787

Reconciliation of intangible assets – Group – 2014

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Disposals Written 
back

Transfers Foreign
exchange 

movements

Change in 
estimates

Amortisation Impairment 
loss 

Closing 
carrying

value

Patents 5 291 – – – – – – (277) – 5 014
Software 21 690 11 602 – – (38) – – (10 932) (55) 22 267
Exploration 
licensing fee

3 052 455 161 249 (145 243) 136 (1 571 392) 70 551 – – (934) 1 566 822

Restoration 
cost

98 749 6 958 – (36 170) (57 278) 14 364 (5 972) – – 20 651

3 178 185 179 809 (145 243) (36 034) (1 628 708) 84 915 (5 972) (11 209) (989) 1 614 754

3. Intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of intangible assets – Group – 2013 (Restated)

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Additions
 through
business 

combinations

Transfers Foreign
exchange 

movements

Other
movements

Amortisation Impairment 
loss

Closing 
carrying

value

Patents 5 569 – – – – – (278) – 5 291
Software 10 424 17 858 – 8 – – (6 600) – 21 690
Exploration 
licensing fee

963 393 162 146 1 885 000 (4 853) 47 814 – – (1 045) 3 052 455

Restoration 
cost

– 4 167 129 722 – 15 934 (51 074) – – 98 749

979 386 184 171 2 014 722 (4 845) 63 748 (51 074) (6 878) (1 045) 3 178 185

Reconciliation of intangible assets – Group – 2012 (Restated)

Figures in 
Rand 
thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Additions
 through
business 

combinations

Disposals Transfers Amortisation Impairment 
loss

Closing 
carrying

value

Patents 872 6 934 – – – (2 237) – 5 569
Software 4 580 – 7 460 (2) 3 (1 617) – 10 424
Exploration 
licensing fee

665 586 337 233 – – 39 736 – (79 162) 963 393

671 038 344 167 7 460 (2) 39 739 (3 854) (79 162) 979 386
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3. Intangible assets (continued)

 Reconciliation of intangible assets – Company – 2014

Figures in Rand thousand

Opening 
carrying 

value

Additions Amortisation Closing
 carrying

value

Computer software 1 374 622 (1 025) 971

Reconciliation of intangible assets – Company – 2013 (Restated)

Computer software 2 787 115 (1 528) 1 374

 Reconciliation of intangible assets – Company – 2012

Patents 872 – (872) –

Computer software 1 185 860 742 2 787

2 057 860 (130) 2 787

  Exploration and evaluation assets consist of expenditure in respect of exploration activities which have been incurred to 
determine availability of economic reserves.

  In the prior year, the exploration assets of African Exploration were presented separately as non-current assets and in the 

current year, the exploration assets are classified as intangible assets.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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4. Deferred tax

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Deferred tax (liability)/asset
Accelerated capital allowances 
for tax purposes

(1 991 941) (1 728 498) – – – –

Tax losses available for off-set against 
future taxable income

179 717 4 797 (443) 5 324 4 797 (443)

Recognised through profit and loss (23 680) (16 762) – – – –
Provisions 26 105 – – – – –
Prepayments (114) – – – – –

(1 809 913) (1 740 463) (443) 5 324 4 797 (443)

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset

Non-Current
At beginning of the year 5 257 17 5 337 5 257 17 5 337
Accelerated capital allowances 
for tax purposes

114 – – 95 – –

Increase in tax losses available for 
off-set against future taxable income

179 456 – – – – –

Deferred tax asset not recognised (215) – – – – –
Originating temporary difference on 
provisions

21 275 5 214 – 1 307 5 214 –

Originating temporary difference on 
prepayments

(114) – – (89) – –

Charged to profit and loss – 26 (5 320) (1 246) 26 (5 320)

Balance at end of year 205 773 5 257 17 5 324 5 257 17

Reconciliation of deferred tax 
liability

At beginning of the year (1 745 720) (460) (1 744 235) (460) (460) (1 957)
Originating temporary difference on 
prepayments

(79) – – – – –

Increase (decrease) in tax losses 
available for off- set against future 
taxable income

–  (1 807 796) 1 742 278 – – –

Originating temporary difference on 
tangible fixed assets

(268 940) – – – – –

Originating temporary difference on 
provisions

1 036 – – – – –

Temporary difference – (16 762) – 460 – –
Reversing temporary difference on 
fair value adjustment

– 79 298 1 497 1 497

Unredeemed capital expenditure (1 983) – – – – –

Balance at end of year (2 015 686) (1 745 720) (460) – (460) (460)
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5. Investments in subsidiaries

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

African Exploration – – – 4 4 4
Carbon Stream – – – – 390 390
CEF Carbon – – – – – –
PetroSA – – – 2 755 936 2 755 936 2 755 936
CCE – – – 45 479 1 1
ETA – – – 4 000 4 000 4 000
SFF – – – 1 1 1

– – – 2 805 420  2 760 332 2 760 332
Less Impairment
CCE – – – (45 478) – –

– – – 2 759 942 2 760 332 2 760 332

  A section 54 (2) approval was obtained per Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 for the closure of Carbon Stream 
Africa, CEF Carbon and SASDA.

 Details of Subsidiary Companies of shareholding and profit/losses

Issued 
capital

% Held Voting power % Profit/(loss) for the year

 Name and nature of business R’000  2014 2013 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

SANERI 
To undertake research and 
technology development in order to 
exploit and utilise the energy 
resources of the Republic and 
Southern Africa.

- 100 100 100 100 100 (1 141) (1 619) (11 406)

SASDA 
The empowerment of historical 
disadvantaged SA suppliers in the 
petroleum industry.

- 100 100 100 100 100 56 334 (12 606) (14 972)

OPCSA 
Containing and countering oil 
pollution.

- 100 100 100 100 100 1 849 10 024 9 302

Cotec Development 
Dormant

- 100 100 100 100 100 – – –

Cotec Patrade 
Dormant

- 100 100 100 100 100 – – –

Petroleum Agency SA 
Acting as an Agent for the State in 
promoting for and exploration of 
natural oil and gas in the Republic.

- 100 100 100 100 100 (27 357) 19 653 55 965

iGas 
To promote the diversification of 
energy usage into hydrocarbon gas 
and enter into ventures which will 
facilitate the use of hydrocarbon gas 
in SA

- 100 100 100 100 100 99 694 79 212 79 663

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Issued 
capital

% Held Voting power % Profit/(loss) for the year

 Name and nature of business R’000  2014 2013 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

SFF 
Management of strategic stocks of 
crude oil in accordance with 
ministerial directives.

1 100 100 100 100 100 19 236 153 864 154 178

PetroSA 
Exploration for and production of oil 
and gas, refining operations 
converting gas and gas condensate 
to liquid fuels, and the production of 
petrochemicals.

2 100 100 100 100 100 (1 648 711) 612 149 683 986

African Exploration Mining and 
Finance Corporation

4 100 100 100 100 100 46 012 111 123 65 056

To acquire, hold and 
develop all exploration and 
mineral rights.

Klippoortje Koolmyne 
Dormant

1 300 100 100 100 100 100 100 – – –

Mahnes Areas 
Dormant

– 100 100 100 100 100 100 – – –

ETA 
To generate and trade low 
carbon energy resources.

– 100 100 67 100 100 67 (883) (1 550) (3 128)

Carbon Stream Africa 
An advisory company 
delivering solutions and 
services for carbon emission 
reduction projects in Africa.

990 100 100 100 100 100 100 2 222 (10) (10)

CCE Energy Solutions 
To generate 8.8 MW 
electricity from biomass.

200 81 81 81 81 81 81 (6 688) (248) (1 678)

CEF Carbon 
The company provides 
advisory services as well as 
financial and operating 
support to CDM projects 
developers and purchasers 
of CER credits.

– 100 100 100 100 100 100 15 444 (38) (37)

Total for 2014 (1 443 989) 969 954 1 016 919

5. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

 
Details of Subsidiary Companies of shareholding and profit/losses
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6. Investments in associates

Figures in Rand thousand % Holding  % Holding  % Holding 
 Carrying 

amount
 Carrying 

amount 
Carrying 
amount

Group 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

Darling Wind Power Proprietary 
Limited

49.00% 49.00% 49.00% – – –

Baniettor Mining Proprietary 
Limited

49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 98 98 98

GTL.F1 AG 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% – – –
PAMDC 33.30% 33.30% 33.30% 8 416 5 252 2 756
Rompco 25.00% 25.00% 25.00% 835 944 768 444 701 610
Methcap 19.00% 19.00% 19.00% 2 299 1 329 1 241
Thin Film Solar Technology 45.00% 45.00% 45.00% 34 452 34 047 34 308
Philips Lighting Maseru 
Proprietary Limited

30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 3 786 4 236 5 246

Ener–G Systems Proprietary 
Limited

29.00% 29.00% 29.00% – 357 357

884 995 813 763 745 616
Impairment of investment in 
associates
Methcap (1 475) (1 475) (1 475)
Baniettor Mining Proprietary 
Limited

(98) (98) (98)

883 422 812 190 744 043

Figures in Rand thousand % holding  % Holding  % Holding 
 Carrying 

amount
 Carrying 

amount 
Carrying 
amount

Company 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

Darling Wind Power Proprietary 
Limited

49.00 % 49.00 % 49.00 % – – –

Baniettor Mining Proprietary 
Limited

49.00 % 49.00 % 49.00 % 98 98 98

MethCap 19.00 % 19.00 % 19.00 % 1 475 1 475 1 475
Thin Film Solar Technology 45.00 % 45.00 % 45.00 % 34 468 34 468 34 468
Philips Lighting Maseru 
Proprietary Limited

30.00 % 30.00 % 30.00 % 9 410 9 410 9 410

Ener-G Systems Proprietary 
Limited

29.00 % 29.00 % 29.00 % 357 357 357

45 808 45 808 45 808
Impairment of investments in 
associates
Methcap (1 475) (1 475) (1 475)
Baniettor Mining Proprietary 
Limited

(98) (98) (98)

44 235 44 235 44 235

 Unrecognised share of losses of associates 
The Group has discontinued recognising its share of the losses of GTL.F1 AG, as the investment at a Group level is held at 
R nil and the Group has no obligation for any losses of the associate. The total unrecognised losses for the current period 
amount to R34 000 000 (2013: R16 000 000). The accumulated unrecognised losses to date amount to R78 900 000 
(2013: R 44 800 000).

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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6. Investments in associates (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Darling Wind Power Proprietary 
Limited
Assets
Non-current 61 986 65 237 68 516 61 986 65 237 68 516
Current 1 269 1 932 1 162 1 269 1 932 1 162

63 255 67 169 69 678 63 255 67 169 69 678

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves (31 862) (29 530) (20 638) (31 862) (29 530) (20 638)
Non-current liabilities 78 724 73 981 72 940 78 724 73 981 72 940
Current liabilities 16 393 22 718 17 376 16 393 22 718 17 376

63 255 67 169 69 678 63 255 67 169 69 678

Revenue 1 028 3 240 3 236 1 028 3 240 3 236
Loss (2 332) (6 323) (5 471) (2 332) (6 323) (5 471)

The company’s year end is 31 March 
and is in the process of being 
liquidated.

Baniettor Mining Proprietary Limited

Assets
Non-current 2 208 2 207 2 207 2 208 2 207 2 207
Current 3 188 3 044 2 772 3 188 3 044 2 772

5 396 5 251 4 979 5 396 5 251 4 979

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves (43 983) (44 189) (44 410) (43 983) (44 189) (44 410)

Current liabilities 49 379 49 440 49 389 49 379 49 440 49 389

5 396 5 251 4 979 5 396 5 251 4 979

Revenue 175 163 166 175 163 166
Profit 207 221 28 207 221 28

The company’s year end is 30 June.
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6. Investments in associates (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

PAMDC

Assets
Non-current 140 231 318 – – –
Current 2 174 2 137 4 587 – – –

2 314 2 368 4 905 – – –

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves (357) 1 067 3 987 – –
Current liabilities 2 671 1 301 918 – – –

2 314 2 368 4 905 – – –

Loss (8 823) (8 060) (7 178) – – –

The company’s year end is 31 March.

Rompco

Assets
Non-current 4 377 931 3 643 950 3 655 177 – – –
Current 1 121 836 454 133 386 408 – – –

5 499 767 4 098 083 4 041 585 – – –

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves 1 537 771 983 274 1 753 374
Non-current liabilities 2 035 707 2 577 009 1 895 915 – – –
Current liabilities 1 926 289 537 800 392 296 – – –

5 499 767 4 098 083 4 041 585 – – –

Revenue 1 424 440 1 346 332 1 197 538 – – –
Profit 730 836 630 528 523 734 – – –

The company’s year end is 30 June.

MethCap SPV

Assets
Non current 15 570 15 597 17 818 15 570 15 597 17 818
Current 5 672 3 650 577 5 672 3 650 577

21 242 19 247 18 395 21 242 19 247 18 395

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves (495) (4 528) (6 574) (495) (4 528) (6 574)
Non-current liabilities 18 388 20 344 7 545 18 388 20 344 7 545
Current liabilities 3 349 3 431 17 424 3 349 3 431 17 424

21 242 19 247 18 395 21 242 19 247 18 395

Revenue 2 688 2 096 – 2 688 2 096 –
Profit/(Loss) 1 414 460 (4 674) 1 414 460 (4 674)

 The company’s year end is 31 December

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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6. Investments in associates (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Thin Film Solar Technology

Assets
Non-current 32 270 32 965 33 348 32 270 32 965 33 348
Current 43 693 42 466 42 184 43 693 42 466 42 184

75 963 75 431 75 532 75 963 75 431 75 532

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves 74 665 73 494 74 500 74 665 73 494 74 500
Current liabilities 1 298 1 937 1 033 1 298 1 937 1 033

75 963 75 431 75 533 75 963 75 431 75 533

Profit/(Loss) 900 (143) 1 445 900 (143) 1 445

The company year end is 31 March.

Philips Lighting Maseru Proprietary 
Limited

The financials are prepared in USD

Assets
Non current 2 828 3 323 3 758 2 828 3 323 3 758
Current 5 780 6 845 8 681 5 780 6 845 8 681

8 608 10 168 12 439 8 608 10 168 12 439

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves 1 845 1 994 1 597 1 597 1 994 1 597
Non current liabilities 4 000 4 667 5 000 4 000 4 667 5 000
Current liabilities 2 763 3 507 5 842 2 763 3 507 5 842

8 608 10 168 12 439 8 608 10 168 12 439

Revenue 13 684 17 222 3 275 13 684 17 222 3 275
(Loss)/Profit (149) 397 29 (149) 397 29

The company’s year end is 31 December.

CEF share in Phillips Lighting Maseru was sold to Kroninklijke Phillips N.V on 6 June 2014 for amount of USD 994 434.

Ener–G Johannesburg (Proprietary) 
Limited

Assets
Non current 24 140 23 955 23 843 – – –
Current 5 057 97 1 325 – – –

29 197 24 052 25 168 – – –

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves 10 938 (2 496) 789 – – –
Non current liabilities 10 076 21 962 – – – –
Current liabilities 8 183 4 586 24 379 – – –

29 197 24 052 25 168 – – –

Revenue 2 363 50 – – – –
Loss 1 810 6 561 1 542 – – –

The company’s year end is 31 March.
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6. Investments in associates (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

GTL.F1 AG Switzerland

Assets
Total assets 134 601 117 896 90 871 – – –

Equity and liabilities
Total liabilities (278 978) (170 756) (106 949) – – –

Revenue 12 891 1 465 3 723 – – –
Profit/(Loss) 79 392 34 509 (22 608) – – –

The company year end is 
31 December.

Income from equity accounted 
investments

Rompco 182 500 166 834 110 250 – – –
Ener–G (653) (3 806) (447) – – –
Methcap 970 87 – – – –
Philips (451) (1 009) (524) – – –
PAMDC (2 912) – – – – –
Thin Film 405 (261) 650 – – –
PetroSA DWP (1 143)  (2 644) (6 135) – – –

178 716 159 201 103 794 – – –

7. Loans (from) Group companies

Non–current assets 8 771 9 877 12 791 621 148 677 981 769 702
Current assets – – – 58 500 58 500 58 500
Non–current liabilities – – – (489 021) (489 021) (490 512)
Current liabilities (36 406) (597) (655) (590 248) (498 653) (485 411)

(27 635) 9 280 12 136 (399 621) (251 193) (147 721)

Loans to Subsidiaries
African Exploration – – – 208 899 208 899 240 715
Carbon Stream – – – – 2 110 2 036
Cotec Patrade – – – 3 731 3 731 3 731
CEF Carbon – – – – 15 589 15 257
ETA – – – – 55 571 40 598
CCE – – – 53 514 81 758 81 443
ETA – – – 19 409 29 461 28 612
iGas – – – 454 297 513 366 572 672

– – – 739 850 910 485 985 064

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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7. Loans (from) Group companies (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Impairment of loans to subsidiaries
CCE – – – (53 514) (81 758) (81 443)
Carbon Stream – – – – (2 110) (2 036)
CEF Carbon – – – – (15 589) (15 257)
Cotec Patrade – – – (3 731) (3 731) (3 731)
ETA – – – (19 409) (29 461) (28 612)
SASDA – – – – (55 571) (40 598)

Total impairment – – – (76 654) (188 220) (171 677)

– – – 663 196 722 265 813 387

Owing to Group companies
PetroSA – – – (489 021) (489 021) (489 021)
iGas – – – (197 156) (155 445) (136 507)
Thin Film (36 032) – – (36 032) – –
PASA – – – (334 333) (318 608) (312 627)
OPC – – – (22 353) (5 063) (5 432)
ETA – – – – (18 940) (30 190)
DWP (374) (597) (655) (374) (597) (655)

(36 406) (597) (655) (1 079 269) (987 674) (974 432)

Associates
Darling Wind Power 15 857 17 000 17 000 17 000 17 000 17 000
Baniettor Mining Proprietary Limited 23 933 23 933 23 933 23 933 23 933 23 933
Thin Film Solar Technology 5 077 5 077 5 077 5 077 5 077 5 077
Ener–G Systems Proprietary Limited 4 837 4 800 7 714 11 375 9 139 8 247

49 704 50 810 53 724 57 385 55 149 54 257

Impairment of loans in associates
Baniettor Mining Proprietary Limited (23 933) (23 933) (23 933) (23 933) (23 933) (23 933)
Darling Wind Power (17 000) (17 000) (17 000) (17 000) (17 000) (17 000)

8 771 9 877 12 791 16 452 14 216 13 324

Opening 
Balance

Change for
 the year

Reversed Written
 off

Total

Reconciliation of accumulated impairments – Company 2014

CCE 81 758 17 234 (45 478) – 53 514
Carbon Stream 2 110 503 – (2 613) –
CEF Carbon 15 589 18 – (15 607) –
Cotec Patrade 3 731 – – – 3 731
ETA 29 461 (10 052) – – 19 409
SASDA 55 571 8 661 – (64 232) –

188 220 16 364 (45 478) (82 452) 76 654

Reconciliation of accumulated impairments – Company 2013
CCE 81 443 315 – – 81 758
Carbon Stream 2 036 74 – – 2 110
CEF Carbon 15 257 332 – – 15 589
Cotec Patrade 3 731 – – – 3 731
ETA 28 612 849 – – 29 461
SASDA 40 598 14 973 – – 55 571

171 677 16 543 – – 188 220
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7. Loans (from) Group companies (continued)

Reconciliation of accumulated impairments – Company 2012

Figures in Rand thousand
Opening 
Balance

Change for 
the year

Reversed Written 
off

Total

 CCE 77 061 4 382 – – 81 443
Carbon Stream – 2 036 – – 2 036
CEF Carbon – 15 257 – – 15 257
Cotec Patrade 3 731 – – – 3 731
ETA 20 596 8 016 – – 28 612
SASDA – 40 598 – – 40 598
AEMFC 138 324 – (138 324) – –

239 712 70 289 (138 324) – 171 677

  A section 54(2) approval was obtained per Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 for the closure of Carbon Stream 
Africa, CEF Carbon and SASDA.

 African Exploration has pledged their assets as a collateral on the loan from CEF.

  Loans to subsidiaries and associates was reclassified from investments in subsidiaries and associates for the 2013 and 
2012 financial year.

8. Other financial assets

Group Company

 Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Non-current assets
Available-for-sale 5 209 15 900 23 115 – – 7 062
Loans and receivables 296 490 215 306 185 597 – – –

301 699 231 206 208 712 – – 7 062

Current assets
Available-for-sale 28 673 - - – - –
Cash at bank 1 725 000 2 594 000 – – – –

1 753 673 2 594 000 – – – –

Total 2 055 372 2 825 206 208 712 – – 7 062

Available-for-sale
Restricted cash held as insurance 
guarantee

33 882 15 900 16 053 – – –

The funds are balances held in terms 
of the Mineral and Petroleum 
Resources Development Act, 2002, 
for the company to execute 
environmental rehabilitation on 
Vlakfontein Mine and exploration 
assets in progress.

Johanna Solar Project – – 10 806 – – 10 806

33 882 15 900 26 859 – – 10 806
Available-for-sale impairments – – (3 744) – – (3 744)

33 882 15 900 23 115 – – 7 062

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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8. Other financial assets (continued)

Group Company

 Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Cash at bank
Restricted cash 1 725 000 2 594 000 – – – –

Restricted cash at bank is interest 
bearing and it’s use is restricted as a 
reserve for the servicing of debt 
under the Group’s financing 
agreements in relation to the PetroSA 
Ghana Limited investment.

1 725 000 2 594 000 – – – –

Loans and receivables
GTL.F1 126 839 79 166 68 724 – – –
This loan accrues interest at 
EURIBOR + 0.75%.
This loan is repayable on the 
commencement of profit generation 
by the company. 
Lurgi 
The amount owing by Lurgi is in 
respect of a purchase of 12.5% share 
in the PetroSA Statoil joint venture. 
The loan accrues interest at 
EUROBOR + 0.75%. The loan is 
repayable based on dividends 
receivable by Lurgi from the GTL.F1

169 651 136 140 116 873 - - -

AG technology company.

296 490 215 306 185 597 – – –

Total other financial assets 2 055 372 2 825 206 208 712 – – 7 062

  A decision was taken to impair PetroSA’s loan to PetroSA Egypt and PetroSA Equatorial Guinea of R1 142 000 000 
 (2012: R1 142 000 000) and R1 599 000 000 (2012: R1 142 000 000) respectively, due to its irrecoverability.

  PetroSA has subordinated the loans to various subsidiaries in favour of other creditors of the above mentioned companies 
until such time as the assets fairly valued exceed the liabilities.

9. Finance lease receivables

Non-current assets 1 858 2 770 3 906 - - -
Current assets 794 815 848 - - -

2 652 3 585 4 754 - - -

Gross investment in the lease due

- within one year 794 815 848 - - -
- inclusive in second to fifth year 1 858 2 770 3 906 - - -

2 652 3 585 4 754 - - -
Less: Unearned finance income (refer 
to note 20)

(572) (855) (1 069) - - -

2 080 2 730 3 685 - - -

 The company entered into finance leasing arrangements for its solar water heating installations with customers in the   
 Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan and Ekurhuleni Metropolitan areas.

 The average lease terms are 72 months and the average effective lending rate was 10% (2013: 10%) resulting in unearned   
 finance charges of R572 000 (2013: R855 000).
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10. Operating lease asset (accrual)

Group Company

 Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Current liabilities  (149) (920) (1 164) - - -

(149) (920) (1 164) - - -

11. Strategic inventory

Crude oil at cost 2 078 004 2 078 004 2 078 004 - - -

Prior year provision for unpumpable 
inventory

(15 134) (15 134) (15 134) - - -

Previous year stock adjustment (10 600) (10 238) (3 972) - - -

Current year stock adjustment for 
losses

(924) (362) (6 259) - - -

White products 1 073 804 1 073 804 1 049 203 - - -

3 125 150 3 126 074 3 101 842 - - -

 The total volume of diesel white product on hand as at 31 March 2014, is 155 million litres, valued at R1.325 billion. At   
 year-end 10.27 million barrels of crude oil were held.

12. Payments paid in advance
 Amounts paid in advance in respect of capital investment, to be recognised in the income statement over the useful life of   
 the underlying asset of AEMFC.

 Eskom SOC Limited constructs power infrastructure to the AEMFC. The infrastructure is dedicated equipment and the cost  
 of the infrastructure will be charged to the income statement over the life of the mine.

Non-current - payments paid in 
advance

1 141 - - - - -

Current - payments paid in advance 104 - - - - -

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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13. Inventories

The amounts attributable to the different categories are as

Group Company

 Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Petroleum fuels 2 647 819 2 143 654 1 836 949 - - -
Crude Oil 11 156 182 990 24 712 - - -
Crushed coal stock 3 040 2 303 12 188 - - -
Consumable stores, spares and 
catalysts

318 305 475 836 441 647 - - -

Run of mine stock 5 056 7 754 3 086 - - -
2 985 376 2 812 537 2 318 582 - - -

Inventories (write-downs) (841) (4 132) - - - -

2 984 535 2 808 405 2 318 582 - - -

 African Exploration

 Inventory is made up of ROM stock (Run of Mine) and crushed coal stock. The ROM stock is the coal directly extracted   
 from the pit. This is either sold to external customers or crushed according to customer specification and converted to the   
 finished product called crushed coal. The product stock is mainly sold to Eskom SOC Limited. Write down of R840 692   
 (2013: R4 132 000) relates to the coal qualities of 5 seam that have been written down to the net realisable value. The prior   
 year write down relates to ROM coal that was burnt due to spontaneous combustion.

14. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 3 014 913 3 049 586 2 267 013 9 122 9 669 8 877
Prepayments 189 146 198 813 116 352 866 951 841
Deposits 12 070 4 507 791 - - -
VAT 272 550 123 004 122 444 2 661 1 064 69
Operating lease receivables  
(if immaterial)

13 230 4 023 13 779 - - -

Foreign receivables 48 365 78 439 1 528 - - -

Provision for doubtful debts (73 557) (72 489) (74 369) (3 758) (2 670) (2 071)

Sundry receivables 223 422 359 627 362 035 22 045 24 348 29 607

3 700 139 3 745 510 2 809 573 30 936 33 362 37 323

 The provision for doubtful debts consists of a number of customer account balances. The SFF provision for doubtful debts   
 amounting to R37 700 000 relates to wharfage expenses due from a customer. SFF continues to seek legal restitution for   
 this amount, as the customer has been unable to adequately compensate the company. CEF provision for doubtful debts   
 that amounts to R3 758 000 (2013: R2 670 000) is for the Darling Wind Farm project which will be liquidated during the   
 2015 financial year.

 PetroSA provision for doubtful debts amount to R31 976 000 (2013: R31 680 000). This consists of a number of customer   
 balances. 

 Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired.
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14. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Group Company

 Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Reconciliation of provision for bad debts in trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year 72 489 58 316 88 903 2 670 2 071 1 023

Increase in provision 6 492 17 548 17 960 1 088 599 1 048

Amounts recovered during the year (2 663) (2 455) (3 191) - - -

Amounts reversed - - (12 144) - - -

Written off (2 761) (920) (6 593) - - -

Transferred - - (10 566) - - -

73 557 72 489 74 369 3 758 2 670 2 071

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Current assets 11 310 905 13 071 430 19 144 932 3 906 166 3 743 175 3 610 552

(357 655) - - - - -

10 953 250 13 071 430 19 144 932 3 906 166 3 743 175 3 610 552

 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of financial position comprise the following:

Short-term investments in money 
market

8 745 507 10 105 105 16 292 838 3 892 664 3 731 845 3 549 195

Bank balances 712 915 1 138 828 166 982 13 502 11 330 61 357

Short-term deposits 1 852 483 1 827 497 2 685 112 - - -

11 310 905 13 071 430 19 144 932 3 906 166 3 743 175 3 610 552

Bank overdraft (357 655) - - - - -

10 953 250 13 071 430 19 144 932 3 906 166 3 743 175 3 610 552

 Included in the company cash are funds invested on behalf of Group companies and third parties.

 PetroSA

 A term deposit of R30 700 000 (2013: R28 700 000) is held in the company Energy Africa Rehabilitation 
 (non-profit company), and is committed solely for the abandonment expenditure for the Oribi/Oryx field.

 The bank overdraft relates to PetroSA specifically for imported purchases.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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16. Discontinued operations or disposal groups or non-current assets   
       held for sale and liabilities of disposal groups

Group Company

 Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Profit and loss
Revenue
Expenses (6 688) 969 (2 223) - - -

Non-current assets held for sale
Property, plant and equipment 10 669 10 669 - - - -

Current Assets of disposal groups
Trade and other receivables - - 1 598 - - -

10 669 10 669 1 598 - - -

Liabilities of disposal groups

Other financial liabilities 81 782 82 418 82 566 - - -

Settlement of liability - 10 082 8 435 - - -

Retention fee - - 3 130 - - -

81 782 92 500 94 131 - - -

Non-current assets held for sale 10 669 10 669 - - - -

Assets of disposal groups - - 1 598 - - -

10 669 10 669 1 598 - - -

Liabilities of disposal groups 81 782 92 500 94 131 - - -

 The Minister of Energy’s approval in terms of section 54(2) of the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999 to dispose  
 of the OPC was received on 26 October 2012. The Minister approved the CEF SOC Board’s request to dispose of the   
 business of OPC and to donate the assets to SFF.

 All indications are that the restructuring process of OPC will be finalised within the financial year 2014/15, given that the   
 only outstanding activities are the legal compliance and administrative processes of winding down the company’s affairs.

 

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Non-current assets held for sale - 10 395 1 167 241 - - -

Liabilities of disposal groups (10 718) (1 631) (715 950) - - -

Profit / (loss) from discontinued 
operations

(6 688) 969 (2 223) - - -

(17 406) 9 733 449 068 - - -
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17. Share capital
 

Group Company

 Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Authorised

100 Ordinary par value shares of 
R1 each

- - - - - -

Issued

1 Ordinary par value shares of 
R1 each

- - - - - -

18. Other financial liabilities

Bank loan 1 591 050 2 037 200 - - - -

The loan is secured by a cash 
collateral of R1 725 000 (2013: 
R2 594 000). An amount of $70 000
000 was repaid. The loan accrues 
interest at USD LIBOR plus a 
percentage ranging between 0.585% 
throughout the financial year 
(2013: ranged between 0.96% and 
0.585 %). All interest payable accrues 
from day to day at the relevant rate of 
interest, is calculated on the basis of 
the actual number of days elapsed 
and a 360 day year and is 
compounded quarterly. The loan 
repayable in full on 30 June 2014.

1 591 050 2 037 200 - - - -

19. Unearned finance income

Finance lease arrangement 572 855 1 069 - - -

 ETA SOC Limited entered into finance lease arrangements with customers for its solar water heating installations. The   
 average lease term is 72 months and the nominal lending rate is 10% (2013: 10%), resulting in unearned finance charges of  
 R572 000 (2013: R855 000).

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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20. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - Group - 2014

Figures in Rand thousand

Opening 
Balance

Additions Utilised 
during the 

year

Interest 
expense

Change in 
discount 

factor

Reverse 
during the 

year

Total

Abandonment/Environment 8 222 563 67 355 (51 080) 541 423 (368 975) (5 608) 8 405 678
Litigations 71 524 7 900 (107) - 9 749 - 89 066
Rehabilitation provisions 9 104 7 551 (1 191) (1 627) - - 13 837
Product warranties 121 - (28) - - - 93
Social investment 40 622 - (3 759) - - - 36 863
Interest and penalties 13 025 1 141 - (1 620) - - 12 546
Bonus 243 974 225 313 (256 660) - - - 212 627
Contingent consideration 321 265 (170 067) (151 198) - - - -

8 922 198 139 193 (464 023) 538 176 (359 226) (5 608) 8 770 710

Reconciliation of provisions - Group - 2013

Figures in Rand 
thousand

Opening 
Balance

Additions Utilised 
during the 

year

Interest 
expense

Change in 
discount 

factor

Additions 
through 
business 

combinations

Reversed 
during the 

year

Total

Abandonment/
Environment

6 158 597 670 590 (9 013) 559 674 583 713 259 002 - 8 222 563

Litigations 54 589 8 418 (701) - 9 218 - - 71 524
Rehabilitation 
provision

9 127 - (23) - - - - 9 104

Product warranties 152 - (31) - - - - 121
Social investment - 40 622 - - - - -  40 622 
De-sludge 460 - (460) - - - - - 
Bonus 292 687 234 839 (283 552) - - - (562) 243 974

Penalties and 
interest

11 406 1 619 - - - - -  13 025

Contingent 
consideration

- 519 694 (221 952) 26 329 (2 806) - - 321 265

6 527 018 1 475 782 (515 732) 586 003 590 125 259 002 (562) 8 922 198

Reconciliation of provisions - Group - 2012

Figures in Rand thousand

Opening 
Balance

Additions Utilised 
during the 

year

Interest 
expense

Change in 
discount 

factor

Reverse 
during the 

year

Total

Abandonment/Environment 5 812 396 22 165 - 454 241 (130 205) - 6 158 597
Litigations 27 686 54 589 (27 686) - - - 54 589
Rehabilitation provisions 9 127 - - - - - 9 127
Product warranties 14 138 - - - - 152
De-sludge 5 248 - (4 788) - - - 460
Bonus 383 934 148 399 (239 646) - - - 292 687
Demurrage - 11 406 - - - - 11 406

6 238 405 236 697 (272 120) 454 241 (130 205) - 6 527 018
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20. Provisions (continued)

 Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2014

Figures in Rand thousand

Opening 
Balance

Additions Utilised 
during the 

year

Total

Bonus 12 772 13 013 (12 774) 13 011

 Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2013

Bonus 15 116 10 737 (13 081) 12 772

 Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2012

Litigations 3 186 - (3 186) -

Bonus 15 116 10 737 (13 081) 12 772

16 030 15 116 (16 030) 15 116

Group Company

2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

Non-current liabilities 8 487 594 8 601 662 6 095 718 - - -

Current liabilities 283 116 320 536 431 300 13 011 12 772 15 116

8 770 710 8 922 198 6 527 018 13 011 12 772 15 116

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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20. Provisions (continued)

 Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2014

Figures in Rand thousand

Opening 
Balance

Additions Utilised 
during the 

year

Total

Bonus 12 772 13 013 (12 774) 13 011

 Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2013

Bonus 15 116 10 737 (13 081) 12 772

 Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2012

Litigations 3 186 - (3 186) -

Bonus 15 116 10 737 (13 081) 12 772

16 030 15 116 (16 030) 15 116

Group Company

2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

2014 2013
Restated

2012
Restated

Non-current liabilities 8 487 594 8 601 662 6 095 718 - - -

Current liabilities 283 116 320 536 431 300 13 011 12 772 15 116

8 770 710 8 922 198 6 527 018 13 011 12 772 15 116

20. Provisions (continued)

Rehabilitation
This amount is for the rehabilitation of the land at the Voorbaai terminal of PetroSA and the provision for SFF is in 
respect of funds held for the rehabilitation of the Klippoortje dump on behalf of High Carbon Products (Pty) Limited. 
The fund is held in an attorneys trust account. Contractually these funds will only be released to High Carbon Products 
(Pty) Limited after the issuing of a closure certificate by DME.

Social investment
This provision is for commitments to community investment projects as a pre-condition for the issuing of exploration 
licences.

Bonus
The provision is for incentives for employees who qualify in terms of their performance during the financial year. Board 
approval required before payments can be made.

Contingent consideration
The provision was raised to account for the financial implication of production target and approvals which may be met 
in term of the Sabre share purchase agreement.

Litigation provision

SFF and City of Cape Town

SFF has instituted an application to the high court for the review and an order setting aside the decision made by the 
City of Cape Town Municipality in approving certain sub divisions as well as an interdict against the developer for the 
development of the proposed estate. The reason for the application is to prevent the developer from developing the 
portion of land which falls in the “separation distance” directly adjacent to the tank farm. Judgement was granted 
against SFF with costs. A review application is in process.

SFF and Morgan Stanley

There is a claim by a customer for undelivered crude oil and damages as a result of SFF failing to transfer outstanding 
crude following the expiry of a storage agreement. Barrels claimed amount to 50 596 barrels of crude oil plus damages 
amounting to approximately USD 5 900 000.

Abandonment/Environmental 

SFF

The provision relates to the abandonment of Milnerton and Saldanha tanks and environmental rehabilitation at Ogies 
and is based on the cost report provided by Kantey & Templer Consulting Engineers on 20 May 2011, updated with 
valuation calculations performed by management. Refer to below for assumptions used in the valuation.

The total cost of future restoration costs is estimated at R318 000 000. This cost includes the net expenditure to 
abandon and rehabilitate both the onshore and offshore facilities as well as other related closure costs.
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20. Provisions (continued)

Assumptions for abandonment costs
Saldanha Terminal

The six in-ground tanks in Saldanha will be decommissioned and withdrawn from service but will not be demolished. 
On withdrawal from service they will be cleaned, decommissioned, and mothballed. Only equipment within the 
perimeter fence would be mothballed while equipment outside the fence will be removed from site.

The value of any recovered material including steel from tanks, electrical transformers, electrical cabling, etc will not 
be used to offset the cost of demolition of the various facilities. The cost of removing the various equipment from 
terminal to the dumping site however is assumed to be offset by the value realised from recovered material.

The costs relating to decommissioning equipment belonging to Chevron are excluded from liability calculations.

Cubic metre to barrels conversion factor bbl/m3 6.289

1m to ft conversion factor 3.28

Suspended sludge % 5

Light Crude Oil price (Bonny Light)

Base year (2011) $/bbl 120

Valuation year $/bbl 110

Exchange rate - ZAR/USD

Base year (2011) 6.8000

Valuation year 9.2070

Light (high API) crude oil required m3 178,000

Light crude oil required bbl 1,119,442

Light crude oil with suspended sludge bbl 1,295,894

Headline CPI base (June 2011) 92.4

Headline CPI base (March 2013) 102.5

CPI Escalation factor 1.1093

Services CPI base (June 2011) - 2008 base year 120.2

Services CPI new (March 2013) - 2012 base year 103.2

Services CPI Escalation factor

Electricity PPI base (June 2011) - 2000 base year 380.4

Electricity PPI new (March 2013) - 2012 base year 89.6

Electricity PPI Escalation factor

Milnerton Terminal

The allowance with respect to earthworks within the tank farm boundary is to be as follows:
(a) Earth bund walls are to be demolished and the material spread over the bund floors and compacted.
(b) No further allowance will be made to return the area to its original ground level i.e. the existing terracing  
 will remain.

The following items will be assumed to remain:
(a) The tank farm perimeter demarcation fence.
(b) The main valve feed from the City of Cape Town.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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20. Provisions (continued)
The cost of removal of all of the following from the servitude between the Chevron tie-in and the Milnerton facility is 
to be included:
(a)  Removal of crude oil pipelines including valves up to the Chevron boundary.
(b)  Backfill and compact excavated trenches.
(c)  Reinstatement of servitude and road crossings.
(d)  Within the Chevron boundary, allowance has been made to leave this section of the pipeline in place and  
 cap the ends of the pipeline.

The value of any recovered material including steel from tanks, steel piping, transformers and electrical cabling will 
not be used to offset the cost of demolition of the various facilities. Allowance will be made for potentially recoverable 
material to be placed in waste skips after demolition. The cost of removal from the tank farm to a scrap yard will be 
deemed to be offset by the value of the recovered materials.

Professional fees R/hr 415

Travelling costs R/km 3.75

Cape Town - Saldanha distance km 140

It should be noted that this exercise was merely done to determine the cost of abandonment should the tanks no 
longer be required. SFF has no intention of abandoning the Saldanha or Milnerton terminals.

AEMFC

As at 31 March 2014, R24 600 000 has been recognised for Vlakfontein rehabilitation (31 March 2013: R19 700 000) 
which is based on estimates provided by environmental consultants. The provisions for rehabilitation costs include 
estimates for the effect of inflation and changes in estimates and have been discounted to their present value at a 
discount rate of 7.82% (2013: 6.11%) per annum.

The company makes use of independent environmental consultants for advice and it also uses past experience in 
similar situations to ensure that the provisions for rehabilitation are adequate. Current life of mine plans envisage the 
expected outflow to occur at the end of the life of mine.

In respect of the additional rehabilitation provision, a corresponding asset of R6 800 000 (2013: R4 500 000) was 
recognised as property, plant and equipment in the mine infrastructure category.

PetroSA

In the prior year, the purchase of 100% equity in PetroSA Ghana and a 45% increase the South Coast Gas joint 
venture shareholding to 100%, PetroSA assumed additional abandonment liabilities. The additions were ascribed as 
follows, PetroSA Ghana (R259 000 000) and South Coast Gas joint venture (R619 000 000). Major assumptions 
included in the provisions calculation is that the South African inflation increased from 5.3% to 6.1% and US inflation 
decreased from 1.59% to 1.30%.

A sensitivity analysis indicates that an increase of 1% in the inflation and risk-free rates will result in a movement in the 
interest charge and a change in estimate of the abandonment provision. The quantitative effect would be an increase 
of R55 700 000 (2013: R44 800 000) with respect to the inflation rate and a decrease of R503 300 000 (2013: R383 900 
000) for the risk-free rate.

The resulting provision could also be influenced by changing technologies and political, environmental, safety, 
business and statutory considerations.

PetroSA commissioned additional research into the requirements to fully close or decommission redundant exploration 
wells. No reliable estimate of the cost can currently be made. Therefore no amounts have been provided for these 
items.

The total cost of future restoration is estimated at R8 079 000. This cost includes the net expenditure to abandon and 
to rehabilitate both the onshore and offshore facilities as well as other related closure costs. The costs are expected to 
be incurred as follows:

Financial year R'million

- within one year -

- in second to fifth year inclusive 8 079
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20. Provisions (continued)

Funding of abandonment/environmental rehabilitation for PetroSA
The Group has set aside funds towards the cost of abandonment/environmental rehabilitation. These funds are not available 
for the general purposes of the Group. The funds are comprised of the following investments:

Group Company

 Rand millions
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Portion of cash deposit with CEF SOC 
Ltd (refer to note 8)

477 477 477

Cash in escrow account 31 29 27

Financial guarantee (refer to note 37) 180 180 180

688 686 684

21. Employee benefits

Pensions and retirement funds - defined benefit pension plan   

Defined benefit pension plan  
 
The Group operates defined benefit retirement plans for the benefit of all employees. The plans are governed by the 
Pension Funds Act, 1956 (Act no. 24 of 1956). The assets of the plans are administered by trustees in funds independent of 
the entity.

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

PetroSA 45 991 60 465 70 168 - - -

SFF 29 822 29 570 28 893 - - -

75 813 90 035 99 061 - - -

PetroSA 
   
The company operated a defined benefit pension plan, the Mossgas Pension Fund, for the benefit of employees. The plan 
was governed by the Pension Funds Act, 1956 (Act no. 24 of 1956). The assets of the plan were administered by trustees in 
a fund independent of the company.

The fund was closed to new entrants during 1996. With effect from 1 October 2007 all in-service members were transferred 
out of the fund to the PetroSA Retirement Fund, and future accrual of benefits under the Pension Fund ceased. Application 
was made to the Registrar to transfer the accrued benefits of in-service members to the PetroSA Retirement Fund, and to 
transfer the pensioner liabilities to individual annuity policies with Old Mutual. The Registrar’s approval was granted and all 
liabilities have been fully transferred. The trustees have appointed a liquidator, the Registrar approved of this appointment 
and the fund was placed into liquidation in October 2010. The liquidation process is not yet finalised.

The last actuarial valuation was performed as at 31 January 2010 and the independent actuary was of the opinion that the 
fund was financially sound. As the fund has been placed into liquidation, the actuarial present value of promised retirement 
benefits as at 31 January 2010 was zero Rand.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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21. Employee benefits (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

At beginning of year 60 465 70 168 143 588 - - -

Interest cost (13 886) (29 028) - - - -

Current service costs 13 074 14 507 - - - -

Benefits paid 6 598 5 723 - - - -

Actuarial gain/loss (20 260) 21 818 - - - -

Settlement - (22 723) - - - -

Other - - (73 420) - - -

At end of year 45 991 60 465 70 168 - - -

Defined contribution pension plan

The company contributions for the year amounted to R4 500 000 (2013: R3 900 000).

Petroleum Agency Retirement Fund

The company contributions for the year amounted to R5 800 000 (2013: R5 600 000). The fair value of funds invested at 
31 March 2014 was R81 200 000 (2013: R66 500 000). The fair value of the funds invested is their market value at the 
end date.

PetroSA Retirement Fund

The company operates a defined contribution retirement plan for the benefit of employees who are not members of the 
Mossgas Pension Fund. All employees who commenced employment after 1 April 1996 qualify for membership of this fund. 
The amount recognised as an expense during the year under review was R107 900 000 (2013: R74 100 000) for the 
retirement fund.

The Group has provided for an amount of R147 900 000 of which R101 900 000 was funded (2013: R167 400 000 of which 
R107 000 000 was funded). This is the funding of post-retirement medical scheme costs for all employees and pensioners. 
The commitment is actuarially valued annually, with the most recent valuation performed as at the 31 March 2014.

The post-employment medical arrangement provides health benefits to retired employees and certain dependants. The 
benefit was applicable and on offer only to employees in the services of PetroSA before 1 May 2012.

During the 2013 financial year, PetroSA funded a portion of the post-retirement medical liability through the purchase of a 
company-funded annuity policy. As this annuity policy is CPI linked, the company is exposed to revaluation risks if medical 
inflation is higher than the CPI increases granted. During the current year, the Group paid a top-up amount of R3 100 000 to 
cover the revaluation and received a refund of R1 400 000 in respect of terminated medical scheme membership. The 
current value of the annuity policy is R101 900 000.

The net defined benefit obligation in respect of promised post-retirement medical scheme cost as at 31 March 2014 is 
R46 000 000. The obligation is partially funded and was valued using the “projected unit method”. A discount rate of 9.0% 
and a health care cost inflation of 7.25% were assumed. Mortality assumptions were in line with standard table SA56/62 
ultimate (pre-retirement) and PA(90) rated down by two years (post-retirement). A sensitivity analysis was performed on the 
health care cost inflation rate assumption used in the valuation. An 8.25% and 6.25% health care cost assumption would 
result in a net obligation of R65 900 000 and R29 500 000 respectively. The combined interest and service cost vary 
according to the health care cost inflation and are R14 300 000 (6.25%), R16 300 000 (7.25%) and R18 700 000 (8.25%).

Furthermore, a sensitivity analysis was also performed on the post-retirement mortality rate assumption. A PA(90) and 
PA(90) rated down two years assumption would result in the net obligation as at 31 March 2014 being R41 700 000 and 
R50 300 000, respectively. The combined interest and service cost vary according to the mortality assumption and are 
R16 700 000 (PA(90), R16 200 000 (PA(90)-2) and R18 700 000 (PA(90)-3).
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21. Employee benefits (continued)

SFF Association
The company contributes to a medical aid scheme for retired employees. The liability in respect of future contributions to 
the scheme in respect of retirees is actuarially valued annually, using the projected unit credit method. The plan is unfunded. 
The last actuarial valuation was carried out on 31 March 2014. The principal assumptions adopted are disclosed below.

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Projected benefit obligation

Valuation interest rate: 9.00 % 8.26 % 8.70 % - - -

Medical aid contribution increase rate: 8.46 % 8.13 % 8.00 % - - -

Projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation as at the 
beginning of the year

29 570 28 893 23 295 - - -

Interest costs 2 364 2 212 2 097 - - -

Current service costs - - - - - -

Benefit paid (estimate) (1 888) (1 757) (1 532) - - -

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to assumption 
changes

(1 125) (4 972) 1 498 - - -

Actuarial (gain) / loss 901 5 194 3 535 - - -

At end of year 29 822 29 570 28 893 - - -

22. Retention
This relates to the infrastructure work done by PLD at the Vlakfontein mine, of R890 000 this guarantee have expired, in 
September 2013.

23. Trade and other payables

Trade payables 2 040 406 1 924 066 1 334 842 14 537 7 021 4 489

VAT 4 017 6 804 4 074 214 429 -

Other payables 755 552 666 910 478 876 53 484 39 661 77 486

Accrued leave pay 96 848 88 654 84 844 3 363 2 555 2 659

Accrued expenses 687 568 821 341 535 446 - - -

Sundry creditors 55 671 81 408 25 150 - - -

3 640 062 3 589 183 2 463 232 71 598 49 666 84 634

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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24. Deferred income

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Non-current liabilities 2 093 10 014 11 823 2 006 9 977 11 805

Current liabilities 118 291 1 444 118 178 269

2 211 10 305 13 267 2 124 10 155 12 074

Solar Park and Vaal Dam projects 2 006 9 977 11 805 2 006 9 977 11 805

Donor funds - 113 145 - - -

Guarantee fees 118 178 237 118 178 237

Income in advance - - 1 062 - - -

Environmental deposits
87 37 18 - - -

2 211 10 305 13 267 2 124 10 155 12 074

CEF manages the Solar Park and Vaal Dam projects on behalf of the Department of Energy with the undertaking of 
feasibility studies for these projects to generate renewable energy.

25.   Revenue

Sale of goods 20 224 321 18 440 084 13 904 248 - - -

Rendering of services 1 246 001 788 865 701 931 18 225 18 865 26 086

Tank rentals 70 971 214 418 376 583 - - -

Rental Income 5 078 5 267 5 398 - - -

Interest received on overdue accounts
21 22 105 21 22 105

Verification Income 9 774 4 442 421 - - -

21 556 166 19 453 098 14 988 686 18 246 18 887 26 191

26.   Cost of sales

Sale of goods

Cost of goods sold 18 660 161 17 401 291 11 364 898 - - -

27. Operating income

Fees earned 549 923 882 549 923 882

Rental income 5 077 4 569 2 497 1 993 2 353 650

Profit on exchange differences 599 339 91 560 - - - -

Other income 139 461 91 126 1 232 1 125 874 1 286

Recoveries 3 024 15 693 2 370 - - -

Other PetroSA adjustments 454 273 580 693 154 146 - 2 508 1

1 201 723 784 564 161 127 3 667 6 658 2 819
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28. Operating Expenses

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Operating lease premises 16 523 17 731 17 302 - 107 111

Operating lease equipment 3 435 2 515 2 284 1 349 1 013 1 031

Operating lease rentals 104 - - - - -

Loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment

(117) (95) (359) - (5) 54

Loss on disposal of assets 138 478 95 359 - 5 (54)

Loss on exchange differences 2 545 (423) 23 464 11 - -

Research and development costs 12 837 3 848 16 798 12 683 3 558 16 374

Training 9 677 8 343 8 354 2 363 1 028 1 186

Travel - local 10 136 7 535 3 457 1 989 1 090 753

Travel - overseas 4 896 2 321 5 014 371 72 264

Impairment on property, plant and 
equipment

3 395 919 360 549 - - - -

Impairment on intangible assets 898 1 045 79 162 - - -

Impairment on businesses (or 
subsidiaries and associates)

- 314 4 383 16 326 16 541 (68 034)

Impairment of projects 761 - 3 744 - - 3 744

Loss / (profit) on exchange differences 2 535 (423) (3 075) - - -

Amortisation on intangible assets 11 209 6 878 3 854 1 025 1 528 130

Consulting and professional fees 17 338 12 711 17 225 7 021 3 418 3 640

Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment

1 019 624 1 172 965 829 116 6 662 6 935 5 123

Legal expenses 4 972 4 595 47 047 1 210 2 509 (464)

Insurance 20 157 14 117 13 514 649 482 507

Employee costs 262 072 240 881 256 210 73 683 63 108 67 902

Auditors' remuneration 8 314 6 339 6 201 2 477 1 884 2 303

Desludging and abandonment 20 231 2 068 - - - -

Surveying cost 6 078 1 318 - - - -

Debts provision - 712 - - - -

Bad debts recovered 1 250 2 455 - - - -

Other expenses
540 725 245 519 804 764 16 262 13 213 16 342

Debts allowance 2 123 (1 245) - 2 344 599 104

5 512 719 2 112 863 2 138 818 145 076 115 965 49 874

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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29. Investment income

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Interest income

Interest on money market 699 576 950 778 1 135 167 202 333 199 826 208 064

Finance leases 245 275 176 - - -

Interest income from deposits 7 380 3 783 - - - -

Other interest
16 752 53 550 95 935 11 512 12 416 24 892

Loans to associates 1 034 892 601 1 034 892 601

724 987 1 009 278 1 231 879 214 879 213 134 233 557

Interest on money market in the company relates to interest for CEF and subsidiaries.

30. Finance costs

Interest paid to subsidiaries - - - 51 899 50 623 49 650

Non-current borrowings 18 301 12 557 24 860 - - 13 754

Loss on foreign currency borrowings 28 1 121 1 444 - - -

Interest on investments third parties 2 587 1 580 - 2 587 1 580 -

Other interest 40 2 006 6 188 37 2 006 2 838

Bank 868 7 220 1 939 - - -

Unwinding of provisions 18 313 27 397 15 286 - - -

Late payment of tax 2 059 1 619 - 918 - -

Unwinding of discount rate 532 689 574 629 454 242 - - -

Revaluations of foreign loans 252 333 222 860 56 - - -

827 218 850 989 504 015 55 441 54 209 66 242
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31. Taxation

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Major components of the tax expense / (income)

Current

Local income tax - current period 30 049 25 238 (18 252) 16 675 24 402 21 947

Local income tax - recognised in 
current tax for prior periods

453 201 (70) 452 - -

Royalty tax 1 123 - - - - -

CGT - 1 476 - - - -

Tax adjustment - 6 776 12 - - -

Tax adjustment prior period error - 4 867 4 163 - - -

Foreign income tax or withholding tax 
- recognised in current tax for prior 
periods

- 11 15 - - -

Foreign income tax or withholding tax 
- recognised in current period

11 - - - - -

31 636 38 569 (14 132) 17 127 24 402 21 947

Deferred

Originating and reversing temporary 
differences

(25 605) (62 536) 423 (508) - -

Arising from previously unrecognised 
tax loss / tax credit / temporary 
difference

(19) - - (19) - -

Benefit of unrecognised tax loss / tax
credit / temporary difference used to
reduce deferred tax expense

173 457 - - - - -

Arising from previously unrecognised 
tax loss/tax credit/temporary 
difference

(85 830) - - - - -

Other deferred tax - (5 240) 3 824 - (5 240) 3 824

62 003 (67 776) 4 247 (527) (5 240) 3 824

93 639 (29 207) (9 885) 16 600 19 162 25 771

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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31. Taxation (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate.

Applicable tax rate 28.00 % 28.00 % 28.00 % 28.00 % 29.01 % 28.00 %

Exempt income 0.64 % - % - % - % - % - %

Permanent difference - % - % 5.13 % - % 7.14 % 5.13 %

Non-deductible expenditure (0.54)% - % - % 16.52 % - % - %

Royalty tax (0.02)% - % - % - % - % - %

Timing difference - % (24.22)% (32.45)% - % - % (17.58)%

Assessed loss utilised / not 
utilised

0.04 % - % - % - % - % - %

Provisions 0.02 % - % - % - % - % - %

Capital expenditure
0.20 % - % - % - % - % - %

Under / (over) provision (0.01)% - % - % 1.19 % 19.00 % - %

28.33 % 3.78 % 0.68 % 45.71 % 55.15 % 15.55 %

Taxation payable / 
(receivable)

Opening balance (6 331) 13 123 67 806 (14 805) (9 135) (5 220)

Income tax for the year (31 636) (38 569) 14 132 (17 127) (24 402) (21 947)

Deferred portion (62 004) 67 776 (4 247) 527 5 240 (3 823)

Payment made
108 857 (35 999) (90 814) 18 840 43 102 40 125

Net tax payable / (receivable) 8 886 6 331 (13 123) (12 565) 14 805 9 135

Taxation summary as per 
Statement of Financial 
Position

Current tax payable 21 523 28 855 13 663 - 14 805 9 135

Current tax receivable (12 637) (22 524) (26 786) (12 565) - -

8 886 6 331 (13 123) (12 565) 14 805 9 135

 

PetroSA  
    
PetroSA is an oil and gas company as defined in the Tenth Schedule to the Income Tax Act. As an oil and gas company, 
PetroSA qualifies for additional tax deductions in respect of its capital expenditure on exploration and production activities. 
This assessed loss position is directly attributable to PetroSA’s oil and gas activities.

PetroSA is engaged in a development programme of the F-O field, known as Project Ikhwezi. Project Ikhwezi will contribute 
toward further increasing PetroSA’s tax assessed loss position. As it is unlikely that the assessed loss will be utilised in the 
foreseeable future, no deferred tax asset has been recognised. The current value of the deferred tax asset is R1 728 000.
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32. Operating lease income

SFF Association (NPC) has various lease rental contracts with customers for the rental of premises. These contracts’ terms 
range from three to four years.

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Oil and Gas Services SA (Pty) Ltd

Not later than one year 1 185 4 642 4 259 - - -

Later than one year and not later than 
five years

- 1 185 5 827 - - -

1 185 5 827 10 086 - - -

Capetel SA (Pty) Ltd

Not later than one year 115 168 154 - - -

Later than one year and not later than 
five years

- 115 284 - - -

115 283 438 - - -

Hydrotek Specialised Cleaning 
Systems

Not later than one year - 24 22 - - -

Later than one year and not later than 
five years

- 4 28 - - -

- 28 50 - - -

Independent Oil Tools South Africa 
(Pty) Ltd

Not later than one year - 400 450 - - -

Later than one year and not later than 
five years

- - 400 - - -

- 400 850 - - -

Petroleum Agency of South
Africa SOC Ltd

Not later than one year 447 410 377 - - -

Later than one year and not later than 
five years

- 447 857 - - -

447 857 1 234 - - -

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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33. Cash generated from (used in) operations

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

(Loss) profit before taxation (1 338 506) 1 040 998 2 477 755 36 275 68 505 146 451

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1 030 833 1 152 179 832 970 7 687 8 463 5 253

Loss on sale of assets - 95 - - - (54)

Deferred income (8 094) (2 962) 9 791 (8 031) (1 919) 11 739

Loss on foreign exchange - - 1 - - -

Amortisation of deferred 
expenditure 

Loss / (profit) on sale of 
non-current assets

Interest received (724 987) (1 009 278) (1 231 879) (214 879) (213 134) (233 557)

Finance costs 827 218 850 989 504 015 55 441 54 209 66 242

Deferred tax 69 450 1 740 020 443 (527) (5 240) 3 823

Impairment loss 3 396 908 361 195 79 162 16 326 16 541 (68 034)

Movements in operating lease 
assets and accruals

(771) (244) 221 - - -

Movements in retirement 
benefit assets and liabilities

(14 222) (9 026) 99 061 - - -

Movements in provisions (151 488) 2 395 073 117 761 239 (2 344) (886)

Other non-cash items (889) (453) 8 744 390 - -

Foreign currency translation 
reserve

148 247 90 312 103 070 - - -

Transfer / change in estimate 
of property, plant and 
equipment

(1 604 533) (809 707) (355 844) - - -

Intangible assets foreign 
exchange & other movements

1 585 799 (7 833) (39 737) - - -

(Increase) / decrease in 
inventories

(175 206) (514 055) (1 782 962) - - -

(Increase) / decrease in trade 
and other receivables

45 410 (935 937) (349 804) 2 211 4 390 2 578

Unearned finance income (283) - - - - -

Payment paid in advance (1 245) - 9 315 - - -

Transfer of intangible assets - - (3) - - -

Transfer of pending 
determination

- - 930 - - -

(Decrease) / increase in trade 
and other payables

50 839 1 125 748 642 896 57 956 (35 455) 44 984

3 134 480 5 467 114 1 125 906 (46 912) (105 984) (21 461)
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34. Tax (paid) / refunded

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Balance at beginning of the year (6 331) 13 123 388 547 (14 805) (9 135) 5 220

Current tax for the year recognised in 
profit or loss

(31 636) (38 569) 14 132 (17 127) (24 402) (21 947)

Deferred tax movement for the year (62 004) 67 776 (4 247) 527 5 240 (3 824)

Balance at end of the year 8 886 6 331 (13 123) (12 565) 14 805 9 135

(91 085) 48 661 385 309 (43 970) (13 492) (11 416)

Charge in income statement (31 636) (38 569) 10 308 (17 127) (24 402) (21 947)

Movement in deferred taxation (62 004) 67 776 (4 247) 527 5 240 (3 824)

Movement in taxation balance 2 555 19 454 379 248 (27 370) 5 670 14 355

(payments made)
/amounts refunded (91 085) 48 661 385 309 (43 970) (13 492) (11 416)

35. Business combinations

PetroSA Ghana Ltd
On 14 September 2012 the Group acquired 100% of the voting equity interest of PetroSA Ghana Ltd which resulted in the 
Group obtaining control over PetroSA Ghana Ltd for a purchase price of USD 500 000 000. This was partly financed by a 
back-to-back bank loan facility of USD 220 000 000. PetroSA Ghana Ltd is principally involved in the oil and gas industry 
with minority interests in assets offshore Ghana. As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expecting to increase its share 
in those markets. It is also expecting to reduce costs through economies of scale.

Acquisition-related costs of R6 000 000 was charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

Under the contingent consideration arrangement, the Group was required to pay $15 million should the Enyenra/
Tweneboa development plan be approved and additional amounts should each of the following production targets be met 
for 75 consecutive days before 30 June 2014: $10 million if production exceed 90,000 barrels per day, $15 million if 
production exceed 100,000 barrels per day and $20 000 000 if production exceed 110,000 barrels per day. The fair value 
of the contingent consideration arrangement of R321 300 000 million was estimated by using a present value calculation. 
The fair value estimates are based on a discount rate of 11% and assumed production targets and approvals would be 
reached based on the most reliable information available.

The reporting date of the company is 31 December which is not the same as that of the Group. The Group results include 
the performance of PetroSA Ghana Limited for the intervening period until 31 March 2014.

Revenue and profit or loss of PetroSA Ghana Ltd

In the prior year, revenue of R483 000 000 and profit of R366 600 000 of PetroSA Ghana Limited was included in the 
Group’s results since the date of acquisition. Had the business combination been effective from 1 April 2012, the 
contribution to revenue and loss for the Group would be R837 500 000 and R38 400 000 million respectively.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for PetroSA Ghana Limited, the fair value of assets acquired, 
liabilities assumed and the non-controlling interest at the acquisition date.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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35. Business combinations (continued)

Aggregated business combinations

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Property, plant and equipment - 4 758 827 - - - -

Intangible assets - 2 014 722 - - - -

Deferred tax - (1 807 796) - - - -

Inventories - 7 545 - - - -

Trade and other receivables - 2 506 - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 525 027 - - - -

Provisions - (259 002) - - - -

Loans from shareholder - (1 342 997) - - - -

Trade and other payables - (18 181) - - - -

- 3 880 651 - - - -

Net cash outflow on 
acquisition

Cash consideration paid - (3 880 651) - - - -

Cash acquired - 525 027

- (3 355 624) - - - -
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36. Contingencies

Figures in Rand thousands Group Company

 Guarantees
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

1. DME for Rehabilitation of 
    E-BT/E-AR mining lease.

27 100 27 100 27 100 27 100 27 100 27 100

2. Eskom for payment of 
    guarantee for electrical 
    supply.

2 435 2 435 2 435 2 435 2 435 2 435

3. Eskom for payment of 
    guarantee for electrical 
    supply

9 485 9 485 9 485 9 485 9 485 9 485

4. Department of Energy for 
    rehabilitation of FA mining 
    lease.

450 000 450 000 450 000 450 000 450 000 450 000

5. ABSA Bank for iGas to 
   acquire a 25% interest in 
   Rompco.

60 000 100 000 180 000 60 000 100 000 180 000

6. ABSA Bank for OPCSA’s 
    Deed of Suretyship.

2 000 2 000 2 000 2 000 2 000 2 000

7. The Group’s share of 55% 
    of costs being USD 
    3.356 million would be  
    payable from PetroSA’s 
    share of revenues from 
    future production within E- P 
    tract, should the tract be 
    successful thus representing 
    a contingent liability.

- - 25 802 - - -

8. The Group has issued a 
    manufacture and excisable 
    bond in favour of the South 
    African Revenue Services.

5 000 5 000 5 000 - - -

9. The Group has issued an 
    evergreen VAT guarantee 
    in favour of the Dutch VAT 
    Authorities (Euro 0.5m).

7 290 5 376 4 667 - - -

10. ABSA Bank for iGas Deed 
     of Suretyship.

2 100 2 100 2 100 2 100 2 100 2 100

11. Rehabilitation of land 
     disturbed by mining.

15 900 15 900 15 900 - - -

12. DEG - Deutsche 
      Investitions - Und
      Entwicklungsgesellschaft 
      MBH as lender to Rompco

20 833 41 700 62 500 20 833 41 700 62 500

13. Standard Bank of South 
      Africa Ltd as lender to 
      Rompco

29 167 58 300 87 500 29 167 58 300 87 500

811 310 899 396 1 056 589 603 120 693 120 825 220

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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36. Contingencies (continued)

Cession and pledge to ABSA Bank Limited of R15 900 000 - Rehabilitation of mining leases

African Exploration Mining and Finance Corporation SOC Limited has obtained mining rights from the Department of 
Mineral Resources. African Exploration Mining and Finance Corporation SOC Limited had to issue a financial guarantee for 
the rehabilitation of the land disturbed by mining (execution of environmental management programme) concerning the 
responsibility in terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Development Act 2002 (Act No. 28 of 2002), which is incumbent on 
African Exploration Mining and Finance Corporation SOC Limited (referred to as “the mine owner” to execute the 
Environmental Management Programme approved in terms of the provisions of the said Act for the mine known as 
Vlakfontein Mine, situated in the magisterial district of eMalahleni, Mpumalanga Province. ABSA Bank Limited issued a 
financial guarantee of R15 900 000 to the Department of Mineral Resources in the previous financial period.

Cession and pledge to ABSA Bank Limited of R76 200 000

iGas SOC Limited, a subsidiary of CEF SOC Limited has acquired a 25% interest in Rompco (Proprietary) Limited. In order 
for iGas SOC Limited to give effect to the above mentioned acquisition it was obliged to procure guarantees from a financial 
institution in support of its obligation as Debt Service Support provider to Rompco (Proprietary) Limited. ABSA Bank 
Limited has issued guarantees to the value of R590 000 000 (current outstanding amount R136 000 000 CEF SOC Limited 
has issued a counter guarantee to ABSA Bank Limited to the same value. CEF SOC Limited has ceded and pledged an 
amount of R76 200 000 (2013: R95 000 000) to ABSA Bank Limited for the guarantee facility.

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Claims

PetroSA is considering settling 
a claim made by a former 
employee

4 000 - - - - -

PetroSA is considering settling 
a claim made in terms of a 
contract

119 801 61 942 16 023 - - -

123 801 61 942 16 023 - - -

PetroSA may be liable for any soil contamination resulting from the dispensing of fuel at the Mbizana Integrated Energy 
Centre. The estimated financial impact is R1 000 000.
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37. Commitments

 Authorised capital expenditure

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Already contracted for but 
not provided for

Intangible assets* 10 000 6 350 - - - -

Approved by the directors

Contracted for** 4 609 642 4 962 223 2 425 672 15 428 3 283 -

* AEMFC contracted for R1 000 000 for the acquisition of power supply for the exploration assets and R9 000 000 for 
laboratory services for the company to perform test on coal samples from the exploration activities of the company.

** PetroSA may be liable for any soil contamination resulting from the dispensing of fuel at the Mbizana Integrated Energy 
Centre. The estimated financial impact is R1 000 000.

**CEF contracted with a supply of R945 000 for the due diligence and valuation of a clean energy project, R688 670 for 
testing of torbanite samples, R13 795 354 for Solar Park feasibility studies.

*** AEMFC committed expenditure relates to exploration and evaluation and property, plant and equipment and will be 
financed by available bank facilities, retained profits, and existing cash resources.

All other contracts relate to transactions in the normal course of the operation of the business.

Operating lease commitments

CEF

- within one year 1 338 1 338 1 338 1 338 1 338 1 338

- in second to fifth year 
inclusive

4 076 4 076 4 076 4 076 4 076 4 076

5 414 5 414 5 414 5 414 5 414 5 414

The entity entered into a lease agreement for various copy machines for a period of 60 month, commencing 2010 and 2011. 
The rental is payable monthly and has no escalation clauses.

AEMFC

- within one year 1 656 1 540 627 - - -

- in second to fifth year 
inclusive

4 007 5 665 1 159 - - -

5 663 7 205 1 786 - - -

The entity has leased Block E, Upper Grayston Office Park, 150 Linden Street, Strathavon, Sandton Operating lease 
payments represent rentals payable by the company for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an 
average term of seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of five years. No contingent rent is payable.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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37. Commitments (continued)

Operating lease commitments

Figures in Rand thousand Group Company

  Claims
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

PetroSA

- within one year 1 526 1 400 1 284 - - -

- in second to fifth year 
inclusive

2 531 4 057 5 457 - - -

4 057 5 457 6 741 - - -

Office space is leased at 1 Protea Place in Sandton, Johannesburg, effective from 1 October 2011. The lease payment is 
fixed at R102 420 per month with a 9% escalation per annum. The lease period is five years and ends on 
30 September 2016.

PetroSA Europe BV - Office 
space

- within one year 528 642 546 - - -

- in second to fifth year 
inclusive

- 428 910 - - -

528 1 070 1 456 - - -

Office space is leased at 3011XB Willemswerf, 13th Floor, Boomjes, effective 1 December 2004. The lease payment is fixed 
at Euro 44,791 with an inflationary escalation per annum. The period of the lease agreement was initially five years and was 
extended for a further five year period ending on 30 November 2014, at which time PetroSA Europe BV has the option to 
renew the lease for a further five year period.

PetroSA Europe BV - motor 
vehicles

- within one year - 33 254 - - -

- in second to fifth year 
inclusive

- - 28 - - -

- 33 282 - - -

Motor vehicles are leased on behalf of the company’s employees. The standard contract period is 48 months. The expiry 
dates are 18 January 2013 and 27 May 2013. The lease was not renewed.

PetroSA Europe BV - 
apartments

- within one year - 433 580 - - -

PetroSA Europe BV leases apartments for its employees. The company entered into a lease for a period of 1 year 
commencing on 1 December 2012 to 30 November 2013. The annual rental will be adjusted in July 2013 in line with CPI - 
all household series. The lease was not renewed.

Equatorial Guinea

- within one year - 722 625 - - -

The company entered into a lease for office space in Malabo for a one year period, effective from 1 February 2013 to 
31 January 2014. The lease payments are CFA 4,000,000 per month, and is paid in advance for a year. The lease was not 
renewed.

PetroSA - Mozambican office 
space

- within one year 68 43 - - - -

The company leases furnished office space in Mozambique at a monthly rental fee of 48,000Mtn. The lease term was for 
one year starting on 1 July 2012. The lease agreement was extended for another year at a monthly rental of $2,243.
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37. Commitments (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousands
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

PetroSA - George airport 
office space

- within one year 551 505 - - - -

- in second to fifth year 
inclusive

1 596 2 147 - - - -

2 147 2 652 - - - -

Office space is leased at the general avaition area of the George Airport effective from 1 October 2012. The lease payment 
is fixed at R40 291 per month with a 9% escalation per annum. The lease period is five years and ends on 
30 September 2017.

PetroSA Egypt

- within one year - 37 250 - - -

PetroSA Egypt leases office space in Egypt for a period of one year commencing on 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012. 
The monthly lease instalments are $1,200 with an annual escalation of 10%. The lease was renewed for three months 
ending 31 March 2013 and 30 June 2013 respectively, with monthly instalments of $1,320. The lease instalments were paid 
in advance. The lease was not renewed.

Petroleum Agency SA

- within one year 3 419 6 612 6 237 - - -

- in second to fifth year 
inclusive

3 437 9 191 - - -

3 419 10 049 15 428 - - -

Suite 3 Tygerpoort in Bellville
Petroleum Agency SA leases office space from Sulnisa Property for a period of five years ending 30 September 2014. The 
lease payment is fixed at R389 631 per month, with an escalation of 8% per annum. The company has an option to renew 
the lease for a further five years and option to buy on expiry of the first five years.

Milnerton
Petroleum Agency SA extended the lease for storage space from SFF Association for a further period of three years ending 
31 March 2015. The lease payment is fixed at R28 791 per month, with a CPIX linked escalation per annum. The company 
has an option to renew the lease.

Redefine Properties
Petroleum Agency SA leases storage space at Modderdam Road, Airport Industria from Redefine Properties which expires 
on 30 June 2014. The lease payment is fixed at R8 743 per month, with a 10% escalation per annum. The company has an 
option to renew the lease.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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37. Commitments (continued)

Figures in Rand thousands Group Company

  Claims
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

SFF

- within one year 7 583 6 007 2 821 - - -

- in second to fifth year inclusive 28 306 30 037 14 067 - - -

- later than five years 50 543 60 074 54 230 - - -

86 432 96 118 71 118 - - -

SFF has entered into a rental contract for the investment properties. The agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and 
the rent payable shall annually, on the anniversary date, escalate by 9%.

Service contracts provision of independent Quality and Quantity surveying entered into, which will commence on 
1 June 2014 for a period of 12 months with a monthly payment of R42 903 and provision for Marine and advisory services 
and related activities contract which will commence on 01 June 2014, for a period of 12 months, with a monthly payments 
of R291 720.

Rental of office space commenced on 1 April 2009 and the rent payable shall annually, on the anniversary date, escalate by 
10% or alternatively, shall escalate in accordance with the CPI, whichever is greater, either party shall be entitled to 
terminate this lease on six months written notice to the other party.

38. Financial instruments 

Introduction
The Group has a risk management and a treasury department in CEF SOC Limited and in PetroSA, that manages the 
financial risks relating to the Group’s operations. The Group’s liquidity, credit, foreign exchange, interest rate and crude oil 
price risks are monitored continually. Approved policies exist for managing these risks.

Risk profile
In the course of the Group’s business operations it is exposed to liquidity, credit, foreign exchange, interest rate and crude 
oil price risk. The risk management policy of the Group relating to each of these risks is discussed below.

Risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s objective in using financial instruments is to reduce the uncertainty over future cash flows arising from 
movements in foreign exchange, interest rates and crude oil prices. Throughout the year under review it has been, and 
remains, the Group’s policy that no speculative trading in derivative financial instruments be undertaken.

Foreign currency management
The Group is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations as it raises funding on the offshore financial markets, imports raw 
material and spares and furthermore exports finished product and crude oil. All local sales of finished products are sold on 
a foreign currency denominated basis.

The Group takes cover on foreign exchange transactions where there is a future currency exposure. The Group also makes 
use of a natural hedge situation to manage foreign currency exposure.

A sensitivity analysis was done for the net effect on revenue and expenses, and the weakening or strengthening of the 
Rand/Dollar exchange rate by R1 based on actual revenue and cost will increase or decrease profit by 
R593 000 000 (2013: R910 000 000) respectively.
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currency instruments
The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in the EUR, GBP and USD. The Group measures its market risk exposure by 
running various sensitivity analyses including 10% favourable and adverse changes in key variables. The sensitivity analysis 
include outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjust translation at the period end for a 10% 
change in foreign currency rates.

Financial Assets
As at 31 March 2014 a 10% strengthening in Rand against the relevant currencies would have resulted in a decrease in 
foreign currency denominated assets of R122 000 000 (2013: R232 000 000) and a 10% weakening in Rand against the 
relevant currencies would have resulted in an increase in foreign currency denominated assets of 
R122 000 000 (2013: R232 000 000).

Financial Liabilities
As at 31 March 2014 10% strengthening in Rand against the US Dollar would have resulted in a decrease in foreign 
currency denominated liabilities of R261 000 000 (2013: R59 000 000) and a 10% weakening in Rand against US Dollar 
would have resulted in an increase in foreign currency denominated liabilities of R261 000 000 (2013: R59 000 000).

Currency risk
The Group has entered into certain forward exchange contracts which do not relate to specific items appearing on the 
statement of financial position but which were entered into to cover foreign commitments not yet due and proceeds not yet 
received. The contracts will be utilised for purposes of trade.

Group
Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:
 Closing rate: 2014 2013

USD 10.6070 9.2600

Euro 14.5792 11.8157

GBP 17.6490 14.0210

Average: 2014 2013

USD 10.1139 8.5131

Euro 13.5570 10.9609

GBP 16.0607 13.4471

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

Forward foreign exchange contracts 

2014

  Total foreign currency
Average forward 
exchange rate

Maturity date

Assets

USD 8 000 000 10.6752 Less than 3 months

Liabilities

USD 103 217 782 10.6477 Less than 3 months

USD 41 769 110 10.8477 Longer than 3 months but less than 6 months

USD 53 392 625 11.0256 Longer than 6 months but less than 9 months

USD 5 594 258 11.1573 Longer than 9 months but less than 12 months

GBP 3 320 133 17.6698 Less than 3 months

2013

  Total foreign currency
Average forward 
exchange rate

Maturity date

Assets

EUR 9 536 327 11.8209 Less than 3 months

EUR 16 520 661 11.8232 Less than 3 months

GBP 17 659 056 14.0604 Less than 3 months

USD 131 823 078 9.3053 Less than 3 months

USD 27 887 672 9.3998 Longer than 3 months but less than 6 months

As at 31 March 2014, a 10% relative change in the USD to the Rand would have impacted profit and loss for the year by 
R220 000 000 (2013: R149 000 000).

As at 31 March 2014, a 10% relative change in the EUR to the Rand would have impacted profit and loss for the year by 
R0 (2013: R20 000 000).

As at 31 March 2014, a 10% relative change in the GBP to the Rand would have impacted profit and loss for the year by 
R6 000 000 (2013: R25 000 000).

Figures in Rand thousands Fair value Estimated fair value gain/(loss)

Group 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

Forward exchange contracts 
- assets

85 401 112 728 - (4 341) 285 -

Forward exchange contracts 
- Liabilities

(2 261 861) (1 932 393) (483 483) (2 627) 43 445 (3 723)

(2 176 460) (1 819 665) (483 483) (6 968) 43 730 (3 723)
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk    
Financial assets, which potentially subject the Group to concentrations of credit risk, pertain principally to trade receivables 
and investments in the South African money market. Trade receivables are presented net of the allowance for doubtful 
debts.

The exposure to credit risk with respect to trade receivables is not concentrated due to a large customer base.

The Group manages counter-party exposure arising from money market and derivative financial instruments by only dealing 
with well- established financial institutions of a high credit rating. Losses are not expected as a result of non-performance 
by these counter parties.

Credit limits with financial institutions are revised and approved by the board quarterly.

Maturity profile

The maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities at reporting date are as follows:

Figures in Rand thousands 
Less than 

1 year
Between 1 and

5 years
Over 5 years

Non-interest
bearing

Total

At 31 March 2014

Cash and cash equivalents 11 310 905 - - - 11 310 905

Other financial assets 334 333 - 976 138 - 1 310 471

Trade and other receivables 3 226 334 - - 12 719 3 239 053

Finance lease receivable 794 1 858 - - 2 652

Available for sale 2 001 274 - - - 2 001 274

Restricted cash 1 725 000 - - - 1 725 000

Total financial assets 18 598 640 1 858 976 138 12 719 19 589 355

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 3 636 073 - - 4 772 3 640 845

Other financial liabilities 1 591 050 - - - 1 591 050

Bank overdraft 357 655 - - - 357 655

Total financial liabilities 5 584 778 - - 4 772 5 589 550

At 31 March 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 13 071 430 - - - 13 071 430

Restricted cash 2 594 000 - - - 2 594 000

Trade and other receivables 3 661 943 - 2 001 274 54 325 5 717 542

Finance lease receivable 815 2 770 - - 3 585

Other financial assets 318 608 - 215 306 - 533 914

Available for sale 573 - 736 481 - 737 054

Total financial assets 19 647 369 2 770 2 953 061 54 325 22 657 525

Group

Assets

Assets

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

CEF SOC Ltd - Integrated Annual Report 2013/2014192



38. Financial instruments (continued)

Figures in Rand thousands 
Less than 

1 year
Between 1 and

5 years
Over 5 years

Non-interest
bearing

Total

At 31 March 2013

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 3 556 975 - - 4 539 3 561 514

Other financial liabilities 2 037 200 - - - 2 037 200

Total financial liabilities 5 594 175 - - 4 539 5 598 714

 At 31 March 2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 19 144 932 - - - 19 144 932

Other financial assets - 208 712 - - 208 712

Trade and other receivables 2 570 777 - - - 2 570 777

Total financial assets 21 715 709 208 712 - - 21 924 421

At 31 March 2012

Trade and other payables 2 374 314 - - - 2 374 314

Less than 
1 year

Between 1 and
5 years

Over 5 years
Non-interest

bearing
Total

At 31 March 2014

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 906 166 - - - 3 906 166

Trade and other receivables 27 409 - - - 27 409

Loans to Group companies 58 500 - 575 671 - 634 171

Total financial assets 3 992 075 - 575 671 - 4 567 746

 

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 71 384 - - - 71 384

Owing to subsidiaries 590 248 - 489 021 - 1 079 269

Total financial liabilities 661 632 - 489 021 - 1 150 653

At 31 March 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 3 743 175 - - - 3 743 175

Trade and other receivables 31 347 - - - 31 347

Loans to Group companies 58 500 - 677 981 - 736 481

Total financial assets 3 833 022 - 677 981 - 4 511 003

Group

Company
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

Figures in Rand thousands 
Less than 

1 year
Between 1 and

5 years
Over 5 years

Non-interest
bearing

Total

At 31 March 2013

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 49 237 - - - 49 237

Owing to subsidiaries 498 653 - 489 021 - 987 674

Total financial liabilities 547 890 - 489 021 - 1 036 911

At 31 March 2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 610 552 - - - 3 610 552

Other financial assets - 7 062 - - 7 062

Trade and other receivables 36 413 - - - 36 413

Loans to Group companies 58 500 - 769 702 - 828 202

Total financial assets 3 705 465 7 062 769 702 - 4 482 229

At 31 March 2012

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 84 634 - - - 84 634

Owing to subsidiaries 485 411 - 490 512 - 975 923

Total financial liabilities 570 045 - 490 512 - 1 060 557

 

Liquidity risk
The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate cash resources are 
available to meet cash commitments.

Price risk
External sales and purchases are subject to price and basis risks associated with volume and timing differences.

Price risk is mitigated using various operational and financial instruments. Instruments used are liquid and can be traded 
and valued at any time. The hedge portfolio may consist of exchange-traded options and futures as well as non-exotic over 
the counter options and swaps. Options, however, are only traded within zero cost collars. The selling prices are hedged 
using the International Petroleum Exchange (IPE), New York Mercantile Exchange (Nymex), or Singapore Monetary 
Exchange (Simex).

A sensitivity analysis was performed for revenue and every $1 increase or decrease in the Brent Crude Oil price will increase 
or decrease profit by R53 800 000 (2013: R61 400 000) respectively, based on the 2013/14 financial results.

Interest rate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk on liabilities and investments is monitored on a proactive basis. The financing of the Group is 

structured on a combination of floating and fixed interest rates.

Company

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Group’s financial instruments that are exposed to 
interest rate risk and the effective interest rates applicable:

Less than 
1 year

Between 1 and
5 years

Over 5 years Total

At 31 March 2014

Cash and cash equivalents (5.45%) 1 559 663 - - 1 559 663

Restricted cash 1 725 000 - - 1 725 000

Cash on deposit (5.53%) 489 021 - - 489 021

Cash and cash equivalents 3 321 624 - - 3 321 624

Bank overdraft (1.22%) (357 655) - - (357 655)

Term investments 1 831 715 - - 1 831 715

Trade receivables 3 700 139 - - 3 700 139

Trade payables (3 640 062) - - (3 640 062)

Lurgi (1.34%) - - 169 651 169 651

GTL.F1 (0%) - - 126 839 126 839

PetroSA Ghana Ltd (0.8186%) - - 740 759 740 759

At 31 March 2013

Cash and cash equivalents (5.45%) 6 267 727 - - 6 267 727

Term investments 489 021 - - 489 021

Restricted cash 2 594 000 - - 2 594 000

 

Cash and cash equivalents 272 412 - - 272 412

Term investments 1 823 399 - - 1 823 399

Trade receivables 3 745 510 - - 3 745 510

Trade payables (3 589 183) - - (3 589 183)

Lurgi (4.24%) - - 136 140 136 140

GTL.F1 (0%) - - 79 166 79 166

Sabre Oil and Gas Holdings (0.8651%) - - 1 517 538 1 517 538

Fixed rate

Floating Rate

Floating Rate

Fixed rate
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

Figures in Rand thousands
Less than 

1 year
Between 1 and

5 years
Over 5 years Total

At 31 March 2012

Fixed rate

Cash and cash equivalents (11.53%) 9 342 797 - - 9 342 797

At 31 March 2012

Floating rate

Cash and cash equivalents 9 802 135 - - 9 802 135

Trade receivables 2 809 573 - - 2 809 573

Trade payables (2 463 232) - - (2 463 232)

Forest Oil Gryphon Marin loan (0%) - - - -

Lurgi (4.24%) - - 116 873 116 873

PetroSA Egypt (11%) - - 1 142 457 1 142 457

GTL.F1 (0) - - 68 724 68 724

PetroSA Equatorial Guinea (15%) - - 1 412 475 1 412 475

Interest rate instruments
The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in USD LIBOR, EURIBOR and Rand interest rates. The Group measures its 
interest rate risk exposure by running various sensitivity analyses including 10% favourable and adverse changes in the key 
variables. The sensitivity analysis include only interest bearing monetary items and adjusts their value at the period end for 
a 10% change in interest rates.

Financial assets
As at 31 March 2014 a 10% relative change in the:

- ZAR interest rate would have impacted profit and loss for the year of the Group by R70 800 000 on and for the 
company R22 100 000 (2013: R81 000 000 company R20 000 000)

- EURIBOR interest rate would have impacted profit and loss for the year of the Group by R200 000 (2013: R200 000)
- USD LIBOR interest rate would have impacted profit and loss for the year of the Group by R300 000 (2013: R500 000)

Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in commodity prices and foreign currency 

exchange rates.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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39. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Figures in Rand thousands

Loans and 
receivables

Fair value 
through profit 

or
loss - held for 

trading

Available for 
sale

Total

Group - 2014

Other financial assets 296 490 - - 296 490

Loans receivable 489 021 - - 489 021

Finance lease 2 652 - - 2 652

Trade and other receivables 3 226 334 - - 3 226 334

Restricted cash 1 725 000 - - 1 725 000

5 739 497 - - 5 739 497

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group - 2013

Loans receivable 535 651 - - 535 651

Other financial assets 215 306 - - 215 306

Restricted cash 2 594 000 - - 2 594 000

Trade and other receivables 3 638 291 - - 3 638 291

6 983 248 - - 6 983 248

Group - 2012

Other financial assets 185 597 4 342 23 115 213 054

Trade and other receivables 2 570 777 - - 2 570 777

2 756 374 4 342 23 115 2 783 831

Company - 2014

Loans to Group companies 634 171 - - 634 171

Trade and other receivables 30 722 - - 30 722

664 893 - - 664 893

Loans and 
receivables

Figures in Rand thousands

Fair value 
through profit 

or
loss - held for 

trading

Available for 
sale

Total

Company - 2013

Loans to Group companies 736 481 - 736 481

Trade and other receivables 32 968 - 32 968

Cash and cash equivalents 3 743 175 - 3 743 175

4 512 624 - 4 512 624

Company - 2012

Loans to Group companies 827 100 - 827 100

Other financial assets - 7 062 7 062

Trade and other receivables 36 413 - 36 413

863 513 7 062 870 575
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40. Financial liabilities by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Figures in Rand thousands

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Fair value 
through profit 

or
loss - held for 

trading

Fair value 
through profit 

or loss - 
designated

Total

Group - 2014

Loans from shareholders 29 280 - - 29 280

Other financial liabilities 1 591 050 - 30 351 1 621 401

Trade and other payables 3 636 073 - - 3 636 073

Bank overdraft 357 655 - - 357 655

5 614 058 - 30 351 5 644 409

Group - 2013

Other financial liabilities 2 037 200 - 3 185 2 040 385

Trade and other payables 3 456 737 - - 3 456 737

5 493 937 - 3 185 5 497 122

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Fair value 
through profit 

or loss - 
designated

Total

Group - 2012

Trade and other payables 2 411 299 - 2 411 299

2 411 299 - 2 411 299

Company - 2014

Owing to subsidiaries 1 079 269 - - 1 079 269

Trade and other payables 71 384 - - 71 384

1 150 653 - - 1 150 653

Company - 2013

Loans from shareholders 987 674 - - 987 674

Trade and other payables 49 237 - - 49 237

1 036 911 - - 1 036 911

Company - 2012

Loans from shareholders 975 923 - 975 923

Trade and other payables 84 634 - 84 634

1 060 557 - 1 060 557

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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41. Directors’ emoluments for the company

 

Figures in Rand thousands
Salary

Bonuses and 
performance 

provisions
Expenses Total

Year ended 31 March 2014

Executive Directors

Mr. S Mncwango* 2 698 1 096 - 3 794

Total 2 698 1 096 - 3 794

Year ended 31 March 2014

Executive Management

Dr. C Cooper 1 480 733 - 2 213

Mr. A Haffejee 1 334 392 - 1 726

Mr. S Mthethwa* 694 333 - 1 027

Ms. Z Sithole* 1 158 465 - 1 623

Dr. P Masangane 1 772 856 - 2 628

6 438 2 779 - 9 217

The bonuses as per the note, is based on the accrued bonuses for the 2014 financial year. Bonus payment are paid in July 
each year relating to the immediately concluded financial year.

 Fee
Bonuses and 
performance

payments
Expenses Total

Year ended 31 March 2014

Non executive Directors

Ms. B Mabuza 539 - 36 575

Ms. X Mtwa* - - 130 130

Mr. S Gamede 788 - 190 978

Mr. D Hlatshwayo 240 - 10 250

Mr. R Boqo** 280 - 33 313

Dr S Mthembi-Mahanyele 920 - 243 1 163

Mr. R Jawoodeen 692 - 230 922

Total 3 459 - 872 4 331

 Salary
Bonuses and 
performance 

provisions
Expenses Total

Year ended 31 March 2013

Executive Directors

Mr. S Mncwango* 529 - - 529

Mr. S Mcwango will only be eligible for bonus payment during the July 2014 payment cycle.
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41. Directors’ emoluments for the company (continued)

 Fee
Bonuses and 
performance

payments
Expenses Total

Year ended 31 March 2013

Non executive Directors

Ms. B Mabuza 601 - 1 602

Mr. R Jawoodeen 485 - 184 669

Dr. S Mthembi-Mahanyele 724 - 118 842

Adv. L Makatini 203 - 60 263

Mr. S Gamede 216 - 34 250

Ms. X Mtwa** - - 6 6

Mr. R Boqo 203 - 8 211

Mr. D Hlatshwayo 72 - - 72

Total 2 504 - 411 2 915

 Salary
Bonuses and 
performance 

provisions
Expenses Total

Year ended 31 March 2013

Executive Management

Dr. C Cooper 1 306 493 - 1 799

Ms. M Joubert* 736 444 - 1 180

Mr. S Mkhize* 1 459 362 - 1 821

Ms. A Osman* 307 - - 307

Total 3 808 1 299 - 5 107

* Not for a full year 

** Directors are not remunerated in their personal capacity

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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42. Related parties

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Subsidiaries * Refer to note 5

Associates ** Refer to note 6

African Exploration *
Office Rental - - - - 196 418
Services rendered - - - 1 518 1 623 1 466

Accounts receivable - - - 927 585 674

Loan to - - - 208 899 208 899 240 758
Interest received - - - - 204 985

DWP **
Loan to 17 000 17 000 17 000 17 000 17 000 17 000

Cash on call 374 597 613 374 597 613

Services rendered 947 525 476 947 525 476

Accounts receivable 3 755 2 670 2 071 3 755 2 670 2 071

Interest paid 36 48 5 36 48 5

Interest received - - 29 - - 29

CCE *

Services rendered - - - 396 805 695

Accounts receivable - - - 38 138 67

Loan to - - - 98 991 81 758 81 444

PetroSA *

Interest payable - - - 2 285 2 710 2 320

Services received - - - 500 - 468

Cash on call - - - 489 021 489 021 489 021

Services rendered - - - 65 89 90

Interest paid - - - 25 648 23 828 23 828

Accounts payable - - - 96 91 87

Accounts receivable - - - 43 73 69

Cotec Patrade *

Loan to - - - 3 731 3 731 3 731
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42. Related parties (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

iGas *
Term Loan to - - - 454 297 513 366 572 672
Cash on call - - - 197 156 155 445 136 498
Accounts receivable - - - 390 436 2 105

Services rendered - - - 3 222 3 256 4 529
Interest paid - - - 7 427 6 303 5 794
Office Rental - - - 183 198 218
Guarantee fees paid/received - - - - - 1 072
Interest income - - - 8 162 12 022 16 824

OPCSA *

Cash on call - - - 22 353 5 063 5 429

Accounts payable - - - - 10 9
Accounts receivable - - - - 21 316
Services rendered - - - - 736 1 111
Interest received - - - - - 110

Interest paid - - - 1 152 258 149

Office Rental to - - - - 9 111

Petroleum Agency SA *

Cash on call - - - 334 333 318 608 312 627
Accounts receivable - - - 133 94 25

Services rendered - - - 310 402 235

Interest paid - - - 17 498 17 409 14 802
Accounts payable - - - 315 358 465

SFF *

Sanlam medical aid pensioners 26 99 -

Office rental received - - - 51 47 92

Services rendered - - - 5 317 5 157 6 051

Services received - - - 5 3 285 3

Accounts receivable - - - 1 392 1 681 1 631

Office rental paid - - - 28 39 -
Trade payable - - - 29 45 -

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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42. Related parties (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Baniettor Mining **
Investment and loans in Associates 23 933 23 933 23 933 23 933 23 933 23 933

Carbon Stream *

Loan - - - - 2 110 2 045
Accounts receivable - - - - - 31
Services rendered 141

Other income 2 224

CEF Carbon *

Loan to - - - - 15 589 15 257
Accounts receivable - - - - - 103
Services rendered - - - - - 917

Office Rental - - - - - 68
Recoverable costs - - - - - 4

Other income - - - 15 568 - -

Mine Health and Safety Council

Services rendered 258 224 203 258 224 203
Accounts receivable 24 21 - 24 21 -

SASDA *

Loan - - - - 55 571 40 598

Accounts receivable - - - - 886 -
Services rendered - - - 1 324 1 667 1 485

Office Rental - - - 239 535 369
Accounts payable - - - - - 32

Other income - - - 64 231 - -

Rompco**

iGas trade receivable 573 573 - - - -
Services rendered 51 - - 51 - -
Accounts receivable 6 9 - 6 9 -

ETA *

Loan to - - - 19 409 29 461 28 607
Cash on call - - - - 18 940 30 190

Accounts receivable - - - - - 184

Services rendered - - - - - 1 787
Interest paid - - - 173 681 1 612

Office Rental - - - - - 129
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42. Related parties (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand.
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Equalisation Fund

Accounts receivable 304 395 - 304 395 -

Services rendered 1 883 1 214 2 410 1 883 1 214 2 410

- - - - - -
Fund under the control of CEF

SASDA Verifications - Dormant

SANEDI

Services rendered 2 290 1 969 1 695 2 290 1 969 1 695

Accounts receivable 1 517 - - 1 517 - -

Office rental 591 556 510 591 556 510

Interest paid - 1 939 1 725 - 1 939 1 725

Interest received - 27 - - 27 -

Accounts payable 3 - - 3 - -

Extended continental shelf claim 
project
Funding to 1 198 771 - 1 198 771 -

PASA Loan 315 358 - - - -

Ener-G Systems **

Investment and loans in Associates 11 732 7 958 7 958 11 732 7 958 7 958

DOE

Project funding 2 006 10 000 20 191 2 006 10 000 20 191

Methcap**

Investment and loans in Associates 1 475 1 475 1 475 1 475 1 475 1 475

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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42. Related parties (continued)

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Upstream Training Trust

Cash on call 23 176 22 511 15 358 23 176 22 511 15 358

Interest paid 1 149 958 706 1 149 958 706

PASA loan 20 - - - - -

PAMDC

AEMFC - trade receivable 9 9 - - - -

Rent to AEMFC - 46 - - - -

Services rendered 766 991 840 766 991 840

Accounts receivable 411 517 139 411 517 139

Accounts payable - - 101 - - 101

Office rental 136 72 83 136 72 83

Recoverable costs 14 18 109 14 18 109

Thin Film solar Technology**

Investment and loans in Associates 39 545 39 545 39 545 39 545 39 545 39 545

Cash on call 36 032 - - 36 032 - -

Interest paid 1 032 - - 1 032 - -

Philips Lighting Maseru**

Investment and loans in Associates 9 410 9 410 9 410 9 410 9 410 9 410

CEF Carbon UK

Dormant - - - - - -

The above transactions were carried out on commercial terms and conditions. Key management personnel refer to note 41.
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43. Prior period errors

The correction of the errors results in adjustments as follows:

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Statement of Financial Position

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment - 634 524 606 414 - (45) -

Intangible assets - 1 045 007 948 465 - - -

Investment in associates - (8 339) (12 145) - (12 678) (12 678)
Loans to Group companies - 9 877 12 791 - 677 981 769 702
Assets pending determination - (42 430) (35 830) - - -
Other financial assets - 15 900 16 053 - - -
Tax receivable - 17 294 22 452 - - -
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - (722 265) (813 388)

- 1 671 833 1 558 200 - (57 007) (56 364)

Current Assets

Loans to Group companies - - - - 58 500 58 500

Inventories - (243 979) (272 446) - - -
Current tax - (17 294) (22 452) - - -
Trade and other receivables - 69 318 (34 314) - 429 -
Cash and cash equivalents - (1 884) - - - -

- (193 839) (329 212) - 58 929 58 500

Non-current assets held for sale - 10 669 - - - -
- 1 488 663 1 228 988 - 1 922 2 136

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Retained income - 1 302 592 1 262 953 - 1 496 649
Reserves - (16 428) (16 428) - - -

- 1 286 164 1 246 525 - 1 496 649
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions - 53 851 (96 089) - - -
Loans from Group companies - - - - (498 056) (483 265)
Retirements benefit - 90 035 99 061 - - -

- 145 371 2 972 - (498 056) (483 265)
Current Liabilities
Deferred tax - 6 637 - - - -
Trade and other payables - 48 232 (28 398) - (171) (659)
Loans from Group companies - 597 655 - 498 653 485 411
Provisions - 3 380 7 234 - - -
Total Liabilities - 58 846 (20 509) - 498 482 484 752

Liabilities of disposal groups - (1 718) - - - -

Total Equity and Liabilities - 1 488 663 1 228 988 - 1 922 2 136

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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43. Prior period errors (continued)

Group prior error notes 2013 and 2012
The comparative figures in the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash 
flows have been reallocated to more accurately reflect the nature of the expenses and underlying balances.

The restatements to the financial information of the 2012 and 2013 financial years are mainly as a result of the following:-

1.  Property, plant and equipment

 ✔ Reclassification of certain items included in consumable stores, spares and catalyst to production as these items were 
in the past considered to be inventory. These items should have been classified as PPE in terms of    
IAS 16 (AC 123) as they will be used in the process of production during more than one accounting period.

 ✔ Revision to the application of the unit of production method in determining depreciation, depletion,   
amortisation and the consequential impact on fixed assets.

 ✔ Revision of the method of determining changes in estimate and unwinding of the discount factor accounting for   
the abandonment provision and the consequential impact on PPE.

2. Intangible assets

 ✔ In terms of IFRS 6 (AC 143) Exploration for and evaluation of Mineral Resources and the “successful efforts”    
method of accounting an entity shall measure exploration and evaluation assets at cost, and that possible    
costs to be capitalised include; acquisition of rights to explore, geological studies, exploratory drilling,    
trenching, sampling and costs associated with evaluating the technical feasibility of the mineral resource.    
Expenditures incurred on exploration and evaluation assets were prematurely expensed despite ongoing    
exploration and appraisal activities.

 ✔ Assets previously recognised within AEMFC that was previously recognised as Assets pending determination”   
were reclassified in both 2012 and 2013 as intangible assets

3.  Assets pending determination

 ✔ Assets previously recognised within AEMFC that was previously recognised as Assets pending determination”   
were reclassified in both 2012 and 2013 as intangible assets as per “ref 2”.

4.  Current assets

 ✔ The reclassification of inventory to Production, plant and equipment by PetroSA as per “ref 1” above.
 ✔ The correction of either “debit” or “credit” balances was reclassified between Trade Receivables and / or Trade   

Payables to correctly accounting for these balances.
 ✔ Reclassification of financial guarantees by AEMFC as financial assets.

5.  Non current liabilities

 ✔ Revision of the method of determining changes in estimate and unwinding of the discount factor accounting for   
the abandonment provision and the consequential impact on non current provisions.

6.  Current Liabilities

 ✔ As per “ref 4’’, The correction of either “debit” or “credit” balances was reclassified between Trade Receivables   
and / or Trade Payables to correctly accounting for these balances.

7.  Retained earnings

 ✔ The adjustments per “ref 1” and “ref 2” above are accountable for the restatement in retained earnings.

Company prior error notes 2012 & 2013
1.  Non current assets

 ✔ A portion of investments in subsidiaries was reclassified as loans in Group companies while the short-term    
portion was reclassified to current assets.

2.  Current assets

 ✔ The short term portion of the values reclassified as per “ref 1” was reclassified from non current assets to    
current assets.

3.  Current- and non current liabilities

 ✔ Loans from Group companies were reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities.
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44. Change in accounting policy

1. Discounting of debtors and creditors
The company has concluded that while extended payment terms were granted, the effect of the time value of money is not 
material. The income and expense on discounting receivables and payables recognised in the prior year has been reversed.

2. Exploration and evaluation assets
During the year the company changed the accounting policy with respect to the exploration and evaluation assets. Under 
the new policy the company defined the exploration and evaluation assets as expenditure that is incurred for activities in 
relation to evaluating the technical feasibility and commercial viability of a mineral resource. Expenditures prior to the 
pre-feasibility stage are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. In the previous policy all exploration and 
evaluation expenditure was capitalised.

The change in accounting policy with respect to exploration and evaluation assets has been applied retrospectively and the 
prior year figures have been restated. Projects for which a competent persons report has not been approved by the board 
have been written off to the income statement.

The table summarises the adjustments made to the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income 
as a result of the changes in accounting policy.

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Decrease in receivables - (1 559) - - - -

Decrease in interest income - (1 559) - - - -

Decrease in payables - (1 371) - - - -
Decrease in finance costs - (1 371) - - - -
Impairment of intangible assets - (1 044) - - - -
Increase in administrative costs - 1 044 - - - -
Decrease in deferred tax liability 
(28% of R1 044)

- (292) - - - -

45. Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenses

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Opening balance 54 677 20 214 39 659 3 183 63 18

Expenditure relating to current year 6 802 35 485 164 - - -

Discovered during the current year 
but Relating to prior year

415 3 120 - - 3 120 63

Less: Amounts expensed - - - - - -
Less: Amounts recovered - (10) (16 433) - - -
Less amounts condoned (56 802) (4 132) (3 176) - - (18)

5 092 54 677 20 214 3 183 3 183 63

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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45. Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure    
 (continued)

Details of fruitless expenditure – current 
year of the Group

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

Penalties due to non-compliance to the PSC Action pending 142

Interest paid on late payments to suppliers None, administrative problem 717

Items individually <R50 000 None, administrative problem 73

SARS penalties and interest Corrective actions taken 4 160

5 092

Irregular expenditure

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 950 606 75 402 - 1 285 - -

Irregular expenditure current year 1 604 058 871 923 75 402 4 066 1 285 -
Discovered during the current year 
but relating to prior year

- 3 281 - - - -

Relating to prior year - - - - - -

Amounts condoned (28 745) - - - - -
Unauthorised expenditure awaiting 
authorisation

- - - - - -

2 525 919 950 606 75 402 5 351 1 285 -

PetroSA’s Board has condoned R1 414 824 000 on 22 July 2014.

Details of fruitless expenditure – current 
year of the Group

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

Contravention of legislation (PPPFA)* Corrective actions taken (refer below) 2 523 545

Contravention of company policy None, administrative problem 2 374

2 525 919

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Group Company

Figures in Rand thousand. 
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated
2014 2013

Restated
2012

Restated

Current 178 464 872 221 75 402 3 127 - -

Prior years 923 219 50 998 - 1 285 1 285 -
1 101 683 923 219 75 402 4 412 1 285 -

The appropriate corrective and/or disciplinary actions have been taken (where necessary) and will be finalised during the 
2015 financial year.

PetroSA

Tenders for the purchases of product were awarded in contravention of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework 
Act (PPPFA). An application was put before National Treasury requesting an exemption from all the provisions of the 
PPPFA. Subsequent to year end, the Minister of Finance granted PetroSA exemption from the PPPFA in respect of the 
procurement of hydrocarbons for resale. The implication is that the procurement activity will not be regarded as irregular 
in the future.
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46. Changes in accounting estimates property, plant and equipment
The useful life of certain mine infrastructure was estimated in 2013 and previous financial years to be 19 years. In the 
current period management have revised their estimate to seven years. The current production schedule of the Central Pit 
indicates the life of mine will end in 2018, hence Central Pit assets useful life was reviewed to seven years. The effect of this 
revision has increased the depreciation charges for the current period by R3 105 898. The residual values of property, plant 
and equipment was reviewed at year end and the change in estimate as a result of the review is a decrease in the 
depreciation of R394 819.

47. Subsequent event
In terms of the CEF Group reorganisation CEF will examine the equitable manner in which iGas and PetroSA, as CEF 
subsidiaries, can be merged. This will need to include the appropriate approvals from third parties.

CEF share in Phillips Lighting Maseru was sold to Kroninklijke Phillips N.V on 6 June 2014 for amount of USD 994 434.

On 3 July 2014, PetroSA Equatorial Guinea received a letter (dated 10 June 2014) to terminate the Block Q Licence from the 
Ministry of Mines, Industry and Energy of Equatorial Guinea. This will impact the potential liability (estimated at $60 million) 
that would have arisen as a penalty had PetroSA Equatorial Guinea retained the licence up to December 2014. Enquiries are 
currently being made from the country manager in Equatorial Guinea as well as from our own parent Ministry to seek further 
clarification on the matter.

48. Going concern
South African Agency for Promotion of Petroleum Exploration and Exploitation

The company has budgeted to fund operations from cash reserves, these reserves will be sufficient to fund operations for 
at least a further three years, after which the company will need to obtain funding from the State as provided for in the 
MPRDA.

49. Government grants
PetroSA receives a government grant for training on projects of R6 906 000 (2013: R4 495 000). In terms of the signed 
agreement, PetroSA will receive a refund based on the cost incurred in order to provide specialised training on the project.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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50. Interest in joint operating agreements
The Group’s proportionate share in the assets and liabilities of unincorporated joint ventures, which are included in the 
financial statements are as follows:

 2013 Percentage Holding / Tracts

Partners: Sunburn 76% Anadarko 
65%

Nakor 70%
Energulf 10%

Kunene 
Energy 3%

Sasol 50% Anadarko 
80%

Cairn 40%

Nature of project Exploration Exploration Exploration Exploration Exploration Exploration

As at 31 March 2014, PetroSA along with the other current joint venture partners, namely Forest Oil and Anschutz, had 
withdrawn from Block 2C. A simultaneous application for a new exploration right over Block 2C was made, with Anadarko 
as operator, with an equity split of 35% for PetroSA and 65% for Anadarko.

24% Block
2A

24% Block 2C 10% 
NAMIBIA 

1711

20% Block 
2C

40% Block 1

Partners: Anschutz
22.80%
Forest 

53.20%

Anschutz 
22.80%
Forest 

53.20%

Nakor 70%
Energulf 10
% Kunene 
Energy 3%
Namcor 7%

Anadarko 
80%

Cairn 60%

Nature of project Exploration Exploration Exploration Exploration
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